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Management Discussion and Analysis

SI1RB5Im K D

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of LEAP Holdings
Group Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present to the shareholders
the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 March 2019 (the “Year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s major sources of revenue were from foundation works and
ancillary services, construction wastes handling services, money lending
business and investments in securities in Hong Kong.

During the Year, the Group had no material changes in its business nature
and principal activities.

Foundation Works and Ancillary Services

The foundation works of the Group mainly included site formation works,
excavation and lateral support (“ELS”) works, piling construction, pile
caps or footing construction and reinforced concrete structure works and
ancillary services mainly included hoarding and demolition works and
lease of machinery.

During the Year, revenue from this segment amounted to approximately
HK$258.2 million, compared with approximately HK$152.4 million for the
year ended 31 March 2018, representing an increase of 69.4%. Such
increase was resulted from the increase in number of projects undertaken
and these projects started contributing revenue to the Group during the
Year.

Gross profit of this segment during the Year was approximately HK$26.8
million, which increased approximately 33.3% as compared with
approximately HK$20.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2018. Gross
profit margin of this segment for the Year was approximately 10.4%,
representing a decrease of 2.8 percentage points from approximately that
of 18.2% for the year ended 31 March 2018. The decrease was mainly
attributable to the increase in subcontracting cost.

Construction Wastes Handling Services

The Group is mainly engaged in construction wastes handling services
including the management and operation of public fill reception facilities,
such as public fill banks and temporary construction waste sorting
facilities, for construction and demolition materials.

During the Year, revenue from this segment amounted to approximately
HK$104.6 million, which increased approximately HK$5.0 million as
compared with approximately HK$99.6 million for the year ended 31
March 2018. The increase was mainly due to the increase in revenue from
on-going projects during the Year.
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Gross profit of this segment for the Year was approximately HK$2.4
million, which decreased approximately 42.9% as compared with
approximately HK$4.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2018. Such
decrease was mainly due to an increase in certain cost of sales items
including waste handling charge and subcontracting cost. Gross profit
margin of this segment for the Year was approximately 2.3%, representing
a decrease of 2.0 percentage points from approximately 4.3% for the year
ended 31 March 2018. Such decrease was mainly due to the increase in
cost of sales items as mentioned above.

New Projects Awarded

During the Year, the Group had been awarded 7 new contracts with total
contract value of approximately HK$495.00 million. The details of the new

projects are as follows:

Type of Projects
HEER

Site Location
N E
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Type of Works
IRER

Foundation and Ancillary Works
HERAEEETE

Foundation and Ancillary Works
WENRETRE

Foundation and Ancillary Works

WEREETIE

Foundation and Ancillary Works

wENEETRR

Foundation and Ancillary Works

WENEETIZ

Foundation and Ancillary Works
HEREEETRE

Foundation and Ancillary Works

WEREETRR

Kwun Tong district

BERE

Tai Po district
AR

Southern district

Yuen Long district
TLEA R

Southern district

3]

Southern district

3]

Southern district

3]

Foundation, ELS and Pile Cap Works
HE - 1R R A A TR AR T2

Piling Works
BEIR

Substructure and Raft Foundation Works
THEBMENETRE

Foundation, ELS and Pile Cap Works
£ 1R K A A AR SRR AR

Substructure, Superstructure and Site
Formation Works

T EbERE . FEAEE R E TR

Substructure and Superstructure Works
TEEE R L HEE IR

ELS and Pile Cap Works
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Projects in Progress EEEAE

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 16 projects in progress with total RZT—AF=A=+—H KEEE16{ELE
contract value amounted to approximately HK$874.70 million. The details B - #& 8(BEXI874.708 &8 7T - LREIER 1)
of projects in progress are as follows: IR

Type of Projects
HEHER

Site Location

MR E

Type of Works
IRER

Foundation and Ancillary Works
HE N AL E T2

Foundation and Ancillary Works

WELEETIE

Foundation and Ancillary Works
WERREETR

Foundation and Ancillary Works

WwENEETRR

Foundation and Ancillary Works

WERRETRE

Foundation and Ancillary Works

wEMEETIZ

Foundation and Ancillary Works

WENRETRR

Foundation and Ancillary Works

wEREETRE

Foundation and Ancillary Works
WERREETR

Foundation and Ancillary Works
HWERRETE
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Sha Tin district

WHE

Kwun Tong district

BER

Sha Tin district
Y HE

Kwai Tsing district
ZEm

Foundation, ELS and Pile Cap Works
o 2R K B A A AR K AR TA2

Piling Works
BEIR

Substructure and Raft Foundation Works
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Works
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Demolition Works and Construction of the
Hoarding Works
HREIERERIEER

Piling and ELS Works
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Piling and ELS Works
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Type of Projects Site Location Type of Works

HEER AV E IREER

Foundation and Ancillary Works Sai Kung district Site Formation & Foundation, ELS, Pile
Caps and Tie Beam Works

WMEREETR mER AR TR R B 24 R AR AFE TR
THIERERTIR

Foundation and Ancillary Works Sha Tin district Foundation, ELS, Pile Cap, Slope and
Drainage Works

MEREETRE P HE HE - 2R EAAEE IR BE - R K
HEKERTIR

Foundation and Ancillary Works Kowloon City district Foundation, ELS, Pile Cap and Tree Works

ENEEETIZ JUBE @ A 1R R AR M A FE TR © HE 1R RAE
S

Foundation and Ancillary Works Wan Chai district ELS, Site Formation, Foundation and Pile
Cap Works

MENEETRE Ef R ZREAIMAFETIR A TE MER
HEIE T2

Foundation and Ancillary Works Southern district ELS and Pile Cap Works

A REETE A @ TR EAIRATE TR RIEEIRE

Construction Wastes Handling Tuen Mun district Fill Bank Operation
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Completed Projects 2xIEH

During the Year, the Group completed 5 projects with total contract value ~ RAFER  AEEETKSEIEE - RaKEE
amounted to approximately HK$153.85 million. The details of completed ~ #7153.85 B &L - B c LIAB MBI T

projects are as follows:

Type of Projects
HEER

Site Location

AR B

Type of Works
IREER

Foundation and Ancillary Works

WEREETIE

Foundation and Ancillary Works

WEREETE

Foundation and Ancillary Works

WELEETE

Foundation and Ancillary Works

WwENEETRR

Foundation and Ancillary Works

WwENMEETIZ
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Southern district
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Yuen Long district
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Yau Tsim Mong district
S ST [

Site Formation & Foundation
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Foundation, ELS and Pile Cap Works
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Structural Work, Building Service Works,
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Money Lending Business

During the Year, the Group continued to carry out its money lending
business under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws
of Hong Kong). During the Year, the Group generated approximately
HK$1.5 million gross profit from this segment. The Directors consider it
will be beneficial to the Group to explore new opportunities in the money
lending business to widen its revenue base and minimise the risks of the
Group overall, in order to enhance the capital use of the Group for the
interests of the Company and its shareholders.

Investments in Securities

During the Year, the Group maintained the business segment of
investments in securities in order to diversify the Group’s business. The
Group invested in a portfolio of listed securities in Hong Kong.

During the Year, the Group recorded a gross loss in the segment of
investments in securities of approximately HK$0.2 million. The Company
reviews the performance of its existing investment portfolio and evaluates
the investment potentials of other investment opportunities available to
the Company as part of the routine exercise with a view to optimise the
expected return and minimise the risks.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Revenue increased by approximately 22.2% from approximately
HK$298.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2018 to approximately
HK$364.9 milion for the Year. The increase was mainly due to the
increase in number of projects undertaken and these projects started to
contributing revenue to the Group during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Gross profit and gross margin

Gross profit decreased by approximately 56.9% from approximately
HK$70.7 milion for the year ended 31 March 2018 to approximately
HK$30.5 million for the Year. Gross profit margin for the Year was
approximately 8.4%, representing a decrease of 15.3 percentage points
from approximately 23.7% for the year ended 31 March 2018. The
decrease was mainly due to the significant decrease in revenue from the
investments in securities business.

Other income, gains and losses

Other income, gains and losses mainly consisted of interest income
and service income. During the Year, other income, gains and losses
amounted to approximately HK$4.0 million (2018: HK$2.7 million).

Administrative and other operating expenses

The administrative and other operating expenses of the Group for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$53.3 million, representing an increase of
approximately 37.4% compared with approximately HK$38.8 million for
the year ended 31 March 2018. Such increase was mainly due to the
additional staff costs for the Group’s expansion into data science and
information technologies and the increase in rental expenses in respect of
the lease of the new premises with large area.

Finance costs

Finance costs increased by approximately 137.9% from approximately
HK$2.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2018 to approximately
HK$6.9 million for the Year, which was mainly due to the accrued interests
on loan from a related party.

Income tax credit/(expense)

Income tax credit for the Year was approximately HK$0.8 million,
compared to income tax expense of HK$6.4 million for the year ended 31
March 2018, which was mainly due to the Group’s loss position.

LEAP Holdings Group Limited
2019 Annual Report

EMNRENR

EAmEE T N\FZA=Z+—HILEFEY
70.7TE BB TR L 4956.9% = A FE 43056 8
EIL  RAAFE » BFELB A% BEHE_ZT—N\
F=ZA=Z+—HILFELH28.7%mHP15.3EF 5
oBERLETEHNREEFHREEBOH Y=
KIE R A

HWA - hsEmREE

HA WA~ Yz R B R E B2 BN B WA KRS
WA e RAREE - B - e REELI4.08 8
BR(ZE-NF:27BEBET) -

THRHEMEERX

RAFE NEBTHREMEEH 45338
EBELT BEE_ T \F=A=+t—HILFE
#)38.8E @B TLIEINAIB7.4% < ZIEMTIEZHBR
AEBEBEREHEHMBREAMZNBINE TK
AR HEERNEEF Y ENE S SOE A

B E A

MEXNAHBE_Z-N\F=A=+—BILFE
K2 90R BB ITLIBINMNBT 9% EARFEL6IHE
B HEBHRN - RBBEES Rz B AR
o

BB R, (%)
AERE2FERERNB0SHRET HBES

E-N\F=ZA=+—RILFERMEH 6.4
BEAET WHEEARAEBERENEENE-



(Loss)/Profit for the Year

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$27.2 million for
the Year, compared to a profit of approximately HK$25.4 million for the
corresponding period in 2018. The net loss was mainly attributable to
(i) the decrease in its revenues from the securities investment segment;
and (i) the Group focused more of its resources on opportunities related
to data science and information technologies, which have not yet been
revenue-generating during the Year.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company does not have any
other plans for material investments or capital assets.

PROSPECTS

Amid the slowdown in growth of governmental construction works,
infrastructure and land resources are among the top priorities on the
government’s agenda in the 2018-2019 Budget of the Hong Kong
government. The government has put forward an array of initiatives to
stimulate the growth of the construction industry by devoting resources
to produce approximately 100,000 units of public housing for the next
five years which opens up numerous new business opportunities for
the Group. The strong support from the government will possibly bring
beneficial impacts to the sustainable growth of the construction industry in
Hong Kong and also, the Group.

While infrastructure development, the Government’s public housing policy
and private sectors’ private housing supply help underpin Hong Kong'’s
construction industry, the increase in number of competitors, the rising
construction costs and shortage in labour supply remain wide concerns in
recent years. The Group expects its profit margin to remain substantially
suppressed. Control of costs is a major challenge across the industry as
construction costs in Hong Kong are the second highest in the world after
New York. To improve overall efficiency and profitability, the Group wiill
continue to strengthen cost control and increase construction efficiency to
create long-term value for our shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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As the global economy moves towards the digital era, information
technology has been an integral aspect of business success achieved by
some companies, with e-commerce and other digital functions, such as
financial technologies, providing a broader platform to sell and market to
a larger customer base. Financial technology is perceived to be relatively
new in Hong Kong, as compared to its extensive use in the PRC. Seizing
the opportunity to pursue new business opportunities in the financial
technology sector in Hong Kong at this time may help generate additional
income and enhance the capital use of the Group.

The Group will keep in exploring various investment opportunities in the
areas of information technologies and financial technologies in Hong Kong
and overseas, with a view to create an investment portfolio with stable
cash flow and value appreciation.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

The Group has funded the liquidity and capital requirements primarily
through capital contributions from the Company’s shareholders, bank
borrowings, internally generated cash flow and proceeds received from
the placing of the Company’s shares (the “Share(s)”).

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$332.5 million (31 March 2018: approximately
HK$330.6 million) and pledged bank deposit of approximately HK$6.6
million (31 March 2018: HK$6.5 million). The increase was mainly due
to the cash received from the repayment of loan receivables for money
lending business.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio is calculated based on the amount of total interest-
bearing loans divided by total equity. The gearing ratio of the Group as
at 31 March 2019 was approximately 42.1% (as at 31 March 2018:
approximately 38.2%). This is mainly due to the accrued interests on a
loan from a related party.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group’s machinery and equipment with an aggregate net book value
of approximately HK$0.6 milion and HK$7.6 million and motor vehicles
with an aggregate net book value of approximately HK$0.4 million
and HK$2.4 million as at 31 March 2019 and 2018, respectively, were
pledged under finance leases.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has pledged bank deposit of
approximately HK$6.6 million (31 March 2018: HK$6.5 million) to secure
the bank facilities granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group, in the ordinary course of its business, is involved in various
claims, suits, investigations, and legal proceedings that arise from time
to time. Although the Group does not expect that the outcome in any of
these legal proceedings, individually or collectively, will have a material
adverse effect on its financial position or results of operations, litigation is
inherently unpredictable. Therefore, the Group could incur judgements or
enter into settlements of claims that could adversely affect its operating
results or cash flows in a particular period.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and most of the operating
transactions such as revenue, expenses, monetary assets and liabilities
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. As such, the Directors are of the
view that the Group’s risk in foreign exchange is insignificant and that we
should have sufficient resources to meet foreign exchange requirements
as and if they arise. Therefore, the Group has not engaged in any
derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk during
the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BRI MK Aifr

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 March 2019, the Group employed 148 staffs (31 March 2018:
109 staffs). Total staff costs, including directors’ emoluments for the Year,
amounted to approximately HK$57.6 million (for the year ended 31 March
2018: approximately HK$54.2 million). The salary and benefit levels of
the employees of the Group are competitive and individual performance
is rewarded through the Group’s salary and bonus system. The Group
provides adequate job training to the employees to equip them with
practical knowledge and skills.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group did not have any significant capital
commitments (31 March 2018: Nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS,
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

Disposal of 100% issued shares of Gold Toys
Limited

On 19 September 2018, the Company and Element Delight Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability
(the “Purchaser”), have entered into the disposal agreement dated 19
September 2018 (the “Disposal Agreement”) in relation to the disposal
(the “Gold Toys Disposal”) of 50,000 ordinary shares in the share capital
of Gold Toys Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability which is wholly-owned by the Company (the “Target
Company”), being the entire issued share capital of the Target Company
(the “Sale Shares”) pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell, and
the Purchaser has agreed to acquire, the Sale Shares at the consideration
of HK$400,000 upon and subject to the terms and conditions of the
Disposal Agreement.

The completion of the Gold Toys Disposal took place on 28 September
2018.

Save as disclosed above and as at the date of this annual report,
the Group did not have any significant investments or any material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries or associates of the Company.
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ACQUISITION OF SHARES BY OKC
HOLDINGS CORPORATION

Reference is made to the joint announcement dated 23 January 2019
(the “Joint Announcement”) jointly issued by OKC Holdings Corporation
(the “Offeror”) and the Company. The Board was informed by the Right
Star Investment Development Limited (the “Vendor”) (being the controlling
shareholder of the Company immediately prior to completion of the sales
shares) that, on 10 January 2019, the Offeror (as purchaser), the Vendor
(as vendor) and Mr. Anthony Wong, the sole shareholder of the Vendor
(as warrantor), entered into the sale and purchase agreement pursuant
to which the Offeror had agreed to purchase and the Vendor had
agreed to sell the 3,182,790,001 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 60.49% of the entire issued share capital of the Company,
for the consideration of HK$483,890,536 (being approximately
HK$0.1520 per share of the Company) (the “Acquisition”). Completion of
the Acquisition took place on 14 January 2019.

Pursuant to Rule 26.1 of The Code on Takeovers and Mergers (the
“Takeovers Code”), the Offeror and parties acting in concert with it were
required to make a mandatory conditional cash offer for all the issued
Shares, other than those already owned or agreed to be acquired by the
Offeror and parties acting in concert with it (the “Offer”). As at 4:00 p.m.
on Wednesday, 10 April 2019 (close of the Offer), the Offeror had received
valid acceptances in respect of a total of 722,135,000 Offer Shares under
the Offer, representing approximately 13.72% of the entire issued share
capital of the Company. Details of the Acquisition and the Offer were
disclosed in the Joint Announcement, the circular dated 20 March 2019
and further announcements of the Company dated 13 February 2019, 13
March 2019, 20 March 2019, 27 March 2019 and 10 April 2019.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Biographical Details of Directors

SERFEFE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Mingxing (%8 £ 5%t 4 ) (“Mr. Xu”), aged 34, is our non-
executive director. Mr. Xu graduated from the University of Science and
Technology Beijing in 2006 with a Bachelor’s degree in Applied Physics.

Mr. Xu has a decade of experience in the blockchain technology,
information technology and corporate management.

Mr. Xu became the director and chief executive officer of OKC Holdings
Corporation (“OKC”) since February 2015 and became the director and
chairman of Shanghai Xingpan Science and Technology Company Limited
(“Shanghai Xingpan”) (NEEQ: 833166), formerly known as Shanghai
United Testing Co., Ltd. since August 2017. The business scope of
Shanghai Xingpan includes, technology development, technology transfer,
technical services, technology promotion, operational Internet cultural
information services, business management consulting, computer
system services, sales of computer and auxiliary equipment in network
technology industry.

From June 2007 to August 2012, Mr. Xu was employed by Docln Shiji
(Beijing) Technology Limited ( 2 T t42 (dbR) A& M AR 2 7], known
as “Docln.com”). Docln.com is a company engaging in the operation
of Chinese online reading platform with a diverse content online library,
including Chinese articles, publications and industry research reports,
providing Internet information services, as well as technology services,
development, consulting, transfer and advertising. His last position was
chief technology officer.

As at the date of this annual report, an aggregate of 3,904,925,001
shares of the Company, representing approximately 74.21% of the total
issued share capital of the Company, are held by OKC. (i) Mr. Xu's wholly-
owned company named StarXu Capital Limited (“StarXu Capital’),
which in turn holds direct interest in OKC of approximately 29.26%; (i)
StarXu Capital has interest of approximately 24.74% in SKY CHASER
HOLDINGS LIMITED (“SKY CHASER”), whereas SKY CHASER directly
holds approximately 1.45% interest in OKC (accordingly, Mr. Xu holds
approximately 0.36% indirect interest of OKC through SKY CHASER); and
(iii) his wholly-owned company named OKEM Services Company Limited
has direct interest in OKC of approximately 23.06%. Thus, Mr. Xu holds
an aggregate interest of approximately 52.68% in OKC and therefore is
deemed to be interested in the 3,904,925,001 shares of the Company
held by OKC pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, he was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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Mr. Pu Xiaojiang CE BT 56 4£) (“Mr. Pu”), aged 55, is our non-
executive director. Mr. Pu graduated from the Journalism School of Fudan
University with a Bachelor’'s degree of Arts in 1987. He also obtained his
Executive MBA from China Europe International Business School in 20083.

Mr. Pu has experiences in brand management, media, marketing and
financial services industries. Mr. Pu begins to work for OKCoin Technology
Company Limited, a subsidiary of OKC, since April 2019. He was the
vice president of Bluefocus International Limited from April 2016 to March
2019, a subsidiary in Hong Kong of Bluefocus Intelligent Communications
Group Co., Ltd. (IERE X ZHBERFARHER A F]) (formerly known
as Bluefocus Communication Group Co., Ltd. (1t L& & Y4 @ R B 18
EERIRE (D BFR 2 A]) ) which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
with the stock code of “300058” (“Bluefocus”). Bluefocus is a data
technology company, the business scope includes marketing services,
digital advertising and international business, which provides services
in marketing communication and smart technology based on data
technology.

Before that, from August 2013 to March 2016, Mr. Pu was the
“iISTAR
International Securities Co. Limited”), a subsidiary of China Finance
Online Co. Limited (NASDAQ: JRJC). Rifa Securities Limited is a licensed
corporation permitted to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated

vice president of Rifa Securities Limited (formerly known as

activity as defined under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”). China Finance Online Co.
Limited is a web-based financial services company in China, which
provides financial information services and offer fundamental and technical
tools for sales, earnings, debt management, and growth potentials.

Save as disclosed above, he was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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Biographical Details of Directors

ESREFR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ren Yunan ({E18 B 4) (“Mr. Ren”), aged 43, is our executive
Director, the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company.

Mr. Ren graduated from Peking University with a bachelor’s degree in law
in 1997 and received a master’s degree in law from Harvard Law School
in 1999. He was qualified to practise law both in Hong Kong and New
York, the United States of America.

Mr. Ren currently holds several directorships in different listed companies,
including an independent non-executive director of Ronshine China
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), stock code:
3301); and a non-executive director of Labixiaoxin Snacks Group Limited
(a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
1262).

Mr. Ren was an independent non-executive director of International
Entertainment Corporation from May 2017 to July 2018 (a company listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1009), a non-
executive director and the chairman of AVIC Joy Holdings (HK) Limited (a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
260). Mr. Ren was also an independent non-executive director of China
Child Care Corporation Limited (a company listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1259) from February 2011 to October
2015 and its non-executive director from October 2015 to April 2018,
and a director of SPI Energy Co. Ltd. (@ company listed on the National
Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotations, NASDAQ: SPI)
from April 2015 to May 2017. Mr. Ren also acts as the director of some
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, he was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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Mr. Luo Ting (& %4 ) (“Mr. Luo”), aged 39, is our executive Director.
Mr. Luo obtained a Master of Business Administration from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 2015. He graduated from
Central South University with a Master’s degree in Management Science
and Engineering and a Bachelor’s degree in Management Information
Systems in 2003 and 2001, respectively.

Mr. Luo was the managing director of J R Capital Limited (£t 2 & 5
[ 72 &]) from October 2017 to March 2018 with primary responsibility
of post-investment management. During June 2014 to September 2017,
he served as the managing director of ZTE (H.K.) Ltd* (Fh 8@ (&
7 ) B2 R]) which is a subsidiary of ZTE Corporation ( #3851 1% 17
BRAF]), a company with its shares listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 0763). He was a sales director of ZTE (H.K.)
Ltd from September 2009 to May 2014 and was an account manager
of ZTE (H.K.)) Ltd from August 2007 to August 2009. He was employed
as a commercial manager in ZTE Corporation from February 2006 to
July 2007. Mr. Luo also acts as the director of some wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, he was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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Biographical Details of Directors

ESREFR

Mr. Zhu Junkan (5KR#&{i &%) (“Mr. Zhu”), aged 36, is our executive
Director. Mr. Zhu obtained a bachelor’s degree in Management
Information Systems from Nanjing Audit University in 2004.

Mr. Zhu is currently the legal representative, executive director and
general manager of J.R. Capital Asset Management (Shenzhen) Company
Limited* ORI TR E S E LB R 2 A)) which is regulated in Asset
Management Association of China (registration number: P1010447).
During August 2015 to July 2018, he was the vice chairman of SuzZhou
GuangDuo Micro, Nano-Device Co., Ltd* (&R/N AR MATHE (5 B R
AF]), a company was listed on The National Equities Exchanges and
Quotations Co., Ltd (“NEEQ”) (NEEQ number: 835121) that was delisted
from NEEQ in January 2019. Mr. Zhu is also currently a director of J.R.
Capital Asset Management (Jiangsu) Company Limited* T #ANFHE S
BEEBRRA
of China (registration number: P1066279). Moreover, he works as a
supervisor for Shenzhen JuXin Information Tech Co., Ltd.* (&I E{E
Z BRI AR AT ). Mr. Zhu also acts as the director of some wholly-

owned subsidiaries of the Company.

A]), which is regulated in Asset Management Association

He was appointed as an investment manager in Shenzhen Fanhua
NmREREREETEBERAF)
from 2011 to 2012. He was employed as an auditor in Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu CPA Limited from 2005 to 2010.

Venture Capital Co. Limited* (&

Save as disclosed above, he was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Zhouxin (ZR%LLE) (“Mr. Li”), aged 34, is our independent
non-executive Director. Mr. Li graduated from Fuzhou University with
a bachelor degree in finance in 2007. Mr. Li is a PRC certified public
accountant (non-practising) and a certified management accountant
recognised by The Institute of Management Accountants in the United
States of America. Mr. Li also holds the Certification in Risk Management
Assurance accredited by The Institute of Internal Auditors.

Mr. Li currently serves as a non-executive director of China Child Care
Corporation Limited (stock code: 1259), a company listed on the main
board of Stock Exchange. Mr. Li worked as an auditor and assistant
manager of the audit division at KPMG Consulting (China) Co., Ltd.
from August 2007 to December 2010. From December 2010 to
November 2011, he served as finance manager at a company listed on
the main board of NASDAQ. Mr. Li is currently the vice chairman of the
8th Executive Committee of the Youth Business Association of Fujian
Province.

Save as disclosed above, he was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.

Mr. Lee Man Chiu (Z XX B % 4£) (“Mr. Lee”), aged 46, is our
independent non-executive Director. Mr. Lee graduated from Harvard
College with a Bachelor of Arts degree in 1994. He subsequently obtained
his Juris Doctor degree from Georgetown University Law Center in
1998. Since 1999, he has been licensed and admitted to practice as an
Attorney and Counsellor at Law in all courts of the State of New York. He
is also a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong.

Mr. Lee has extensive experience in the practice of law. He has been in
Asia since 2000 and has practiced in a number of international law firms
including Clifford Chance, Morrison & Foester and Orrick Herrington &
Sutcliffe. He is currently a corporate partner at Dentons Hong Kong and
was a partner at Hogan Lovells and Locke Lord.
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Biographical Details of Directors

ESREFR

Mr. Lee advises on a broad range of transactions, including equity
offerings and listings (in particular, U.S. IPOs and Hong Kong IPOs with
a Rule 144A tranche), private equity and venture capital, cross-border
mergers and acquisitions, and general corporate and banking. Mr. Lee’s
experience includes representing issuers and underwriters in IPOs and
private placement of equity and debt securities and in connection with
the structuring, issuance, and distribution of fixed and floating rate bonds,
high-yield bonds, perpetual securities, convertible debt securities, asset-
backed securities and derivative financial products. Mr. Lee has also
represented listed companies in securities law compliance matters and
buyers and sellers in merger and acquisition transactions and drafted
corporate documents, including contracts, royalty agreements and license
agreements for start-up companies, as well as other documentation for
general corporate and banking transactions. Mr. Lee also served as an
independent non-executive director for China Child Care Corporation
Limited (1259.hk) from 16 Oct 2015 to 20 May 2016.

Save as disclosed above, he was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.

Mr. Jiang Guoliang (¥ Bl R & %) (“Mr. Jiang”), aged 42, is our
independent non-executive Director. Mr. Jiang graduated from Peking
University with a bachelor’s degree in law in 1997.

Mr. Jiang is currently the independent director of Zhejiang
Communications Technology Co., Ltd. (002061.SZ), a company with its
shares listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange in the People’s Republic of
China. He is also the independent non-executive director of Weigang
Environmental Technology Holding Group Limited (HK. 1845), a company
with its shares listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also the managing
partner of Zhe Jiang T&C Law Firm. Mr. Jiang was the vice president of
BOCGI Zheshang Capital Co., Ltd* (FIRRENHEXES EEER
A a]) from 2010 to 2012. He was also the partner of the branch office of
King & Wood Mallesons in Hangzhou from 2008 to 2010. Before that, he
was a lawyer and the partner of Zhe Jiang T&C Law Firm from 1999 to
2008. He was also worked at Zhejiang Silk Import and Export Company
from 1997 to 1999.

Save as disclosed above, he was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that they are
crucial to improving the efficiency and performance of the Group and to
safeguarding the interests of the shareholders. The Board reviews the
Company’s corporate governance practices from time to time in order
to meet the expectations of stakeholders and comply with increasingly
stringent regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to
excellence in corporate governance.

Set out below are the principles of corporate governance as adopted by
the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

During the year, the Company has applied the principles of and
complied with the applicable code provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out Appendix 14 (the “CG Code”) to the
Listing Rules contained therein except for the following deviation. The
Company periodically reviews its corporate governance practices to
ensure that they continue to meet the requirements of the CG Code.

(1)  Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should not be performed by the same
individual.

During the period from 1 April 2018 to 30 April 2018, Mr. Ip Ying
Chau was the Chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company. With his extensive experience in the industry, the Board
believed that vesting the roles of both Chairman and chief executive
officer in the same person provides the Company with strong and
consistent leadership, allowed for effective and efficient planning
and implementation of business decisions and strategies, and
was beneficial to the business prospects and management of the
Group. Although Mr. Ip Ying Chau performed both the roles of
Chairman and chief executive officer, the division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and chief executive officer was clearly
established. The two roles were performed by Mr. Ip Ying Chau
distinctly. The Company considers that it is the long-term objective
of the Company to have these two roles performed by separate
individuals when suitable candidates are identified.
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However, Mr. Ip Ying Chau had resigned as the Chairman, the
chief executive officer and the executive Director of the Company
with effect from 30 April 2018. The Company had not appointed
the Chairman and the chief executive officer after the resignation
of Mr. Ip Ying Chau until 9 July 2018. Mr. Ren Yunan has been
appointed as an executive Director, the chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company with effect from 9 July 2018.
The Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and
chief executive officer in the same person provides the Company
with strong and consistent leadership, allows for effective and
efficient planning and implementation of business decisions
and strategies, and is beneficial to the business prospects and
management of the Group. Although Mr. Ren Yunan performs both
the roles of Chairman and chief executive officer, the division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and chief executive officer is
clearly established. The two roles are performed by Mr. Ren Yunan
distinctly.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code requires that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. The non-executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors have not been appointed for any specific terms
as they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’

securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required

standard as set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. In response to a specific enquiry by the Company,
all Directors have confirmed that they complied with the requirements of

the Model Code during the Year and up to the date of this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

It is the responsibility of the Board to determine the appropriate corporate
governance practices applicable to the Company’s circumstances and to
ensure processes and procedures are in place to achieve the Company’s
corporate governance objectives.

The duties of the Board in performing its corporate governance functions
under the CG Code include:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the Company;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4, to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors of the
Company; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Company will continue to review and enhance its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAMME

Each newly appointed Director shall receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.
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Directors will be continuously updated on the statutory and regulatory
regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Directors are also encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The joint company secretaries update the Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

During the Year and as at the date of publication of this annual report,
all Directors, namely Mr. Xu Mingxing, Mr. Pu Xiaojiang, Mr. Ren Yunan,
Mr. Luo Ting, Mr. Zhu Junkan, Mr. Li Zhouxin, Mr. Lee Man Chiu and
Mr. Jiang Guoliang, have participated in continuous professional training
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in relation to their
contribution to the Board.

The training participated by each Director is summarised as below:

EENERERERBMEE MEEHRARER
RE UWEBTREZBRE -ARATHBES
SEGBESEERAZREEFENB L XEE -
REARMEINSNSEEAM TR L EAM
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S OBRBIRE EESKE EHELE KRE
s FRMEE FXBEERBERREL)
BESMTHEERERI AREEEMEE
BRER Tt N 58 3 HL A8 EL 4 ©

BEREF2HBIEIIN T3

Reading journals/

updates/articles/ Attending seminars/

Name of Directors materials conferences/forums
BIEST
BEEHR
XE/ HEHNE
EEnE = 28 WwiE
Non-executive Directors
FHITES
Mr. Xu Mingxing (appointed on 11 April 2019) v v
REARSE (RZE-NFEA+T—AEEE)
Mr. Pu Xiaojiang (appointed on 11 April 2019) v v
BELEE (RZZE-NFOA+—REERE)
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Ren Yunan v
ERBEE
Mr. Luo Ting 4
EHELE
Mr. Zhu Junkan v
RE T E

LEAP Holdings Group Limited
2019 Annual Report



Corporate Governance Report
EREIGHRS

Reading journals/

updates/articles/ Attending seminars/

Name of Directors materials conferences/forums

BT,

BHEHR

XE/ HEWNE

EEpE B8 28 Wil
Independent non-executive Directors
BYFHTES
Mr. Li Zhouxin v
FREMEE
Mr. Lee Man Chiu 4 v
FXBELE
Mr. Jiang Guoliang (appointed on 1 September 2018) v v

BEREA (RZE—N\FHLA—HEZT)
THE BOARD
Role and function

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, oversees
the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business and performance.
The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for day-to-day
management and operation of the Group to the senior management
of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs,
the Board has established three Board committees including the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) (together, the “Board Committees”). The
Board has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out
in their respective terms of reference.

Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board currently comprises eight
members, consisting of two non-executive Directors, three executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

The independent non-executive Directors are expressly identified in all
corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises the following
Directors:

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xu Mingxing (appointed on 11 April 2019)
Mr. Pu Xiaojiang (appointed on 11 April 2019)

Executive Directors

Mr. Ren Yunan
Mr. Luo Ting
Mr. Zhu Junkan

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Zhouxin
Mr. Lee Man Chiu
Mr. Jiang Guoliang (appointed on 1 September 2018)

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors” on pages 16 to 22 of this annual report.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited
to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.
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Board Meetings

The Board has 7 scheduled Board meetings during the year. Additional
meetings would be arranged if and when required.

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
assists the Chairman in drawing the agenda of each meeting and each
Director may request inclusion of matters in the agenda. Generally,
at least 14 days’ notice of a regular Board meeting is given and the
Company aims at giving reasonable notice for all other Board meetings.
The Company also aims at sending the agenda and the accompanying
board papers, which are prepared in such form and quality as will enable
the Board to make an informed decision on matters placed before it, to
all Directors at a reasonable time before the intended date of a Board
meeting.

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is responsible
for ensuring that Board procedures are complied with and all applicable
rules and regulations are followed.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of Board and
Board committee meetings, drafts and final versions of which would be
sent to Directors for comments and records respectively, in both cases
within a reasonable time after each meeting. Minutes are recorded in
sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views
(if any) expressed. Minutes of the Board and Board committees’ mestings
are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by any
Director or committee member.

If a substantial shareholder of the Company or a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter (including material transaction with connected persons)
which the Board has determined to be material, a Board meeting will be
held instead of by way of resolution.
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Attendance records

During the Year, a total of 7 Board meetings and 1 general meeting were

held and the attendance records are as follows:

Name of Directors

Hi 7 RC 8%

RER BITEHRLAEFEEE R —AREX

B LECEAT

Meetings attended/
Number of general
meetings held

Meetings attended/
Number of Board
meetings held

LEeE 2T HEEE BT
EEnE BRRAEHWRE EESSSENRY
Non-executive Directors
FHITES
Mr. Xu Mingxing (appointed on 11 April 2019) N/A 71 N/A A~ A
RAREE (RZTE-NFEA+—REEE)
Mr. Pu Xiaojiang (appointed on 11 April 2019) N/A i N/A i A
HELAEE (RZT-—NFNA+—REZE)
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Ren Yunan (appointed on 9 July 2018) 11 3/7
ERBAE (RZTE-N\FLANREEE)
Mr. Luo Ting (appointed on 10 April 2018) 1/1 e/7
wEESLEE (RZZE-\FOA+REZT)
Mr. Zhu Junkan (appointed on 10 April 2018) 1/1 6/7
KEMFTE (R N\FHATHERET)
Mr. Cheng Yuk (resigned on 16 May 2019) 1/1 777
BEEE (RZE-NAFRATREEEI)
Mr. Ip Ying Chau (resigned on 30 April 2018) N/A i 2/7
EREMNEE (RZT—N\FNA=THET)
Independent non-executive Directors
BYFHTES
Mr. Li Zhouxin 1/1 77
FREMEE
Mr. Lee Man Chiu (appointed on 30 April 2018) 1/1 5/7
FEXBEE (RZZE-N\FOA=THEZT)
Mr. Jiang Guoliang (appointed on 1 September 2018) N/A 7~ A 3/7
BRERSE (RZZE—N\FNA—BEZE)
Mr. Chan King Chung (resigned on 16 May 2019) 1/1 77
RAUASLE (RZE—NAFRA+/BEIT)
Mr. Chan Chun Yiu Thomas (resigned on 30 April 2018) N/A 7~ A 2/7

RRREE (K- \FHA=THEE)
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Access to information

The Directors may seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. The Company will, upon
request, provide separate independent professional advice to Directors to
assist the relevant Directors to discharge their duties to the Company.

The Board is supplied with relevant information by the senior management
pertaining to matters to be brought before the Board for decision as
well as reports relating to operational and financial performance of the
Group before each Board meeting. Where any Director requires more
information than is volunteered by the management, each Director has
the right to separately and independently access to the Company’s senior
management to make further enquiries if necessary.

Appointments and re-election of Directors

Directors were nominated by members of the Board during the year to
fill casual vacancies or as an addition to existing Board. The Nomination
Committee, in consultation with the Board, determines the selection
criteria and identifies candidates with the appropriate expertise and
experience for the appointments of new Directors. The Nomination
Committee then nominates the most suitable candidate to be appointed
to the Board.

According to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”), any Director so appointed by the Board shall hold office,
in the case of filling a casual vacancy, only until the next following general
meeting of the Company or, in the case of an addition to their number,
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company who shall
then be eligible for re-election at such general meeting. Every Director is
appointed for a specific term and is subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

In accordance with article 112 of the Articles, all Directors shall hold office
until the next following general meeting of the Company and being eligible,
will offer himself for re-election as Director at the annual general meeting
of the Company.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

Mr. Ip Ying Chau serves as the Chairman and executive Director, as well
as the chief executive officer of the Company until 30 April 2018. Mr. Ren
Yunan has been appointed as an executive Director, the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer with effect from 9 July 2018. He is responsible
for formulating corporative and business strategies and making major
operational decisions. With the support of the executive Directors and the
Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and receive adequate
and reliable information in a timely manner.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Board has at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors, the number of which must represent at least one-third of the
Board, with at least one independent non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications and accounting and related
financial management expertise.

The independent non-executive Directors are considered by the Board to
be independent of the management and free of any relationship that could
materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgments. The
Board considered that each of the independent non-executive Directors
brings his own relevant expertise to the Board and its deliberations. None
of the independent non-executive Directors has any business or financial
interests with the Group nor has any relationship with other Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors’ responsibilities for the accounts and the responsibilities of
the external auditors to the shareholders are set out on pages 97 to 100
of this annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Li
Zhouxin (the chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Lee Man
Chiu and Mr. Jiang Guoliang, all of them are independent non-executive
Directors. The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include,
among other things:

o review the structure, size and composition of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

o review the Company’s board diversity policy and the progress on
achieving the objectives set for implementing the said policy;

° identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships;

° assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

° make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the chairman and the chief executive; and

° conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may
from time to time be contained in the memorandum and articles
of association of the Company or imposed by the Listing Rules or
applicable law.
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During the Year, there were 4 meetings of the Nomination Committee
held. The attendance records of each member of the Nomination
Committee are set out below:

Nomination Committee

REZES

Q CARRRBRTHRRAZEERH RA
ZEEENRENLFECHEEHIMT

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
HE/ HEEREESRNRE

Mr. Li Zhouxin (Chairman)

FREMSTE (F/E)

Mr. Lee Man Chiu (appointed on 30 April 2018)
FYBEE (RZZE-N\FOA=THEZE)

Mr. Jiang Guoliang (appointed on 16 May 2019)
BREREE (RZTE—NFRATSBEZEMT)

Mr. Chan King Chung (resigned on 16 May 2019)
PREGESTE (RZE—NFRATNBHET)

Mr. Chan Chun Yiu Thomas (resigned on 30 April 2018)
FRAERSE (RZE—-N\FMOA=THEI)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY
Purpose

This policy aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the board
(the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company.

Vision

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance.

Policy Statement

A truly diverse Board will include and make good use of differences in
the skills, regional and industry experience, background, race, gender
and other qualities of Directors. These differences will be taken into
account in determining the optimum composition of the Board. All Board
appointments will be based on merit while taking into account diversity
(including gender diversity).

Measurable Objectives

The nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the
Company will discuss and agree annually measurable objectives for
implementing diversity on the Board and recommend them to the Board
for adoption.
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The Company aims to build and maintain a Board with a diversity of
Directors, in terms of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise, culture,
independence, age and gender.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will report annually, in the corporate
governance report, on the Board’s composition under diversified
perspectives, and monitor the implementation of this policy.

Review of this policy

The Nomination Committee will review this policy, as appropriate, to
ensure the effectiveness of this policy. The Nomination Committee will
discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend any such
revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

Disclosure of this policy

This policy will be published on the website of the Company for public
information.

A summary of this policy together with the measurable objectives set for
implementing this policy, and the progress made towards achieving those
objectives will be disclosed in the corporate governance report.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a nomination policy which sets out the following
nomination procedures, criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of Directors.

Selection Criteria

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following criteria in
evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships:

° character and integrity;
° qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience that are relevant to the Company’s business and

corporate strategy;

° willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a Board
member and other directorships and significant commitments;
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° requirement for the Board to have independent directors in

accordance with the Listing Rules (as amended from time to time)

and whether the candidates would be considered independent

with reference to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing

Rules;

° board diversity policy and any measurable objectives adopted by

the Company for achieving diversity on the Board; and

° such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business.

Directors Nomination Procedures

The Board has the relevant procedures for Directors’ nomination

which are pursuant to the Listing Rules and the Company’s articles of

association as below:

(@) Appointment of New Director

U

(i)

(i)

(v)

the Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall, upon
receipt of the proposal on appointment of new director
and the biographical information (or relevant details) of the
candidate, evaluate such candidate based on the criteria
as set out in Selection Criteria to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship;

if the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall rank them by
order of preference based on the needs of the Company and
reference check of each candidate (where applicable);

the Nomination Committee shall make recommendation
to the Board in respect of the appointment of appropriate
candidate for directorship; and

for any person that is nominated by a shareholder for election
as a director at the general meeting of the Company, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall evaluate
such candidate based on the criteria as set out in Selection
Criteria to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship and where appropriate, the Nomination
Committee and/or the Board shall make recommendation to
shareholders in respect of the proposed election of director at
the general meeting.
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(b) Re-election of Director at General Meeting

(i)

(i)

the Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall review the
overall contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
director including his/her attendance of Board meetings
and, where applicable, general meetings, and the level of
participation and performance on the Board;

the Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall also review
and determine whether the retiring director continues to meet
the criteria as set out in Selection Criteria; and

the Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall then make
recommendation to shareholders in respect of the proposed
re-election of director at the general meeting.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Lee

Man Chiu (the chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Luo Ting

and Mr. Jiang Guoliang, the majority of the Remuneration Committee are

the independent non-executive Directors which complied with rule 3.25

of the Listing Rules. The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee

include, among other things:

o consult the chairman of the Board and/or chief executive about

their remuneration proposals for other executive Directors;

. make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and

structure for all Directors’ and senior management remuneration

and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for

developing remuneration policy;

° review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals

with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;
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make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management;

make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors;

consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the
Company and its subsidiaries;

review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct;

ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration; and

conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may
from time to time be contained in the memorandum and articles
of association of the Company or imposed by the Listing Rules or
applicable law.

The Remuneration Committee may consult the Chairman about their

proposals relating to the remuneration of other executive Directors. The

Remuneration Committee takes into consideration industry practices and

norms in compensation, in addition to the performance relative to the

industry and the performance of the individual Directors. The Company

reviews the remuneration package annually taking into consideration

of the market practice, competitive market position and individual

performance.

During the Year, 4 meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held.

The work done by the Remuneration Committee during the Year includes

the following:

1.

2.

3.

determining the policy for the remuneration of executive Directors;

assessing performance of executive Directors; and

approving the terms of an executive Director’s Service Contract.

LEAP Holdings Group Limited
2019 Annual Report

o BMENKRTEELRSHEEENFHGTE
MEESRIER:

o FMOTEEMFMAESSRHES:

o EERBRRMAOZI AN AR R
BE  ARADERENERRAEBERA
H) 1 PR AR

o MEARMAERARTEERSRELEME
LRSI AR EEMAEEE -
IATERZ S B E A MR — B0 HRpEHE
BWGER—B BETMAXTFARRE  THB
%

s RERMERNBEFET/REMEENER
EREEMYEMBERE:

s WMREMNEFIHEABBATSSEE
EEBCHIFB: &

o TAARREMMERAM N AR EFFTE
N Bk b AR B 3 A O AN A E B9 ]
ER R

FHEZE SR BERMEMNITE S ZH I EEE
AERZER -BBRTRZRARENEEZ
KRBV TREPIRGTMRE T EFHEZEEE
B2H - AREEERETHEL  WIHHEFMNRR
MARKRE  REBRAFHEE-

W RRRBITOREFINE B &S5 F M
ERNFRETHN IR
1. EBEERTEENHFMIEK:
2. FHERITEREHRIR R

3. HERTEERBAONGER-



The attendance records of each member of the Remuneration Committee
are set out below:

Remuneration Committee

FHEES
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Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
HE REeERERESERNIH

Mr. Lee Man Chiu (Chairman) (appointed on 30 April 2018)
EXREE (FE) (RZE-—NENA=+HEZRT)
Mr. Luo Ting (appointed on 9 July 2018)

BREE (RZE-N\FLANBEZE)

Mr. Jiang Guoliang (appointed on 16 May 2019)
BRERSEE (RZZ-NFRATRBERE)

Mr. Chan King Chung (resigned on 16 May 2019)
BREBSEE (RZE—NFRATNAHT)

Mr. Cheng Yuk (resigned on 9 July 2018)

BEEE (RZZE-—NFLANBEE)

Mr. Chan Chun Yiu Thomas (resigned on 30 April 2018)
BORRRSEE (RZZ— \FHA=THEIT)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee in accordance with
the requirements of among Listing Rules with terms of reference aligned
with the provision of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The Audit Committee is to serve as a focal point for communication
among other directors, the external auditors, and the management
as their duties relate to financial and other reporting, internal controls
and the audits; and to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities
by providing an independent review of financial reporting, be satisfying
themselves as to the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls and
as to the efficiency of the audits. The Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Zhouxin (the chairman
of the Audit Committee), Mr. Lee Man Chiu and Mr. Jiang Guoliang. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee include:

° to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditors, and to approve and review the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors;

2/4
1/4
N/A 73 3
4/4
3/4

1/4

ERERE

ARAFMRE ETHHRABEEK IBEZEEE A
B R E E E AR BRI ETE B AT A
ZHEN B -HRERZEE BRI NEEBER
Hfth R AR IR R B AR AAREE - O IR A E M
EREINERHMREEEBR EEEE T
BRRMEMEREEBEU BN ESESETH
B AR T E R B A EPE G 5B B

F TR - BREEgH = BB LN
E= (MFAMEE (BREEGER)  TXH
FERBBERTE) EX - -BREEGNEERE
B

. Igéa?fﬁl\ﬂgﬁﬁﬁfﬁm%{i~Z§H%&§E%

MESGRMES  WHOE R IMNEZE
EWZ@H%&% bﬁk

AT E B AR A A
—E-hEER



40

Corporate Governance Report
EREIGHRS

° to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

° to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditors
to supply non-audit services;

° to monitor the integrity of financial statements and the annual report
and accounts and half-year report, and to review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them;

° to discuss the internal control system with management of our
Group to ensure that the management of our Group has performed
its duty to have an effective internal control system; and

° to develop and review our Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board
and monitor our Group’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate any activity
within its terms of reference and the authority to obtain outside legal or
other independent professional advice if it considers necessary. It is given
access to and assistance from the employees and reasonable resources
to discharge its duties properly.

During the Year, the Board had no disagreement with the Audit
Committee’s view on the re-appointment of the external auditors. The
financial statements for the Year have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held 2 meetings to review the
interim financial results of the Group for the six months ended 30
September 2018 and to review the Group’s financial result for the year
ended 31 March 2018 for submission to the Board for approval, review
the internal control and risk management systems of the Group, oversee
the audit process and make recommendation on the re-appointment of
the external auditors.
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The attendance records of each member of the Audit Committee are set
out below:

Audit Committee

BEREES
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ERZEBEEKBMNBFRER XS

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
HE REeERERESRNIH

Mr. Li Zhouxin (Chairman) (re-designated on 16 May 2019)
FREMEE (TE) (RZE—NFRA+BEAD)
Mr. Lee Man Chiu (appointed on 30 April 2018)
FXRBEE (RZE-N\FOA=1THEZE)

Mr. Jiang Guoliang (appointed on 16 May 2019)
BRERSEE (RZZ-NFRATRBERE)

Mr. Chan King Chung (resigned on 16 May 2019)
BREBSEE (RZE—NFRATNAHT)

Mr. Chan Chun Yiu Thomas (resigned on 30 April 2018)
FORRSEAE (KT N\FHA=+HEIE)

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities for consolidated financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditors’ Report” on pages 95 to 100.

Annual audit fees of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the Year payable to the external auditors are approximately HK$1,150,000
(for the year ended 31 March 2018: approximately HK$950,000). In
addition, approximately HK$360,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2018:
HK$400,000) was incurred for other non-audit services.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorites) ZEEDEHEBEIE RN EREHIABE (H4E
of risk management and internal control to the Audit Committee, who BEIEN ) EE FEZZES BRLZECKEET
oversees management in the design, implementation and monitoring of I B ¥ @ & 12 M NS 55| E R Rt B
the risk management and internal control systems. B o

Main features of the risk management and EEEERADBEFIFHENTERFE

internal control systems

The risk management framework of the Group and main responsibilities of ~ AEEMEG EIBIER MIEZRAKEN T ERE
the members in the framework are described as follows: R

Board of Directors
ZEEg

Audit Committee

ERERS
Board level
ExaEmE
Senior management level
EREEERER
Management of subsidiaries
MELRERE
Member Main Responsibilities
ME TERE
The Board ° Set up goals for risk management strategy, assess and determine the nature and
= extent of risk acceptable to achieve the strategy goals;
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Establish and maintain a proper and effective risk management and internal control
systems; and

BYREFEEREMORERERRAIIZEREE R

Review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems annually.
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Member
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Audit Committee

EREEE
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Main Responsibilities
TERE

o Assist the Board in overseeing the risk level and the design and performance of the risk
management and internal control systemS'

T BhEE =g BE AR AR K T LA R R B i 2 Ko v A 4% ) I ) SR 5t BT T IR O

o Discuss the risk management and internal control systems with the management,
ensure the management has fulfilled its responsibility of establishing effective systems;

HEREIwRAREERAGZEHGHE BREEZEECRITREEZLARNGIE

. Ensure that the internal audit function has sufficient resources for operation and has a
proper position, review and supervise its performance;

RN ETBEAERCNEREFELEENILA  BEREBEEKY:

. Keep updated of various major risks confronted by the Group and the risk
management status, make decisions for effective risk control;

FHASEEERNSREARMR KRR E RN - 1FH B R R R R K

. Report the risk status of the Group and issues to be concerned or improved to the
Board on a regular basis;
THRESGRERAESENRBRAR IR A FETHTEHIME

o Facilitate risk management and assessment, regularly appoint relevant accountable
persons to implement risk assessment;

(R b B IR AT E MR AR A E AETTRRTE

o Organise and promote the establishment of the risk management system at the group
level;

AEEDEEEEMNRREEBRER

o Review material risk assessment report and various risk management reports;
BEEBAARTERELSERRERRE

° Review major risk management measures, rectify and deal with the decisions made or
actions adopted by relevant organisations or individuals beyond the risk management
system;
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Member Main Responsibilities
ME TERE
Audit Committee (continued) o Engage relevant persons to organise and coordinate various departments and projects
EZZEg (H) to carry out identification and assessment of significant risks at the group level,
summarise and analyse such information, submit risk assessment and various risk
management reports; and
FEMABAZKGAZNPFIRIES  HEEBmAE KRR BRESTHD KT I
,ﬁ@ ,% AER BRARMGERSERBRERRE: &
° Carry out risk management for other major issues.
HHMBAMBETRRER -
Management of subsidiaries ° Ensure that the subsidiaries carry out the risk assessment in compliance with the risk
B FER assessment manual formulated by the Group;
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Review and approve the risk assessment results of the subsidiaries in respect of the
business;
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Ensure that the subsidiaries implement effective risk management;

AN BAREREE BN AR ET

Monitor the principal business risks confronted by the subsidiaries and the
effectiveness of relevant risk management measures; and

EEMBAREGN T 2XEKERKEBRREREEOERE: K

Allocate resources such as fund and workforce to the subsidiaries for implementation
of the risk assessment projects.
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The process used to identify, assess and ARER FEEREEEXRRARNE
management of principal risks FF

The risk management process of the Group is described as follows:

Risk identification
e %l

Risk analysis

[2\B 23 4T

Risk response

B

Control measures
7= | T b

Risk control

TR gz 22

Risk management report

R EE RS

AEEMREREERFNMAOT

identify the current risks confronted.
R B A ER A @k o

conduct analysis on the risk including the impact extent and possibility of occurrence.
WY EREREENTRMETRR DN -

choose a proper risk response method and develop a risk mitigation strategy.

BBEE )RR E ST I 27 R R A

propose up-to-date internal control measures and policy and process.

Tt 3 25 BF A 70 BB 428 o) 5 78 Ko R 2R B R AR ©

continuously monitor the risks identified and implement relevant internal control
measures to ensure the effective operation of the risk response strategy.

58 BRI B 38 ) [ e X B e AL R ) P T 42 1) e R [ e B S SRS 0 B BUE AT

summarise results of risk assessment and analysis and internal audit, formulate and
report an action plan.

AR R TS O KA BERETHAR - BIETTE R EIAL AN AE R -

The process used to review the effectiveness AU RBEERABEHFESR

of the risk management and internal control

M R R E R QBB FIR R T

systems and to resolve material internal

control defects:

The Group establishes a risk management information and NEEFLI A
communication channel that is functional within the whole basic risk &R EIE(S)
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control procedure, connects different levels in the reporting system and %k - %—} Eﬁi RESEN  BREENRE BN

different departments and operation units, so as to ensure timely, accurate  EEE A NN ERRESEE T 7T REHR

and complete communication of information, laying a solid foundation for — X o

the monitoring and improvement of risk management.
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Different departments and business units of the Group regularly inspect
and examine their own risk management process in order to locate
the shortcomings and remedy the situation if possible. Their inspection
and examination reports are delivered to the Group’s risk management
department in time.

The Board further considers that (i) there was no material issue relating
to the Group’s risk management and internal controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions of
the Group; and (i) that there were adequate staff with appropriate and
adequate qualifications and experience, resources for accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions, and adequate training programmes
had been provided during the Year.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

The Company has engaged Ms. Wong Po Ling, Pauline and Mr. Shi
Shaoming as the joint company secretaries. In compliance with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules, Ms. Wong Po Ling, Pauline and Mr. Shi Shaoming
has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the Year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board approved and adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) which outlines general principles for the determination and
payment of dividend to its Shareholders. Dividends or distributions by
the Company shall be determined and declared in accordance with the
applicable laws and regulations, the Articles and the Dividend Policy. The
Board may amend any provision in the Dividend Policy if it considers
necessary.
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Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, that, in recommending or declaring
dividends, the Company may declare and pay dividends to the
Shareholders by way of cash or by other means that the Board considers
appropriate. It is the policy of the Board, in recommending dividends, to
allow the Shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits, and at the
same time, to ensure the Company to retain adequate reserves for future
growth. The Company’s decision to declare or to pay any dividends in
the future, and the amount of such dividends will depend upon, among
other things, the current and future operations, financial condition, liquidity
position and capital requirements of the Group, as well as dividends
received from the Company’s subsidiaries and associates, which in turn
will depend on the ability of those subsidiaries and associates to pay a
dividend. In addition, any final dividends for a financial year will be subject
to the approval of the Shareholders. The declaration and payment of
dividends by the Company is also subject to any restrictions under the
laws of Cayman Islands, the laws of Hong Kong, the Company’s articles
of association and any applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Whilst this Dividend Policy reflects the Board’s current views on the
financial and cash-flow position of the Group, the Board will continue to
review this Dividend Policy from time to time and the Board may exercise
its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or modify this
Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary. There is no
assurance that dividends will be declared or paid in any particular amount
for any given period. The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a
legally binding commitment by the Company that any dividend will be
paid in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and understanding of the
Group’s business, performance and strategies. The Company also
recognises the importance of timely and non-selective disclosure of
information, which will enable shareholders and investors to make the
informed investment decisions.
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To promote effective communication, the Company maintains the
website at www.leapholdings.hk, where up-to-date information on the
Company’s business operations and developments, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are available for
public access. Latest information on the Group including annual and
interim reports, announcements and press releases are updated on the
Company’s website in a timely fashion.

The 2019 AGM will be held on 23 August 2019. The notice of the AGM
will be sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the
AGM.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a
special general meeting

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any one or more shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group to be discussed
at shareholders’ mesting. Proposal shall be sent to the Board or the
company secretary by written requisition to the company secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 902-903, 9th
Floor, Sino Plaza, 255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
addressing them to the company secretary or relevant personnel by mail
to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 902-
903, 9th Floor, Sino Plaza, 255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there has been no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

INTRODUCTION

The Group is principally engaged in () foundation works and ancillary
services and construction wastes handling services; (i) money lending
business; and (i) investments in securities.

While striving for performance, the Group pursues business sustainability
by being a responsible corporate citizen and is committed to maintaining
high standards of business practices in relation to environmental
protection, social responsibility and corporate governance.

ABOUT THE REPORT

This report is the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
(collectively “the ESG Report”) published by the Group, which discloses
the Group’s measures and performance on sustainable development
topics in a transparent and open manner, in order to increase
stakeholders’ confidence and understanding on the Group.

Reporting Standards

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the “ESG Guide”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) set out in Appendix
27 of Main Board Listing Rules. The ESG Report provides a simplified
overview on the environmental, social and governance performance of
the Group. The information in the ESG Report is derived from the Group’s
official documents and statistics, as well as the integration and summary
of monitoring, management and operational information provided by
subsidiaries of the Group.

Reporting Year

All the information in the ESG Report reflects the performance of the
Group in environmental management and social responsibility from 1 April
2018 to 31 March 2019 (the “Reporting Period”). This ESG Report is
released annually by the Group for public review so as to improve the
transparency and responsibility of information disclosure.
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Reporting Scope

The ESG Report focuses on the Group’s key business activities carried
out in Hong Kong, which include the segments of foundation works
and ancillary services and construction wastes handling services, which
represent the Group’s major source of revenue and income. After the
comprehensive completion of data collection system and the Group’s
deepening in its environmental, social and governance work, the Group
has identified certain environmental, social and governance issues (‘ESG
issues”) relevant to the Group, which have been assessed by considering
their materiality and importance to the Group’s principal activities and
stakeholders as well as the Group. Those identified ESG issues and Key
Performance Indicators (“KPIs”) have been disclosed in the ESG Report.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Stock Exchange has set forth four principles for reporting in the
ESG Guide: Materiality, Quantitative, Balance and Consistency, which
should form the basis for preparing the ESG Report. As The Stock
Exchange emphasizes, stakeholder engagement is the method by which
materiality is assessed. Through stakeholder engagement, companies can
understand wide-ranging views and identify material environmental and
social issues.

The Group believes that effective feedback from stakeholders not
only contributes to comprehensive and impartial evaluation of our
environmental, social and governance performance, but also enables
us to improve our performance based on their feedback. Therefore,
the Group has engaged in open and regular communication with our
stakeholder groups including shareholders and investors, employees,
clients, suppliers, sub-contractors, government and the media. Over
the years, the Group has continued to fine-tune our sustainability
focus, addressing pressing issues. The table below shows how the
Group communicates with key stakeholder groups and their respective
concerns.
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Table 1: Stakeholders and Engagement

Methods

Stakeholders
BE

Shareholders and
Investors

BRREEEE

Clients

®F

Employees

(==

Suppliers/
Sub-contractors

HEEm, o HE

Interests and concerns

iR EE

Return on investment and dividends
RAE B RS

Corporate strategy and governance
EERKLES

Risk mitigation and management

[l B e R K 3R

Robust operation management
BRI EEE

Full compliance with laws and regulations

THEETERNER
Sustainability performance of operations
EENFERE

Compensation and benefits
oM K A2 A

Occupational health and safety
BERREREZSE

Career development opportunities
BELRES

Corporate culture and well-being

REXE K mik

Long-term partnership
REVGIERH IR
Ethical business practices
EREEETER
Supplier/Sub-contractor
assessment criteria

HRER 5 AR IR

The business of the Group affects different stakeholders, and

stakeholders have different expectations on the Group. The Group will

maintain communication with stakeholders continuously, collect opinions

of stakeholders through different forms more extensively, and make

substantive analysis more comprehensively. At the same time, the Group

will enhance the reporting principles of materiality, quantification, balance

and consistency, in order to define the content of the ESG Report and

presentation of the information that is more in line with the expectations of

stakeholders.
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R EHERSELSK

Engagement channels

SHERE

° Annual General Meeting
REBERE

o Interim and annual reports, corporate
websites

REIRE R M

° Announcements, notices of meetings,
circulars
RNE - REBE -BH

° Interim and annual reports, corporate
websites
HEIRE R D EE

° Regular meetings and communication
EHgRELER

° In-house training programmes
N EBIE AT 2l

° Performance reviews and appraisals
RIS KT E

° Promote career development and

enhance competence at all levels

HPBEBERIREEEENHTES

° Procurement processes
KB mIE

° Audits and assessments
Bz AT
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group is aware of its responsibility and required commitment to
the environmental sustainable development of its on-going operations.
The Group supports “Green Environment” ideas, comply with the
requirements of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (‘HKSAR”)
laws, and specific guides in the industry, and are committed to the social
responsibility of protecting the environment as a responsible corporation.
The Group has implemented policies and taken measures to ensure the
business and operation to be energy, water and resources saving.

The Group had not been subjected to any reported violation in relation
to its emissions and waste discharges or other environmental issues and
did not note any material non-compliance with environmental laws and
regulations during the Reporting Period.

A1. Emissions and waste

The Group understands that construction projects may generate
pollution and impact to the environment undoubtedly. In order to
govern the environmental management and minimize the impact
caused by the Group’s operations, the Group has formulated
relevant policies relating to environmental management and
established an environmental management system in accordance
with ISO14001, which has been integrated into our daily operations.
The Group is strictly committed to complying with requirements
stipulated in the relevant local environmental laws and regulations.

The Group has a dedicated department to coordinate and
implement environmental protection measures and objectives, and
to address environmental issues. The Group carries out a series
of environmental management measures at construction sites,
covering planning, materials procurement and various construction
procedures. The Group has also adopted measures concerning
noise, dust, pollution discharge, waste, energy, carbon emissions
and biodiversity to ensure that all business activities are strictly in
compliance with local laws and regulations.

In specific, the Group has also adopted the relevant procedures
and guidelines relating to construction waste management, in order
to govern the management and disposal process of construction
wastes and maximize the reuse and recycling.
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The Group strives to constantly improve its environmental
management system, in order to minimize negative impacts on the
environment.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
would have a significant impact on the environment or on our
Group.

Exhaust Gas Emissions

Exhaust gas emissions from construction sites may cause nuisance
to both construction workers and communities nearby. During
the construction and demolition process, air pollutants including
nitrogen oxides (“NOX”), sulphur oxides (“SOx”) and Particulate
Matter (“PM”) are generated by construction machines and
vehicles, which consume diesel and other fossil fuels.
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Exhaust Gas Emissions Performance Summary FEREIN KB E
2019 2018

Type of exhaust gas Unit Quantity Quantity

—ZE-NF —E-N\F
BERER By BE HE
NOx kg 2,169.24 880.97
=¥l )] F5e
SOx kg 0.74 1.83
=R T
PM kg 155.98 63.35
SERLY) T
For the level of exhaust gas incurred by the Group in 2019, the NOx HRZZ-NFAEEEANERKTE:

and PM have been increased significantly comparing to 2018, due
to the frequent travel between construction sites and dumping sites
compare to last Reporting Period as we secured more large scale
projects under planning stage.

For the construction business, air pollution is one of our key
concerns on environmental protection. Related operational
procedure is established to control air pollution emissions of dust,
fumes, smokes, obnoxious gases and other air-borne particulates
within the legal limits and tolerable limits of the affected persons.
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For dust emissions control, vehicles carrying sand, debris or other
materials likely to generate dust are fully covered with canvas before
leaving the site. Besides, all vehicles are jet-washed prior to leaving
the site. Wet work method should be used during cleaning of higher
units/floors to reduce dust. The storage areas for sand, cement and
aggregates are located as far as possible from sensitive receptors
such as public housing, school, hospital and hostel etc. Stockpile
of sand and aggregates etc. at concrete batching plant is sheltered
with canvas if possible to prevent dust pollution. To control the
emissions of fumes and obnoxious gas, proper disposal and
removal of unwanted air-conditioner is needed and use of halon-
containing fire-extinguishers is prohibited. All gas cylinders should
be kept at a safe place and shall take all the precaution during
hot work/activities. Air quality of sites is monitored to ensure the
effectiveness of the mitigation measures.

To further manage exhausts gas emissions, construction related
plants and vehicles are properly maintained to ensure compliance
with related standards. All applicable machineries are certified with
Non-Road Mobile Machinery (NRMM), which are recognized as
more environmental friendly and emission-compliant operations.
The Group has also installed air pollution control equipment on gas
discharge ports of compressors, crawler cranes and generators.
Designated employees are employed to conduct regular
maintenance and monitoring work on machines and vehicles to
ensure no heavily polluted black smoke are emitted. Marked Ultra-
low-sulphur diesel (“MULSD”) are used for the diesel-operated
constructional plant on site. Random testing of sulphur content
is performed for the plant. Records of MULSD consumption and
testing are properly kept.

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions

The Group is committed to maintaining the quality of the
environment, using clean energy, reducing pollution and waste
during operation to reduce and even eliminate the adverse impact
on the environment from operating activities and emissions.
Over the years, the Group has been committed to environmental
protection and has adopted a number of appropriate measures
and monitoring methods to ensure that its responsibility for
environmental protection has been fulfilled.
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In our business operation, the Group actively advocates energy
conservation and emission reduction by continuously increasing
investment in environmental protection. Through the use of clean

energy and other measures, the Group reduces the generation of

exhaust pollutants from the source to avoid environmental pollution.
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GHG Emissions Performance Summary B ERBHINKE N E
2019
2019 2018 Intensity? -
GHG scope'’ Unit Quantity Quantity  unit per project
—E-hE
—B-hE —B-N\E mE—
BERBEHE By HE 6= BEEREN
Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1)
BEEAEREBHM (SEE)
— Diesel and petrol consumption Tonnes 101.11 297.96 4.81
- S A E R Mg
Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2)
HEREREHEMR (HE2)
— Electricity consumption Tonnes 121.87 194.64 5.80
-BEHEE Mg
Other indirect GHG emissions (Scope 3)
HipfE R = mEsHER (FE3)
— Electricity used for processing fresh water, Tonnes 11,824.20 6,635.18 563.06
sewage and others
- BEIERK KR EMFERMNE 158
Total GHG emissions Tonnes 12,047.18 7,127.78 573.68
RERBRABENE U7
According to the figures above, there is significant increase of GHG BE LT —F—NFREREIHENE

emissions in 2019. It was mainly due to more frequent travel to the
PRC for meetings and seeking more business opportunities during
the Reporting Period.

Note:

GHG emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent and was
in reference to, including but not limited to, the reporting requirements
of the “GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard”
issued by the World Resources Institute and the World Business Council
for Sustainable Development, “Summary of Emission Factors for the
Guidance for Voluntary Corporate Greenhouse Gas Reporting 2015”
issued by Ministry for the Environment of New Zealand, the Sustainability
Report 2017 published by the CLP Power Hong Kong Limited and the
HKEX - KPlIs: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs.

As at 31 March 2019, the total number of the completed and ongoing
construction projects of the Group was 21 (2018: 18 projects), which
would also be used for calculating other intensity data.
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In addition, climate change has been an increasing concern for
parties including the Government of HKSAR, general public and
investors. The Group has thereby responded through limiting
carbon footprints of its construction activities. The Group also
strives to use regionally sourced materials produced within 800km
from the construction sites, where applicable, in order to reduce
exhaust gas and GHG emitted from freight transportation.

Consumption of electricity is proved to cause indirect GHG
emissions through its generation process. The Group has
implemented measures as stated in section A2 “Energy Efficiency”
below in order to reduce energy consumption, and thereby
minimizing carbon footprint.

Hazardous Wastes

Due to the nature of the projects being participated during the
Reporting Period, the Group did not generate significant hazardous
wastes. However, we still strive to mitigate the hazardous wastes
generated from our operation process as much as possible.

Sewage Disposal and Management

Wastewater generated from different construction sites without
proper treatment may block nearby drains and cause pollution.
As a result, the Group takes further necessary steps to monitor
and maintain wastewater quality. The amount of wastewater
consumption during the Reporting Period is stated at Aspect A2
“Water Efficiency Management”.

The sewage produced from construction sites that need to be
discharged would first be treated at the sewage treatment tank, to
ensure it meets the requirements of the sewage discharge license
and would subsequently be discharged through sewage drains.

Nonpoint source water pollution is often caused by land runoff,
seepage and drainage after precipitation and construction works.
To avoid leakage of wastewater to nearby communities, temporary
drainage network has been established on site to systematically
collect all discharges. Designated workers are appointed to
properly manage the drainage system and ensure that there are no
blockages of drains and sewers caused by debris and sediments.
Sand bags are placed along the site boundary to prevent any
leakage of surface runoff where possible.
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Waste Disposal and Management

Wastes are well managed on-site. To ensure waste management
process is both environmentally acceptable and in full compliance
with statutory and contractual requirements, waste handling,
transportation and disposal procedures are implemented. We
provide guidance and instruction on waste management to all site
staff. The Group has adopted a number of measures to manage the
disposal process of the waste, including but not limited to:

- According to the relevant waste management policies of
the Group, all departments and workshops classify the solid
wastes generated and take measures for their comprehensive
utilization to reduce disposal pressure. For example, inert and
non-inert waste are identified before disposal;

- The subsidiaries of the Group engage qualified waste
collectors to collect all kinds of domestic and construction
waste. These waste collected are disposed at the designated
landfill and treatment facilities; and

- Non-hazardous waste should be recycled and utilized as far
as possible. Non-hazardous waste and hazardous waste that
cannot be reused and recycled will be entrusted to a qualified
waste disposal company.
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In its operation, the Group inevitably generates waste. However,
with effective waste disposal strategies and policies, the Group
has minimized the environmental risks and impacts caused by
the waste. During the Reporting Period, the consumption volume
generated by the Group is set out as below:

E§ B AL E AT R E L
e '%%E&Mf%ﬁﬁﬁW&ﬁ
®o $§IEM%%%mXWh%H
%ﬂxﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁW'$%@§i%
HREEHFIIMT

2019
2019 2018 Intensity -
Types of non-hazardous waste Unit Quantity Quantity  unit per project
o
—B-RE  CB-N\F BB —
BEBRYES B HE HE SEEEEN
Inert construction and demolition (“C&D") Tonnes 19,058 42,794 907.52
waste disposed to public fill facilities
(including sands, bricks and concrete)
mAFHEERMEEENBIEIREED WA
(BEY - BAERLT)
Non-inert C&D waste disposed at landfill (bamboo, Tonnes 208 904 9.90

plastics, glass, wood and other organic
materials)

RIS R B BB MR R Mg
(7 28R B A SR B B AR

According to the figures above, the inert C&D and non-inert C&D
have been significantly reduced in 2019. It is mainly due to more
projects are engaged but under planning stage comparing to last
Reporting Period. This contributes to a lower figures in emission of
non-hazardous waste.

The Group has been proactively looking for solutions to minimize or
even avoid generation and disposal of wastes. The Group has then
applied the 4R principles of waste reduction — i.e. reduce, reuse,
recycle and replace — where feasible. For example, to reduce waste,
all construction activities are specially planned by professionals
to minimize and avoid unnecessary resources input throughout
the piling process. To reuse materials, construction workers are
directed to reuse construction materials whenever possible in the
same project or in other projects of the Group. For example, extra
steels are reused to produce construction materials and to support
temporary construction works on site.

Other measures for handling wastes include:

- Placing recycle bins around the Group’s offices, properties
and construction sites to collect general wastes such as
cardboards, metals and plastic containers, and hence
encouraging recycling practices.

LEAP Holdings Group Limited
2019 Annual Report

RiE BB - IR Y MF R Y
BEMER —E—NFRERL TEBTHAER
1 EREMERL P RELZBEAERR
HEBIBEER - L BB R EEEREYPINE -

KEBEEEGESKRIEEHPES KB
REE R BRR T R e N EEE R FTHIB N
T BERAT4RBREERR-BVEAER -
=EB -BEREBMBENRER - AR
B FBRERIEEHIHEEAERFT
RE EWEITEEDTRERORER
TRBRERIA - BEFF AL E£07]
TERT BETABEREAEEMAR
BHSKHEMBEPEAEEFFARZEN
B filan - S5 R EE M S 88 A A AR S M
BRI TH R EE TR -

HtREBEYNERERE

- EARRENRAE MEREETH
BERMERWAE  WEAR BN
PHARE-REY ZBEKNE

B



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

A2. Use of Resources

The Group continues with initiatives to introduce resource

efficiency and eco-friendly measures to the Group’s operations,

and is committed to optimizing the use of resources in all of its

business operations. With a view to enhance efficiency of the

use of resources, the Group had incorporated the concept of

environmental protection into the process of site construction

operations and office administration.

Regarding to the usage of materials conservation, employee in sites
should:

Prevent overflow or spillage when transferring diesel;

Keep timber, rebar, cement and other materials in good
condition;
Reduce, reuse and recycle papers, timber and other
materials where possible;

Power off compressors, generator sets, bar-bending
machines, etc. when not in use and regular maintenance of
equipment/machinery is required to increase the efficiency;

Switch off air-conditioners, lights, fans and radios etc. when
not in use to reduce electricity consumption. Water at the
vehicle-washing bay shall be reused and re-circulated.
Workers/sub-contractors shall switch off the pump and turn
off the running hose when not in use; and

Use ECO mode of all applicable construction machines.

A2.

BRI HEBRERBRS

EIRA A

—IBRAE - AEES s RRRIE MR AR
EBEER WHONEEMBRBEES
BIEERER - BRFABRMAYE A&
ECSRABSBARSHETILERBRA
EfTHORIEF

HREBHOMENFE R5ESE:

-  HEEHIHR SR SORE:

—  BEFEHAM B
B

KR R E A

- RAUBRIER BFARE KRR
O ARH R E AR R

—  ATRSXRE BR#- BEHAE -
HEHEREE AR EFRASER
EREHsERE s

- ABIRBRLBAEE EH-EBE - EBBM&
W Z S N R RS FEREEA o EEE S
R/KEEEFERTEWER - TEA
8 /5 I 7 IR A e K A (5 R B [ B
TR AME AR KEERE : &

—  VDAECOR X iR{E2 50 F Ay i LK

i, o

MEEREEARA
—hEER

59



60

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIS HEREIGHRS

In addition, the Group also promotes to its employees in office the
concept of efficient use of resources, included but not limited to:

- Keep doors and windows closed when air conditioners are
in operation, and maintain the optimal temperature at 25.5
Degree Celsius;

- Encourage our staff to save water and reduce domestic
sewage in toilet;

- Turn off all lights, computers, office equipment and air
conditioners when no one is in office;

- Use double-sided printing instead of single-sided printing;

- Implement the 3R principle, which is “reducing, reusing and
recycling”; and

- Make use of scanned or electronic copies, in the ordinary
course of business.

Energy Efficiency

Energy policy has been developed to set energy conservation
as one of the Group’s fundamental policies. All employees must
implement the adopted measures, including the purchase of
energy-efficient products and services, and assume responsibility
for the Group’s overall energy efficiency. By building up an energy
management system, we develop and regularly review our energy
objectives and targets to continuously enhance the Group’s energy
performance.

The Group’s energy management system is applicable to:
- The construction of buildings;

- Construction of site formation, roads and drainage and
foundation works; and

- Building activities to keep, restore and improve the facilities of
pbuildings and surroundings.
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The energy management system is implemented with annual review
to assist in achieving our energy saving objectives and targets.

Moreover, monthly monitoring of the usage of electricity and water
and other materials is implemented. Unexpected high consumption
of electricity will be investigated to find out the root cause and take
preventive measures.

Other energy efficiency initiatives include:

- Managing fuel and electricity usage through deployment of
high efficiency equipment; and

- Using Lighting Management System to control power voltage
and save energy.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s consumption in petrol,

BRI HEBRERBRS

HREEREE ARG T FETR URERFR
LLﬁlﬁdFﬁﬁﬁ BIERIER-

AN - AEE G P ERIKE REAM MR
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K& HRA - REBTH - 50m REIH

diesel and electricity were: BT
2019 Intensity -
2019 2018 Unit per
Energy type Unit Quantity Quantity project
—B-nE —E-NE C—E-NEBE-
BERER B HE #qE SEEEEN
Petrol litre 8,487 Nil 404.14
VU AT i
Diesel litre 38,307 113,630 1,824.14
E i NI
Electricity kWh 238,952 381,641 11,378.67
B TR

According to the figures above, the overall consumption in diesel
and electricity decreased in 2019. It is mainly due to more projects
are engaged but under planning stage comparing to last Reporting
Period. Besides, the extensive staff training about the environmental
friendly approach is also the reason for the drop.
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Water Efficiency Management

We strive to use water efficiently in every aspect of business. We
take water management very seriously and closely monitor water
use at construction sites. Hence, we set up water recycling systems
at most construction sites. During the Reporting Period, the water
consumption volume (is also being treated as the amount of
sewage discharge) of the Group’s office and project sites offices is
set out as below:

Rk BERE

ERKIRRZK - IR RIE - AT D ERKE
RER  BYEEREETMAK Bt ]
PERESNEETHREKRERBARS
RREHER - REERQERIER 8
ERMNAKE (TR A KEENE) 87
LA

2019 Intensity -

2019 2018 unit per

Water consumption Unit Quantity Quantity project

—E-hEF —E-NE ZE-hEEE-
Ak By HE e SEEEEN
Water cubic meters 13,719 4,702 653.29
Vi SLFTR
Compared to the last Reporting Period, the water consumption has 8 AR BB - AKEKEIE M K
increased significantly. The significant increase was mainly due to a PRI M EZRRRBIEE B —IRMEHK .
one-off water supplies for an existing project. The Group will keep AEEBEEBERAKE  WB OB AKE
on monitoring the water consumption volume and strive to remain ERFAREKTF
the intensity at a low level.
Packaging Materials BHEM B
The Group does not produce any finished products. Therefore, ZNE BN A EE TR A SR o A I - R P AR
we do not consume significant amount of package materials for HEBERENERBEME -
product packaging.
Environment and Natural Resources A3. BERBARER

Although the Group has minimized the impact on the environment
and natural resources, as an ongoing commitment to good
corporate citizenship, the Group endeavours to minimize negative
environmental impact of our business operations and our
investment portfolios, in order to achieve a sustainable development
for generating long-term values to our stakeholders and community
as a whole.

We regularly assess the environmental risks of our business and
adopt preventive measures as necessary to reduce the risks and
ensure the compliance of relevant laws and regulations.
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Noise Abatement

Noise nuisance is often caused by construction works, especially
during foundation piling operations. Therefore, the Group strictly
monitors and controls noise levels, and complies with such relevant
laws and regulations.

The Group will carefully identify any Noise Sensitive Receiver
(e.g. hospitals, educational institute, court of law, etc.) before
commencement of any construction works. Due care is exercised
by implementing more noise abatement measures and maintaining
more stringent noise control standards.

Due to the nature of percussive piles which involve the driving of
piles by percussive means (e.g. hammering), this type of piling
works is perceived to generate a substantial amount of noise and
vibration while the machines are in operation. Careful scheduling
of noisy piling works during less sensitive hours is engaged to
minimize noise nuisance to nearby neighbourhood. The hours of
operation which allow to perform foundation works are set out in
the Construction Noise Permit issued by the government. Under
certain circumstances, we may apply for special extension to carry
out works during prohibited hours but such special extension
would only be granted on the basis that the works carried out will
not disturb others, e.g. for construction sites located at remote
areas with no nearby residents. Although we strictly adhere to the
restricted hours of operations stipulated in the Construction Noise
Permit, we may receive complaints from nearby residents regarding
disturbances caused by operation of our machinery. Under such
circumstances, we will work with the relevant authorities and the
person making the complaint with the aim of introducing measures
(e.g. installing sound proofing) to mitigate the disturbances caused.

Machinery and equipment with Quality Powered Mechanical
Equipment (“QPME”) labels recognized by the Environmental
Protection Department are proved to be quieter, more
environmental-friendly and efficient as opposed to standard
equipment. The Group ensures that QPME labelled machineries
and equipment to lawfully operate in every construction site.
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SOCIAL
B1. Employment and Labour Practices

We are convinced that employees are the vital factor for the
success of an enterprise. We treat all employees the most valuable
assets of the Group and also the most intimate and reliable
partners of the Group in promoting sustainable development.
Through establishing a comprehensive employment management
system, we provide employees with a competitive, attractive, fair
and inclusive working environment. We make every effort to let all
employees fully unleash their value, and create a workplace where
employees feel satisfied and relaxed.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with employment-related laws and
regulations (i.e. Employment Ordinance) in Hong Kong that would
have a significant impact on the Group.

Recruitment and Remuneration

The Group strictly follows relevant employment laws of Hong
Kong. We offer an array of benefits on top of those required by
laws and regulations in Hong Kong to cater for the personal needs
of our employees and care for their physical and psychological

it &
Bi. EREREZIER

BIIRERE HRERDA AR ITE - # I
BEUEITEREEREENEE"
FRASEHESIFEZRNE LRRE
AENEH - RMEEEYEZHNEREE
HE REBREABFES Kol N AF
HBHTHERE - HAIBRNEE(IEEH
RADBEAREE ZE—A<SE TR
EZENS L E) 2

RBEMER  REBY TANBERNEBFE
BARBEREAFEZANBREERER
AR FOER (BIERIED) 2R -

BRI 3 B

AEBBERETEEERBERER RFIR
HBRBXRIERRENINSERF
NREEENEATE BOEENSLHE
B

development.

Working environment e Provide site workers with shower rooms and common rooms;

TERER R T AR ERIREE

Benefits e Provide meal allowance, business trip allowance, overtime compensation,
& A medical care, etc.;

RERRZEN LEWHY TEEKFHD BRRES:

Physical and psychological development e  Regularly host various sports activities, book sports venues for workers;

of employees

EHABESERRLEY RETREEDGE:

BEE LR e Host cultural and sports events; and

AR EEEY: &

e Conduct training course such as emotional management, occupational

safety, etc.

We hire employees through open recruitment, fair competition and
strict appraisals and recruit workers on a selective basis. We also
continue to strengthen local young talent recruitment in Hong Kong
by selecting suitable fresh graduates through recruitment activities
and employment fairs in universities.
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Promotion and Career Development

We cherish and care for our employees. Therefore, we attract
outstanding talents to join our workforce through establishing a
comprehensive promotion system so that our workforce can thrive
and grow from strength to strength.

The Group regularly conducts industrial benchmarking evaluation
and salary surveys for adjusting our remuneration level and
decisions on promotion in a timely manner. We adopt a
responsibility system for operational and management objectives,
and have developed systematic business indicators as an important
basis for annual performance and career development assessment.
Supervisor also discusses the performance with employee in
facilitating an effective 2-way communication for advancement.
Based on the evaluation result, we offer rewards to employees in
encouraging continuous improvement.

Communication Channels

The Group pays great attention to communicate between the
management and employees at all levels as we believe that good
communication will help to enhance the employees’ sense of
belonging, boost work morale and create a harmonious workplace.
We maintain regular communication with employees through
overall progress reporting, career development assessment,
seminar for new joiners, mailbox for recommendation, and
employee satisfaction survey. Survey forms are distributed in
understanding employees’ opinions on work responsibility,
working environment, organization and employee relationship,
compensation and benefits, etc. We also encourage employees at
all levels to contribute valuable insights on the Group’s business
operations and corporate culture through various channels to their
respective superiors, the person-in-charge or the human resources
departments of their respective entities or the officers-in-charge at
all levels.
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B2.

Gender Equality and Anti-discrimination

Equal opportunities and anti-discrimination are one of the core
parts of our corporate culture. We strive to establish and maintain a
diversified, inclusive and non-discriminatory working environment as
we appreciate different backgrounds and professional experience
of all employees. In our Employees’ Handbook, we undertake that
all employees, regardless of gender, age, nationality and race, are
entitled to equal job opportunities and benefits, covering training,
promotion, transfer, dismissal, layoff, employment conditions, etc.

We have also formulated the policies to provide clear and specific
guidelines on prohibition of any direct or indirect discrimination and
harassment concerning gender, marital status, pregnancy, disability,
family status, race, etc. Employees are welcome to report any
suspected cases through the whistleblowing mechanism to protect
the rights and interests of each employee.

Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing a safe and healthy working
environment. Therefore, we have adopted an occupational health
and safety system in accordance with relevant occupational
health and safety laws, rules and regulations. It is managed by
our safety department for the benefit of our employees and our
sub-contractors’ employees. In order to recognize the potential risk
in our daily operation, the Group conducts regular risk assessment
to provide our employees with a healthy and safe working
environment.

With effect from March 2015, our occupational health and safety
has been implemented in compliance with the requirements of
OHSAS18001:2007 international standards.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with health and safety-related laws and
regulations (i.e. Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance) in Hong
Kong that would have a significant impact on the Group.
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Safety Management

The Group has developed the policies for safety and health
management, and formulated specific work guidelines according
to various scopes and procedures of construction to guarantee the
safety and health of all employees, sub-contractors and the people
affected by any relevant construction works.

The Group has formed corporate safety management committee
which chaired by our Directors to formulate our safety policies and
to supervise its implementation. Our top and senior management
are also required to attend safety conferences to discuss safety
policies.

Our safety officer is responsible for setting up safety plans for
workers before carrying out their duties in construction sites,
inspecting machines and equipment to ensure they are safe to
be used, carrying out regular safe walks to maintain safe working
environment and site tidiness and handling safety incidents and
keeping safety records.

The Group also arranges regular internal safety audit. For example,
we offer equipment to comply with the safety requirements.
We also monitor and supervise compliance with our health
and safety system to ensure compliance with statutory and
contractual requirements and consider and implement appropriate
improvements for the existing system.

Safety Training

The Group provides regular safety training to our staff, including but
not limited to:

- Providing appropriate safety training and instructions
generally and for use of new working methods and
equipment;

- Providing all new employees at construction sites with
safety and health training, which covered the Group’s safety
and health policy, organizational structure for construction
site safety, safety code of conduct for construction site
employees, engineering characteristics and potential
risks, emergency response procedures and other relevant
guidelines on safety management; and
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B3.

- Carrying out safety hazard clearance, emergency drills, safety
advocacy and other related activities on the construction
sites.

Employee Health Management

The Group offers comprehensive health care coverage for our entire
employee such as health benefits. The Group also organizes work-
life balancing activities for employees, implemented green projects
at our office and carries out other activities to promote healthy
living practices. Health and safety communications are provided to
employees to present the relevant information and raise awareness
of occupational health and safety issues.

Development and Training

The Group believes that fostering and retaining talent are a core
part of ensuring sustainable development and strengthening its
competitiveness and regards staff as a strategic partner. Therefore,
we strive to provide support for employees’ career development
and personal value enhancement through systematic training
programmes.

Training and Development Policies

In order to improve employees’ level of skills and knowledge and
maximize their potentials, the Group has organized workshops,
seminars and training programmes for employees covering various
aspects. Employees are also encouraged to enroll in external
study opportunities and job-related courses to enrich themselves
through acquiring higher professional skills and qualifications.
Training courses and seminars designated by the Company are fully
sponsored. Employees are also supported by granting special fully-
paid leave for training.
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Training Management

We have developed relevant policies in controlling the training
related procedures to ensure the effectiveness of the training
program. A training plan is developed by management based on
the requirements from various departments and employees and
special technical employees are granted the necessary training for
acquiring the related technical licences. Management examines
the effectiveness of training programs, and provides improvement
plans. The facilitators should acquire the required qualifications in
delivering the training, for example, understanding the knowledge
and procedures of the operating sectors, and related laws,
regulations and standards.

Training Programmes

The Group provides sufficient training to our employees on
quality, environmental rules, and occupational safety to enhance
employees’ awareness, skills, and knowledge.

New employees shall undergo an orientation by the various
department heads to ensure that they are familiar with the
management system for quality, environmental, health, and safety
issues:

- Consequences of their work activities on workplace safety
and health including identifiable hazards, possible accidents/
incidents;

- Importance of conforming to the site staff manual (quality,
environmental, health and safety) to prevent potential
consequences including accidents or incidents due to
deviation from specific procedures such as safe work
procedures; and

- On-the-job training under the guidance of senior staff for a
period to be decided by the respective department heads will
be provided for the new employees.
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BS.

Furthermore, we provide different forms of training, not only
internal training, but also external special courses to equip staff
with professional skills and abilities to cater for the actual needs
of different departments and individuals. Safety induction course,
risk assessment and safe work procedure briefing are included in
internal training. External courses includes occupational first aid,
safety and health management and equipment operation courses,
etc. Course contents include ISO140001, ISO9001 trainings,
construction laws and good industry practices, etc.

Labour Standards

Prevention of Child Labour and Forced Labour

A set of procedures has been established to prevent employment
of child labour or forced labour through carefully reviewing the
personal information of job candidates and clearly explaining the
employment conditions to them.

We are well aware of the Group’s responsibility of monitoring the
compliance of sub-contractors in their employment of construction
workers. We have assigned officer responsible for labour relations
on each site to check the identities of workers through an electronic
access control system to ensure that each worker meets the
statutory requirements for on-site construction.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with child and forced labour-related laws
and regulations (i.e. Employment of Children Regulations, The
International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights, Employment
Ordinance, etc.) in Hong Kong that would have a significant impact
on the Group.

Supply Chain Management

We understand the importance of supply chain management
in mitigating the indirect environmental and social risks. We are
aware of the environmental and social practices of the suppliers/
sub-contractors, and try to engage suppliers/sub-contractors
with responsible acts to the society in view of green supply chain
management.
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Supply Chain Management Structure

In order to ensure that our suppliers and sub-contractors have met
clients’ and our requirements regarding quality, environmental and
safety standards, we formulated standard and stringent procedures
in selecting suppliers and sub-contractors. Our procurement
manager maintains an approved supplier and sub-contractor list.
Assessments are carried out for our suppliers and sub-contractors
at least on an annual basis by our contract managers and project
managers. Regular meetings will be held with sub-contractors to
introduce and remind them to meet all necessary requirements. The
materials purchased from suppliers and works performed by sub-
contractors will be checked and monitored on a regularly basis.
Suppliers or sub-contractors may be suspended or removed from
the approved supplier and sub-contractor list if they are failed to
fulfil our standards.

Environmental and Social Responsibility of Suppliers/Sub-
contractors

The Group works closely with its sub-contractors and suppliers
who are committed to high quality, environmental, health and
safety standards. We are strive to ensure that suppliers and sub-
contractors conform to the quality, environmental, occupational
health and safety requirements of the company. In controlling
the purchasing system, potential suppliers and sub-contractors
who can meet the qualification requirement to supply goods and
services will be identified by quantity surveyors or purchasers.
The suppliers or sub-contractors should at least have a certified
quality and environmental, health and safety system (e.g.
ISO9001, ISO14001, OHSAS18001, etc.). Qualified suppliers
and sub-contractors will be maintained in an approved supplier
and sub-contractor list. The performance of suppliers and
sub-contractors will be reviewed annually by the Group.

Suppliers’ and sub-contractors’ other environmental and social
performances are also considered as a selection criteria for
establishing long-term relationship. Suppliers and sub-contractors
should not violate any related environmental and labour laws in
Hong Kong. The termination of suppliers and sub-contractors
relationship may be incurred by any substantial violation of laws
and regulations. The performance of suppliers and sub-contractors
is examined through regularly with onsite inspection, and we are
willing to provide guidance on improving their current practices.
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Fair and Open Procurement

We have also formed rules to ensure that the suppliers and sub-
contractors could participate in competitions in an open and fair
way. The Group should not have differentiated or discriminated
treatment on certain suppliers and sub-contractors; we would
strictly monitor and prevent all kinds of business bribery; and
employees or personnel having any interest relationship with the
supplier or sub-contractors should not be involved in the related
business activity.

Product Responsibility

Achieving and maintaining high quality standard for projects are
utmost important for sustainable growth of the Group. We believe
completing works that meet or exceed our employer’s requirements
is crucial not only for building safety, but also for job reference and
future business opportunities. In order to ensure that we deliver
high quality services and sustainable projects to our customers, the
construction process of the projects is controlled and monitored
regularly. The Group has been in strict compliance with related laws
and regulations in Hong Kong.

Quality Management

We have established a formal quality management system in
accordance with the requirements of 1ISO9001:2008, OHSAS
18001:2007 and 1SO14001:2004 to develop a sustainable
performance oriented culture to pursue continuous improvement
on quality rather than adopting a short-term and project based
approach. Process control procedures has also been established
to ensure that the works meet the contractual specification and the
environmental, health and safety requirements. To pursue further
improvement, our Quality Management System is reviewed at least
annually by the management.
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To ensure our works meet the required standards, we normally
assign a responsible officer on a full-time basis at each of the
construction sites to monitor of the quality of works done by our
own staff at the front line and our sub-contractors (as the case
may be). The project manager who generally makes daily visits
to construction sites is responsible for monitoring works quality
and progress of works and ensuring that works are completed
according to schedule. Furthermore, weekly meetings are held
by our project team with our management to monitor each of the
projects’ progress and discuss identified issues. Our management
monitors closely the progress of each of the projects to ensure the
works:

- are met with our client’s requirements;

- are completed within the time stipulated in the contract and
the budget allocated for the project; and

- are complied with all relevant codes and regulations
applicable to the works.

Business Ethics

The tendering process must be done in a fair manner to protect
the interests of the Group and clients. Employees responsible
for tendering must comply with the Competition Ordinance by
refraining themselves from exchanging or communicating any
sensitive information with competitors, participating in price fixing,
imposing restrictions on clients and abusing the dominant market
position. Relevant requirements on confidentiality and compliance
with Competition Ordinance have also been set out in the Group’s
Code of Conduct.

Customer Service

We care about clients’ feedback and their satisfaction on our
performances. In order to provide good quality of service, we strive
to understand the needs of clients. We also strive to provide the
best services in supporting our clients. Customer Service Officer
offers the required assistance to clients on the application of
services with their professional knowledge.
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Quality Department continues to send official customer satisfaction
surveys to our clients for reviewing our performances. The review
covered our tendering and quantity surveying, project management,
material and resources control, workmanship, environment, safety
and security performances, etc. Through regular interaction with
clients, the project manager and engineer will gather information on
their perception of the services.

We also handle complaints from clients by amending the non-
conformity within targeted timeframe, by complying with statutory
regulations, clients’ requirements and our internal rules and policies.

Customer Privacy Protection

The Group is committed to ensuring that all confidential or special
information provided by clients, employees and business associates
remains strictly confidential. We are entered into confidential
agreements with clients and sub-contractors. Without their
authorization, such information will not be disclosed to any third
party or made available to public.

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any incidents
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group, concerning health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to services provided and
methods of redress.
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B7. Anti-Corruption

The Group does not tolerate any corruptions, frauds and all other
behaviours violating work ethics. The Group values and upholds
integrity, honesty and fairness in how we conduct business.

Internal Control

We have established a formal Code of Conduct to help to define
appropriate methods in handling conflict of interests, accepting
advantages, leakage of confidential information, etc. to comply with
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance and other relevant laws and
regulations. All employees should decline an offer of advantage
if acceptance of it could affect their objectivity in conducting the
Group’s business. Employees will be subjected to disciplinary
actions if they are found violating the Code of Conduct after
investigation. Disciplinary actions include verbal or written warnings,
demotion and dismissal, and the case may be reported to law-
enforcement authorities for possible prosecution, depending on the
situation.

To further mitigate business frauds, we appoint professional
consulting firm to evaluate the Group’s internal control
effectiveness, detecting potential deficiency, and identifying areas of
improvement. Internal Audit Report is distributed to the Group for
remediation.

Whistleblowing Policy

In order to further achieve and maintain the highest standards
of openness, probity and accountability, the Group has also
implemented a whistleblowing policy. This policy allows all
employees of the Group as well as independent third parties (e.g.
clients, suppliers, sub-contractors, creditors and debtors) who
deal with any employees to report any possible improprieties,
misconducts, malpractices or irregularities in matters of financial
reporting, internal control or other matters to the Audit Committee
anonymously. Reports and complaints received will be handled
in a prompt and fair manner. Such policy also aims at protecting
whistleblower from unfair dismissal, victimization and unwarranted
disciplinary actions. Any person who is found to have victimized or
retaliated against those who have raised concerns under this policy
will be subjected to disciplinary sanctions.
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Anti-Corruption Training

Representatives from the Independent Commission Against
Corruption are also invited to hold anti-corruption talks with specific
issues relating to our businesses to further enhance our anti-
corruption system.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any litigation
involving the allegation of corruption of the Group or its employees.

Community Investment

The Group is committed to emboldening and supporting the public
by the means of social participation and contribution as part of
its strategic development, and to nurture the corporate culture
and practices of corporate citizen in the daily work life throughout
the Group. We focus on inspiring our employees towards social
welfare concerns. We would embrace the human capital into the
social management strategies to sustain our corporate social
responsibility as a part of the strategic development of the Group.

Maintaining a Good Relationship with Our Neighbours

We understand that any construction project will have an impact on
the surrounding environment and the lives of nearby communities.
We care about the communities adjacent to our projects. Hence,
we aim to reduce the impact of the construction process on
the surrounding communities by carrying out environmental
management on our sites. Public relations management projects
are also carried out on our sites by communicating with the
residents, businesses and passers-by near our projects to maintain
a harmonious relationship with our neighbours. A list of the site staff
and their contact details are posted on the hoarding panels of our
sites to facilitate stakeholders’ direct contact with the site staff in
handling inquiries and complaints on a timely manner.

Community Participation

We participate in community activities, for example, donations,
volunteering services, sponsorships, etc. With the active
participation in community events to help the needy. We also
regularly communicate with local charities to understand
community’s needs. We believe it helps to connect us with the local
community, and maintain a mutually beneficial relationship to the
society as a whole.
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Raising Awareness of Employees

Our employees are encouraged to donate to recognized charitable

institutions in order to help grass-roots community or those in need,

so that they can gain education and care. We also encourage our

employees to suggest areas of contribution based on their personal

experiences in the community.

Environmental Performance Indicators

Aspect A1: Emissions
A1EE : B

Performance indicator

®REER

Emissions

2954

Non-Hazardous waste

Total NOx emissions (kg)
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Aspect A2: Use of resources
A2EH: ERER

Performance indicator

REER

Electricity
EP))

Diesel

S

Petrol

v

Water

7K
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Total electricity consumption (kWh)
wiEE=E (TRF)

Intensity of electricity consumption
per project (kWh)
BEBEENEEERE (TER)

Total diesel consumption (litre)

BEOMBERES (RTT)

Intensity of diesel consumption per
project (litre)

BEEB WSO ERERE ()

Total petrol consumption (litre)

BUmEREE (RT)

Intensity of petrol consumption per
project (litre)

BEEENTVRERERE
(RF)

Total water consumption
(cubic meters)

BAKE (ZF5K)

Intensity of water consumption per
project (cubic meters)

SEEENWAKERE (Z77K)

2019 Data
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in provision of foundation works and ancillary services, provision
of construction wastes handling services, money lending business and
investments in securities.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review and outlook of the Group for the Year are set out in
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 4
to 15 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operation, business and
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. The
followings are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group:
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EFBHRS

The Group has a concentrated customer base
and any decrease in the number of projects
with the Group’s top five customers would
adversely affect the Group’s operations and
financial results

A significant portion of the Group’s revenue was derived from a small
number of customers during the two financial years ended 31 March
2019. The Group’s top five customers’ revenue contribution for the
Year was approximately 73.7% (2018: 75.3%) of our revenue, while the
Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately 20.9% (2018:
24.5%) of our revenue. The Group did not enter into any long-term service
agreement or master service agreement with its customers. Furthermore,
the Group’s service contracts for all foundation works and ancillary
services projects and construction wastes handling projects are on a
project-by-project basis. As such, there is no assurance that the Group
will be able to retain its customers upon expiry of the contract period or
that they will maintain their current level of business with the Group in
the future. If there is a significant decrease in the number of projects or
size of projects in terms of contract sums awarded by the Group’s top
five customers to the Group for whatever reasons, and if the Group is
unable to obtain suitable projects of a comparable size and quantity as
replacement, the Group’s financial conditions and operating results would
be materially and adversely affected. Besides, if any of the Group’s top
five customers experiences any liquidity problem, it may result in delay or
default in settling progress payments to the Group, which in turn will have
an adverse impact on its cash flows and financial conditions. The Group
cannot guarantee that it will be able to diversify its customer base by
obtaining significant number of new projects from its existing and potential
customers.
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The Group determines the price of its tender
or quotation based on the estimated time

and costs to be involved in a project, yet the
actual time and costs incurred may deviate
from the Group’s estimate due to unexpected
circumstances, thereby adversely affecting its
operations and financial results

The Group determines the price of tender or quotation based on its
cost estimate plus a certain mark-up margin. The actual time and costs
incurred by the Group, however, may be adversely affected by various
factors, including (i) the specifications, underground conditions and
difficulties of the potential project; (i) the duration of the potential project;
(i) the site location and the conditions and adjacent risk of building
structures nearby; (iv) the resource availability; and (v) our previous
experience with the customer. Significant changes in any of these or other
relevant factors may lead to delay in completion or costs overrun by the
Group, and there is no assurance that the actual time and costs incurred
by the Group would match its initial estimate. Such delays, cost overruns
or mismatch of actual time and costs with the Group’s estimates may
cause its profitability to be lower than what the Group expected or may
expose it to litigation or claims from customers in case of delays. The
Group normally sets an extra mark-up margin on top of its estimated
costs to cater to the possible unfavourable factors above, yet too high a
margin may render the Group’s tender or quotation uncompetitive. There
is no assurance that the Group will always be able to price its tender or
quotation competitively, and if the Group fails to do so, its customers
may opt for the Group’s competitors, thereby resulting in a decrease in
the number of projects awarded to the Group. Even if such a mark-up
margin is accepted and agreed by the Group’s customer, there can be no
assurance that the Group can be fully compensated for the occurrence of
the unfavourable factors above. This would adversely affect the Group’s
operations and financial results. Meanwhile, if the mark-up margin set by
the Group is too low, the gross profits may not be able to cover other
potential loss arising from any unfavourable circumstances during project
implementation. The Group’s profitability in the project would hence be
adversely and materially affected.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the Year in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

As at 31 March 2019, the Company has reserves available of
approximately HK$315,133,000 (as at 31 March 2018: approximately
HK$322,073,000).

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of
publication of this annual report were:

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Xu Mingxing (appointed on 11 April 2019)
Mr. Pu Xiaojiang (appointed on 11 April 2019)

Executive Directors

Mr. Ren Yunan (appointed on 9 July 2018)
Mr. Luo Ting (appointed on 10 April 2018)
Mr. Zhu Junkan (appointed on 10 April 2018)
Mr. Cheng Yuk (resigned on 16 May 2019)
Mr. Ip Ying Chau (resigned on 30 April 2018)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Zhouxin

Mr. Lee Man Chiu (appointed on 30 April 2018)

Mr. Jiang Guoliang (appointed on 1 September 2018)
Mr. Chan King Chung (resigned on 16 May 2019)

Mr. Chan Chun Yiu Thomas (resigned on 30 April 2018)
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

As at 31 March 2019, none of the Directors, including those to be
re-elected at the forthcoming annual general meeting, has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
the payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March 2019.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed below as at 31 March 2019, none of the Directors and
their respective associates nor the chief executive of the Company had
any interests in the relevant securities (as defined under Note 4 to Rule
22 of the Takeovers Code), or had any interests or short positions in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and shares,
underlying shares and debentures of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”)), which are required to be
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions in which they are deemed
or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which are required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein or have been, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) in
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Position Number of Shares Percentage of
Name of director Capacity/Nature (Long/Short) held/interested interest
BE/RERBH
EEpg &t/ 1tE HE/ %R ROHE BEEDL
(Noted)
GED
Mr. Ren Yunan (‘Mr. Ren”) (Note?)  Interest in a controlled corporation Long 614,900,000 (Note') 11.69%
ERSEE (MERE]) () REGZEER HE (BEE")
Beneficial owner Long 148,810,000 2.82%
ERBAA HE

Note:

These Shares were held by Thriving Market Limited (“TML”), which is wholly-
owned by Mr. Ren. As such, Mr. Ren is deemed to be interested in the
614,900,000 Shares owned by TML by virtue of the SFO.

On 25 April 2019, Mr. Ren and TML has entered into sale and purchase
agreements (the “Agreements”) with a number of purchasers (the “Purchasers”)
respectively in relation to the sale of 614,900,000 Shares held by TML and
148,810,000 Shares held by Mr. Ren (collectively, the “Disposals”), representing
all Shares held by TML and by Mr. Ren respectively as of 25 April 2019. the
completion of the Disposals under respective Agreements took place on or before
2 May 2019. Mr. Ren and TML did not be interested in these shares by virtue of
the SFO on 2 May 2019.

The percentage is calculated on the basis of 5,262,000,000 shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 March 2019.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
AND OTHERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2019, so far as is known to the Directors, the following

persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had

interest or short position in Shares or underlying Shares which fell to be

disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provision

of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the register

required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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Position Number of Shares Percentage of
Name of shareholders Capacity/Nature (Long/Short) held/interested interest
BE/BEERH
BRgE/ £ 5/ 1HE #R/ KR RPEE EEADL
Note
GED
Mr. Xu Mingxing (‘Mr. Xu") (Note') Igterest in a controlled corporation Long 3,182,790,001 60.49%
RAREE ([H%EE]) (M) REtEERS e
OKC Holdings Corporation Beneficial owner Long 3,182,790,001 60.49%
("OKC”) (Note') ‘
OKG Holdings Corporation ExBEEA e
(ToKC |) (FF&E)
Thriving Market Limited (“TML") (Note?) Beneficial owner Long 614,900,000 11.69%
(Note®)
Thriving Market Limited ([TML |) EREAA e (BaE2)
(PE2)
Note: Pt e -

(1)

Mr. Xu Mingxing controls OKC through (i) his wholly-owned company named
StarXu Capital Limited (“StarXu Capital”’) with direct interest in OKC of
approximately 29.26%; (i) StarXu Capital with the interest of approximately
24.74% in SKY CHASER HOLDINGS LIMITED (“SKY CHASER’"), whereas SKY
CHASER directly holds approximately 1.45% interest in OKC (accordingly, Mr. Xu
holds 0.36% indirect interest of OKC through SKY CHASER); and (iii) his wholly-
owned company named OKEM Services Company Limited (‘OKEM Services”)
with direct interest in the Offeror of approximately 23.06%. Thus, Mr. Xu holds
an aggregate interest of approximately 52.68% in OKC. Mr. Xu is deemed to be
interested in the 3,182,790,001 Shares owned by OKC by virtue of the SFO.

As at 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 10 April 2019, OKC has received valid
acceptances in respect of a total of 722,135,000 Shares under the offer,
representing approximately 13.72% of the entire issued share capital of the
Company. Mr. Xu is deemed to be interested in the 3,904,925,001 Shares owned
by OKC by virtue of the SFO.

Mr. Xu has been appointed as a non-executive Director on 11 April 2019.

1) REFE S A()H & AStarXu Capital Limited
([StarXu Capital | ) 892 & 2 7] ROKCIE A 4
29.26%H % 125 ¢ (i) StarXu Capital’ASKY CHASER
HOLDINGS LIMITED ([SKY CHASER )% & #J
24.74%HE 25 - T SKY CHASERE £ # 5 OKCHI 4
1.45% 4 2% (A - 1 % 4 3B BSKY CHASERROKC
HE0.36%ME ) ¢ K(i)H B AOKEM Services
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2) TML is wholly-owned by Mr. Ren. As such, Mr. Ren is deemed to be interested in
the 614.900.000 Shares owned by TML by virtue of the SFO.

Q) On 25 April 2019, Mr. Ren and TML has entered into sale and purchase
agreements (the “Shareholders Agreements”) with a number of purchasers
(the “Purchasers”) respectively in relation to the sale of 614,900,000 Shares held
by TML and 148,810,000 Shares held by Mr. Ren (collectively, the “Disposals”),
representing all Shares held by TML and by Mr. Ren respectively as of 25 April
2019. the completion of the Disposals under respective Shareholder Agreements
took place on or before 2 May 2019. Mr. Ren and TML did not be interested in
these shares by virtue of the SFO on 2 May 2019.

(4) The percentage is calculated on the basis of 5,262,000,000 Shares of the
Company is issued as at 31 March 2019.

PLEDGE OF SHARES BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

On 17 April 2018, the Company had been notified that Right Star
Investment Development Limited (‘Right Star”), a controlling shareholder
of the Company, had pledged an aggregate of 3,182,790,001 ordinary
shares in the issued share capital of the Company (the “Pledged
Shares”) in favour of Mr. Ren as a security of a loan (the “Loan”) provided
by the independent third party to Mr. Anthony Wong (“Mr. Wong”), the
beneficial owner of Right Star.

On 12 October 2018, the Loan and interest accrued thereon had been
repaid by Mr. Wong. Accordingly, the Pledged Shares have been released.
Right Star is interested in 3,182,790,001 ordinary Shares of the Company,
representing approximately 60.49% of the issued share capital of the
Company. After the Pledged Shares had been released, there was no
pledge in the shares of the Company held by Right Star. Details of the
Pledged Shares were disclosed in the announcement dated 17 April 2018
and 12 October 2018.

The Pledged Shares did not fall within the scope of Rule 13.17 of the
Listing Rules.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this report, at no time during the Year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance, to which the
Company any of its subsidiaries, its parent company, or its parent
company’s subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly and
indirectly, subsisted as at 31 March 2019 or any time during the Year, nor
was there any other transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
in relation to the Group’s business between the Company or any of
the Company’s subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Directors shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of
the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers liability
insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the
Directors currently in force.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier and the five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for
20% and 46% respectively of the Group’s total purchases for the Year.
Revenue attributable to the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers in aggregate accounted for 21% and 74% respectively of the
Group’s total revenue for the Year.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any material beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH
EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS,
SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

Employees

The Group recognises employees as its valuable assets. The Group
provides competitive remuneration package to attract, motivate and
retain appropriate and suitable personnel to serve the Group. The Group
has also adopted an annual review system to assess the performance of
its staff, which forms the basis of the Group’s decisions with respect to
salary raises and promotions.
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Customers

A majority of the Group’s five largest customers have good business
relationship with the Group and the Group will therefore endeavor to
accommodate their demands for the Group’s services to the extent its
resources allow in order to capture more opportunities for larger scale
projects in the future. The Group’s experience as a quality subcontractor
in handling foundation works and construction wastes handling projects
also give business advantage to the Group’s customers to ensure
projects are executive in accordance with their quality standard.

Suppliers and subcontractors

The Group encompasses working relationships with suppliers and
subcontractors to meet the Group’s customers’ needs in an effective
and efficient manner. The Group has set up an approved list of suppliers
and it selects the suppliers from the list based on the quality of materials,
timeliness of delivery, previous experience and length of partnership with
the supplier, competitiveness of the price offered and reputation of the
supplier.

Subject to the Group’s capacity, resources level, types of construction
works, cost effectiveness and complexity of the projects, the Group may
subcontract certain works to other subcontractors. The Group maintains
an internal list of approved subcontractors and carefully evaluate the
performance of its subcontractors and selects them based on the
experience, quality of works, timeliness of completion for past projects,
reputation in the industry, past performances, cost and the Group’s
relationship with them.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report,
the Company has maintained the prescribed minimum public float as
required under the Listing Rules during the Year.

Immediately after the close of the Offer and subject to the due registration
by the registrar for the transfer of the Offer Shares tendered by the
independent Shareholders to OKC for acceptance, 593,364,999 Shares
were held by the public (within the meanings under the Listing Rules),
representing approximately 11.28% of the total number of issued Shares.
Accordingly, following the close of the Offer, less than 25% of the issued
Shares were held by the public and the Company did not satisfy the
minimum public float requirement as set out under Rule 8.08(1) of the
Listing Rules.
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On 25 April 2019, each of TML and Mr. Ren Yunan has entered into
the Agreements with a number of purchasers respectively in relation to
the sale of 615,900,000 Shares held by TML and 148,810,000 Shares
held by Mr. Ren, representing all Shares held by TML and by Mr. Ren
respectively as of 25 April 2019. TML is beneficially owned by Mr. Ren,
who in turn is an executive Director, the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

The Company has been informed that the completion of the Disposals
under respective Agreements took place on or before 2 May 2019.

Immediately after the completion of the Disposals, OKC and parties
acting in concert with OKC hold 3,904,925,001 Shares, representing
approximately 74.21% of the issued Shares, whereas 1,357,074,999
Shares, representing 25.79% of the issued Shares are held by the
public. Accordingly, the minimum public float of 25% of the total issued
share capital of the Company has been restored and the Company is in
compliance with Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION
OF THE COMPANY'’S LISTED
SECURITIES

No purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed securities was
made by the Company nor any of its subsidiaries during the Year and up
to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of the Directors are
considered to have interests in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Disposal of 100% issued shares of Gold Toys
Limited

On 19 September 2018, the Company and Element Delight Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability
(the “Purchaser”), have entered into the disposal agreement dated 19
September 2018 (the “Disposal Agreement’) in relation to the disposal
(the “Gold Toys Disposal’) of 50,000 ordinary shares in the share
capital of Gold Toys Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability and is wholly-owned by the Company (the
“Target Company”), being the entire issued share capital of the Target
Company (the “Sale Shares”) pursuant to which the Company has
agreed to sell, and the Purchaser has agreed to acquire, the Sale Shares
at the consideration of HK$400,000 upon and subject to the terms and
conditions of the Disposal Agreement.

The completion of the Disposal took place on 28 September 2018.
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Save as disclosed above and during the Period, the Group did not have
any significant investments held or any material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries or associated companies.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) with effect from the Listing Date. The terms of the Share
Option Scheme are in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules. The main purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to motivate employees to optimise their performance efficiency for the
benefit of the Company. No options had been granted under the Share
Option Scheme during the Year. During the Year and up to the date of this
report, no option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed. As at
the date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme was 526,200,000, representing 10% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company. Details of the Share Option
Scheme are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report relating to the Share Option
Scheme, no equity-linked agreements were entered into for the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and the laws of Cayman Islands.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefits schemes are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately HK$240,000 (2018: HK$256,000).

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
BY INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent
non-executive Directors and the Company considers all Directors to be
independent.

LEAP Holdings Group Limited
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EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of our Group are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument
policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance of the Directors and senior management
and comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted Share Option Scheme as incentive to eligible
employees, details of the schemes are set out in the section headed
“Share Option Scheme”.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, there were no connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules which are required to comply with any of the reporting,
announcement or independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules. Details of significant related party transactions
undertaken in the usual course of business are set out in note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements. None of these related party
transactions constitute a discloseable connected transaction as defined
under the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 23 to 48 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to declare any final dividend for the Year
(2018: Nil).
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AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited has acted as the auditors of the
Company for the Year. A resolution for their re-appointment as auditors
for the coming year will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group’s operations at work sites are subject to certain environmental
requirements pursuant to the laws in Hong Kong. The laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group include, among
others, Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 311 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Air Pollution Control (Non-road Mobile Machinery) (Emission)
Regulation (Chapter 311Z of the Laws of Hong Kong), Noise Control
Ordinance (Chapter 400 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Water Pollution
Control Ordinance (Chapter 358 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Waste
Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Disposal
(Charges for Disposal of Construction Waste) Regulation, Dumping at Sea
Ordinance (Chapter 466 of the Laws of Hong Kong, Environmental Impact
Assessment Ordinance (Chapter 499 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
Boilers and Pressure Vessels Ordinance (Chapter 56 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).

In order to comply with the applicable environmental protection laws,
we had implemented an environmental management system which
was certified to be in compliance with the standard required under ISO
14001:2004. Apart from following the environmental protection policies
formulated and required by our customers, we have also established
our environmental management policy to ensure proper management
of environmental protection and compliance of environmental laws and
regulations by both our employees and workers of the subcontractors on
among others, air pollution, noise control and waste disposal.

During the Year, our Group did not record any non-compliance with
applicable environmental requirements that resulted in prosecution or
penalty being brought against our Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

During the Year under review, there was no material breach or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operation of Group.
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EVENTS AFTER THE YEAR
Close of the Offer

As the sub-section head “Acquisition of Shares by OKC Holdings
Corporation” in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on page 15 of this annual report, the Offer had closed at
4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 10 April 2019 (the “Close of Offer”). Details of
the Close of Offer was disclosed in the announcement of the Company

dated 11 April 2019.

Change of Directors

(i) Appointment of Non-Executive Directors
On 11 April 2019, Mr. Xu Mingxing and Mr. Pu Xiaojiang have been
appointed as non-executive Directors (the “Appointment”). Details
of the Appointment was disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 11 April 2019.

(i) Resignation of Directors
On 16 May 2019, Mr. Cheng Yuk has resigned as an executive
Director and Mr. Chan King Chung has resigned as an independent
non-executive Director (the “Resignations”). Details of the
Resignations were disclosed in the announcement of the Company

dated 16 May 2019.

Disposal of Shares by Substantial
Shareholders

On 25 April 2019, Mr. Ren Yunan (“Mr. Ren”) and Thriving Market
Limited (“TML”) had entered into sale and purchase agreements (the
“Agreements”) with a number of purchasers (the “Purchasers”)
respectively in relation to the sale of 614,900,000 Shares held by TML
and 148,810,000 Shares held by Mr. Ren (collectively, the “Disposals”),
representing all Shares held by TML and by Mr. Ren respectively as
of 25 April 2019. The completion of the Disposals under respective
Agreements took place on or before 2 May 2019. Details of the Disposals
were disclosed in the announcements dated 26 April 2019 and 2 May
2019.
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Entering into Agreements with Prime Trust, LLC

On 31 May 2019 (after the trading hours of the Stock Exchange), OKLink
Fintech Limited, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Prime Trust, LLC had entered into a technology service agreement
and an application programming interface (API) funding platform
technology agreement for the development of the platform for providing
USDK services (the “Business Development”). Details of the Business
Development was disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
2 June 2019.

On behalf of the Board

Ren Yunan
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

28 June 2019
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Bl Hf &6 F % 5 & R A F

Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE MEMBERS OF LEAP HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of LEAP Holdings
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 101 to 224, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

B ZEEN RS

31/F, Gloucester Tower i

The Landmark i BR

11 Pedder Street AT 1158
Central B

Hong Kong HER AT R 31

BAEZEREEERATDKE
(REABHEZMALZERAA])

BR

ArEEm (AT #8 [3F)) EERBRF101E
4B FE AT ERIREB AR AR ([EAF]) &
HIMBRR (4ifE [E5E ) 2RaBHRE 8
TEER_E-NF=A=+—RHZEAHBR
MERPBEZRHLFEZGEBEaREMER
WER SERSEPREGAETMERNAR
RAMBRERME (BRIZSFTREME) -

BMRR ZEERAMBRRHCRET LSS
fhrg ([BEEGMAE])BM2EBHBR
SEA([ERMBRESEN D EERA TR
B EEER _ZE-AF=A=1+—B %I
Ak BEERBEZRILIFEZEAMBRR
MZEReRE YEETEERRRDIZHE
MEZRRE-

BROER

BPRRELSSHMAGEMNFTLEEL
([ GBBEHER) |)ETEA TE-REZE
E/ BHPINEERARER [ BN E 4R
AMBHRRAENEE] PE-FSHL-REER
AEFHAEBRANERSEER TR (1%
1) JABIN BEEE YEBEZXTE
TTRAMEREE - RMBE RAFESHER
BREEZRNNEELSRMANERIBHER-

AR EEER AR
TE-NEFEFER

95



96

Independent Auditors’ Report
BT i% SR E

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

HEEtER
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

NS NAHBERENSRETRE

Recognition of revenue and costs from construction contracts and contract assets

BERENELNW B RKEAREEE

Refer to Notes 2.22, 5, 7 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements

B2HGRA B HmRERME2.22 5 - 7Kk19

We identified recognition of revenue and costs from
construction contracts and contract assets as a key
audit matter as significant management’s estimations
and judgements are involved in the determination of the
outcome of construction contracts and the progress towards
completion of construction works.
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Our audit procedures in relation to recognition of revenue
and costs from construction contracts and contract assets
mainly included:
FHRRREESNEENPRR IR EARAHNEENETIZ
FEERE:

° Reviewing the contract sum and budgeted costs to
respective signed contracts and budgets prepared by
management;
EHURNERTANNANSERTBERNETURE
BERHEMNTESE:

° Understanding from management about how the
budgets were prepared and the respective progress
towards completion of construction works were
determined;

MERETHROARAEEE RNEERETLET
BREE

o Evaluating the reasonableness of progress towards
completion of construction works by obtaining
the certificates issued by customers or payment
applications confirmed by internal surveyor;
FHREISE PR H A EE R AR 2 AR A TR
A MEETRTKEETN SR

° Testing the actual costs incurred on construction
works;

AAZETREEENERKAE:

° Assessing the reasonableness of the budgets by
comparing the actual outcome against management’s
estimation of similar contracts; and
FRLRERERRERBHALUS QM
BENEEE: &

° Assessing the appropriateness and adequate of
the disclosures made in the consolidated financial
statements.

FHERGAEMBBRREFLNBREESTEERTR



OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Independent Auditors’ Report
B 1% S B IR S

e M BERE
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BT i% SR E

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Lo Kin Kei.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Kin Kei

Practising Certificate Number: P06413
Hong Kong, 28 June 2019

LEAP Holdings Group Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

|-7.|' l:l
For the year ended 31 March 2019 & ZE — %

mMHEMWEARNRE

—hFE=ZA=1+—HILEE

2019 2018
—E-NF —T—)\F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FET
Revenue Iy 2% 5 364,006 208,625
Cost of sales BHE R (334,423) (227,943)
Gross profit EH 30,483 70,682
Other income, gains and losses HAab g A - WS & B 1 5 4,011 2,740
Administrative and other operating expenses 17 & £ b 48 & B 57 (53,302) (38,758)
Impairment losses on financial assets SRMEEREHNEEZ
and contract assets BIEEE (2,367) -
Operating (loss)/profit e (B FE (21,175) 34,664
Finance costs & A AR 6 (6,868) (2,917)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BrFTSELAT (E518),FIE 7 (28,043) 31,747
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisfiEe,” (FAX) 10 808 (6,379)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to &R REE AEEER
owners of the Company (E51|) BF (27,235) 25,368
Other comprehensive income Hth2mWKA
Item that may be reclassified subsequently H & AjpEE# » HEZ 157
to profit or loss: HH
Exchange differences arising on REBINEREE 2
translation of foreign operations ME N EE 1,490 -
Total comprehensive (loss)/income KRR AEBEFR
for the year attributable to owners of M (F18) /BFEE
the Company (25,745) 25,368
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share &% 3= 7K K J# 8
(E8.) & 11 HK cent (0.52)&1l  HK cent 04871l

Details of dividends are disclosed in Note 13 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

B SR BN AR A M SRR 133K 5 o

BER Z It B ANAR A R IS IRR B 2 — & D

AR EEBR QA
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE I IAIR R

As at 31 March 2019 R—ZE—hE=ZF=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NF —ET—)N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
BiaF FET FHETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI B K& 14 28,033 29,020
Intangible assets EREAE 16 430 430
Deferred tax assets RIEFTH & B 26 663 -
29,126 29,450
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables 2 5 Rk H A YRR 18 124,410 169,187
Contract assets ABHEE 19 90,742 -
Gross amounts due from customers EREFAEHTIRRIBLE
for contract work 20 - 35,922
Financial assets at fair value through EBEATFEFAEBEZ
profit or loss TREE 21 9,044 1,194
Tax recoverable B EE A 2,230 179
Pledged bank deposit EEBRITER 22 6,611 6,500
Cash and cash equivalents HeERReEEY 22 332,495 330,638
565,532 543,620
Total assets EEHE 594,658 573,070
EQUITY i
Capital and reserves BEARR#E
Share capital &N 23 26,310 26,310
Reserves G 315,372 344,118
Total equity AR 341,682 370,428
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Borrowings EE 25 153 192
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEBE 26 2,205 3,550
2,358 3,742

LEAP Holdings Group Limited
2019 Annual Report




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ROMBIRinE

As at 31 March 2019 R—ZE—hE=ZRF=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NF —T—)\F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bia FET FHETT
Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and other payables B 5 M E M ERRR 27 92,772 43,880

Gross amounts due to customers EREFPAHNIRRIELLTE
for contract work 20 - 1,981
Amount due to a former subsidiary FERT— M RTHIE A S RUIE 28 10,641 -
Loan from a related party —ZEEFER 29 143,438 136,688
Borrowings BE 25 179 4,819
Current income tax liabilities BIERFRIS B E 3,588 11,532
250,618 198,900
Total liabilities BEHE 252,976 202,642
Total equity and liabilities EmRABAER 594,658 573,070
Net current assets BEREBEE 314,914 344,720
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERRBAE 344,040 374,170

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for A MERER T NESNA -\ BEES
issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2019 and are signed on its & #L/ERRETZ  TH TIALTHREREZE:
behalf by:

Mr. Luo Ting Mr. Zhu Junkan
BELE KM EE
Director Director

BF BE

>

o

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated — BEMfZ it B AL & B ISR R B EE ~ — 31
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ol et e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE-T—hF=A=+—BIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARREEAEL
Share Share Capital Merger Translation  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings equity

BE  BROEE EXHEE  AHEE EXNRE  REEN Y £
HK$000 ~ HKE'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HKE'000  HKS'000  HKE'000
TR TET TET TET TET TET TET

(Note 23) (Note a) (Note b)
(Wrzt23) (Hizta)  (Hiitp)
Balance at 1 April 2017 RZZE—tFMA—AREH 26,310 212,067 7,922 1 - 98,760 345,060
Profit and total comprehensive income FRRFIRZERFGE
for the year - - - - - 25,368 25,368
Balance at 31 March 2018 RZB-NE=ZA=+—-HH
=33 26,310 212,067 7,922 1 - 124,128 370,428
Balance at 31 March 2018 NZE-\F=ZA=1t—HM
33 26,310 212,067 7,922 1 - 124,128 370,428
Adjustments (Note 2.1) RE(fr#2.1) - - - - - (3,001) (3,001)
Balance at 1 April 2018 (Restated) RZZE—-\FHA—AREH
(&55)) 26,310 212,067 7,922 1 - 121,127 367,427
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (27,235)  (27,235)
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMZEHA - - - - 1,490 - 1,490
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FRZEAF,/ (FE)AE
for the year = - = = 1,490 (27,235  (25,745)
Balance at 31 March 2019 RZZE-AF=ZA=1+—HH
#Ea 26,310 212,067 7,922 1 1,490 93,892 341,682
Notes: Kt -

a. The capital reserve represents the deemed capital contribution from the — a. BRFEEBERARGRELE BHRREAQF
Company's shareholder in relation to listing expenses reimbursed to the Company BEFER ETRE-

in prior years.

b. The merger reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of the  b. EHEBERRARAXKREAMNBARNEBREFESE
shares issued by the Company in exchange for the nominal value of the share HEEMNBRAZEEMETROOEER ZZE -

capital of its subsidiaries arising from the reorganisation in prior years.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  B& i 2 B 5T B AR 4R A ISR R B BE 2 —&615
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2019 & ZE — %

mOIREMER
—hFE=ZA=1+—HILEE

2019 2018
—E—-NF —N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
e FEx FAET
Cash flows from operating activites &L EFHRERE
Net cash generated from operations WEEE R FE 30(a) 19,953 140,705
Income tax (paid)/refund B BEBASEH (4,545) 1,757
Interest paid on bank overdrafts fE TEYZBEMFE (1) @)
Dividend received S {1YE) - 199
Net cash generated from operating RETRELEZHSFE
activities 15,407 142,659
Cash flows from investing activities RETHHRERE
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BE&
plant and equipment REBFTB A 936 1,755
Purchases of property, plant and equipment EEE 9% = N & 1E (6,417) (2,567)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, HEWB QRS HRIE
net of cash disposed mBRerERe 34 400 39,166
Purchases of financial assets EERATENABR
at fair value through profit or loss TREE (18,224) -
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets ~H &R A FEFABZ 2
at fair value through profit or loss SREEMSNE 11,721 -
Placement of pledged bank deposit GFEEIRPRITTFR - (6,500)
Interest received 2 W FE 1,564 1
Net cash (used in)/generated from RETE (FTH) EEz
investing activities BEFEHE (10,020) 31,855
Cash flows from financing activities METHRERE
Loan from a related party —ZEEFER - 135,000
Repayment of finance leases EEREMEE (4,609) (8,973)
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEE (294) (10,279)
Repayment of other borrowing EEEMEE - (10,000)
Interest paid on finance leases BMERE 2B E (109) (276)
Interest paid on bank borrowings RITEEZEAFE 8) (114)
Interest paid on other borrowing HtEEZEMAFE = (837)
Net cash (used in)/generated from METEE (FTA) EEz
financing activities ReFH (5,020) 104,521
RIEZEREEEGR AR
TE-NEFEFER
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —ET—)N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt FHExT FH&T
Net increase in cash and cash ReRBESEEWIGNFE
equivalents 367 279,035
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ERFH) B 1,490 -
Cash and cash equivalents FNRERRESEEY
at beginning of year 330,638 51,603
Cash and cash equivalents FREASRRSEEY
at end of year 332,495 330,638
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents BE&RBESZEY DN
Cash at banks RTRE 22 332,469 329,524
Cash held with brokers KEABENRS 22 - 1,099
Cash on hand FEE® 22 26 15
332,495 330,638
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements. B 2 BT sE BB A AR & I TSR R B BE 2 —&bfh o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm © B 15 B R B 5

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION AND
BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
with effect from 2 September 2015. Its parent company is OKC
Holdings Corporation, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability and controlled by Mr. Xu Mingxing. The
address of the Company’s registered office is at Clifton House, 75
Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands. The address of the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong is at Unit 902-903, 9th Floor, Sino Plaza, 255-257
Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in provision of foundation works and ancillary
services and construction wastes handling services, money lending
business and investments in securities.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”) which is also the functional currency of the
Company, unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors
on 28 June 2019.

—REHREINEE

RABRPFEHSTEMKINERAT K
HIROREBBERXSAAERAF (B
)Rt - B-FE—RENA-B#EE
W5 e A F]AOKC Holdings Corporation
(—FARFASESEMATERAT
TREAE S AEAEHI) - R AR MM ER
4t &Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box
1350, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands « RAFIR BB EEL XM AT
Vi B 88 /2 5 1T 38255-257 97 15 M & 15 91E
902-903 % °

ARR R —EREER AR - AEE T ER)
ERHHETRERREERE MEEEDR
BRG MEEBRESFRE -

BIFRBATR GRAMBHREABT (1B
To MRARBZNEER) 25 ZELR
BHBREER=ZZ—NE~A=+/N\A
BE=gmET%-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except as
otherwise stated in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

LEAP Holdings Group Limited
2019 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE-T—hF=A=+—BIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESBREE (#)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE (&)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211 B EREZBRKE
(@ New and amendments to HKFRSs that are (@)  RRFER G ERAIFET
mandatorily effective for the current year RACIEE] & B EE
Al
The Group has applied the following new and REBRARFE HIRER
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA BHEGEEASEMEIA
for the first time in the current year: EA] RIS RT BB TS
s AR
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments BRUBRE  SBIA
ERIZ0%
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with ERMBERE  REEPANME
Customers and the related ERIZE15% REBE:T
Amendments
HK(FRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and EE(ERER MRBR
Advance Consideration i&% f EfifE
=RE)
-REZNR
Amendmentsto  Classification and Measurement ERMEEE  URDAERY
HKFRS 2 of Shares-based Payment ERIR2H BECT YR
Transactions (Bi%) kit
Amendmentsto  Applying HKFRS 9 Financial ERMEERE  RREREERS
HKFRS 4 Instruments with HKFRS 4 AR5 ERIE4R
Insurance Contracts (BT%) [RIBA DG
ERERIBAS
ERIZ0%
EBIE
Amendments to As part of the Annual Improvements to ERgiEl  _F-mEE
HKAS 28 HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle 085 ZENEEY
(B%) BABBREE
LEEREL
—#
Amendmentsto  Transfers of Investment Property BREHEN  BRRAMZ
HKAS 40 F40%
(BT%)
Except as described below, the application of BT Pt E SN - AFEE
the new and amendments to HKFRSs in the JERFTEI BB mE %
current year has had no material impact on the Al R BT AN AR EER
Group’s financial performance and positions REE RBEEE ZBTE
fgr the current and prior years and/or on the BRSPS HRRE
disclosures set out in these consolidated Zdﬂ/_\ﬁj-%i&iegf[ﬁzﬁég
financial statements. FEIEEASE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

@)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continueq)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first
time in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
initially applying this standard recognised at
the date of initial application, 1 April 2018. Any
difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening retained earnings and
comparative information has not been restated.
Furthermore, in accordance with the transition
provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected
to apply the standard retrospectively only to
contracts that are not completed at 1 April 2018.
Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information
was prepared under HKAS 18 Revenue and
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from foundation
works and ancillary services and construction
wastes handing services which arise from
contracts with customers.

LEAP Holdings Group Limited

2019 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 & ZE — %

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

@

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations and the accounting policies resulting
from application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in
Notes 5 and 2.22 respectively.

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 15

The following table summarises the impact of
transition to HKFRS 15 on retained earnings at 1
April 2018.

RO WIS IR EE
—hFE=ZA=1+—HILEE

2 FEEHRFREBE (])

21 REBEE (F)

211 B HEREHREE (&)

@ RRFE B EXAF AT

RBEFTEBNEHREE
A (&)

BEEMBHREXEAE15
SRAKHEE AL WM

BEEASEBOETRE
RAEBMBREERSE

165 E LM EETBUER W
AR DRI 5 K%2.22

BREREEUBREE
AIF1GRELNZER

ob
=

TRBAN —F—N\F0
A—H iﬂzﬁi%/’é TG

EEAEISFHRER
MEE -

HK$'000
FET
Retained earnings REBER
Recognition of construction costs ERE B (850)
Tax effects M e 250
Impact at 1 April 2018 RZE—-—N\FNA—HHEE (600)
The following adjustments were made to RZZE-N\FHA—BR
the amounts recognised in the consolidated REEMROR R PTRER 8
statement of financial position at 1 April 2018. SR ABNT - BAE
Line items that were not affected by the changes BAXEHESHTE A
have not been included. HITER -

AR EEBR QA
—ZE-hEFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(@  New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continueq)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 15 (continued)

2 FEEIHFRBE (&)

21 RREE (&)

211 BRI REE (&)

@ REFREEEXEIFTET
RABEFT BB EHEE
A (%)

BRI IREERF15
SAKEEFE# 2 Was

(&)

BREREEUMBHREE
RIFE1RELH R ER

Z (&)

Carrying Carrying

amounts amounts

previously under

reported at HKFRS 15 at

31 March 1 April

2018 Impact 2018~

RZEB-NF

R=ZEB-N%F MR —BRE

=ZR=t+-H BEERBRE

RRERZ ERIE155H 2

REE b2 AREE"

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Mzt TER TER TER

Trade and other receivables B REMEKER (i) 169,187 (27,863) 141,324

Contract assets AKEE &) - 60,954 60,954
Gross amounts due from EREFPAHNTIRE (8i)

customers for contract work HIEEE 35,922 (35,922) -

Tax recoverable A EFIR i 179 75 254
Gross amounts due to customers  [EREEA#) T2 (i)

for contract work HIEET 1,981 (1,981) -

Current income tax liabilities BEEHARE i 11,532 (175) 11,357

Retained earnings REBEF i 124,128 (600) 123,528
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

@)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 15 (continued)

The amounts in this column are before the
adjustments from the application of HKFRS 9.

In relation to construction contracts previously
accounted under HKAS 11, the Group continues to
apply output method in estimating the performance
obligations satisfied up to date of initial application
of HKFRS 15. Under HKAS 11, contract costs are
recognised as expenses by reference to the stage
of completion, which is measured by reference to
work performed to date as a percentage of total
contract value. Under HKFRS 15, costs that related
to satisfied performance obligations are expensed
as incurred. Construction costs of approximately
HK$850,000 recognised in gross amounts due
from/to customers for contract work were adjusted
to retained earnings. The related tax effect of
approximately HK$250,000 was recognised in
tax recoverable, current income tax liabilities and
retained earnings.

2 FEEHRFREBE (])

21 wRBEZXE (4F)

211 B ERSBRKE (B)

@ RAEFRBEGEXAIFTET
RS IE5] BB A
A (%)

BB RE LA F16
KB EF AW
(&)

BREREEMBHREE
AIE1RELM R ER

2 (&)

N ZRZEEREBYT
5 A RIEONR 4R 3R
EAT27-

() BRIIBIEE S G
B 115 ABRIEREE A
WmE  ANEEBER
FRELEGTEREITH
BHEM BEEBHNE
BB B RE2ERE
155 B 1L - IRIERES
FTERISE115E - A A
AN IRIR TE K P ER TR
BFRY - IRIEES A
IEFTETHIREAYN
BEENEDLTE -
RIEE I R 2R
FE155%  HEBITHE
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EAERS AR - AE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

@)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continueq)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 15 (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii) At the date of initial application, retention
receivables of approximately HK$27,863,000 arising
from the construction contracts was reclassified

from trade and other receivables to contract assets.

(iii) At the date of initial application, amount of
approximately HK$33,091,000 arising from the
construction contracts are for work completed
and not billed because the rights are conditioned
on factors other than passage of time, and such
amount was reclassified from gross amounts due
from/to customers for contract work to contract
assets.

The following tables summarise the impacts of
applying HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March
2019 and its consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for the
current year for each of the line items affected
and basic and diluted loss per share for the
current year. Line items that were not affected by
the changes have not been included.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(@) New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application

of HKFRS 15 (continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial

FESHBREE (8)

21 REBEE (F)

211 B HEREHREE (&)

@ RRFE B EXAF AT
RBEFTEBNEHREE

A (&)

BEEMBHREXEAE15

SKEEFE# 2 Was

(&)

BREREEVMHHREE

AIFB1IGMELENTE

2 (&)

HEREMBRRR T E

position
Amounts
without
application of
As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
3 % FE
ERUBERSE
B %155
FER RE Ze8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL THL THT
Trade and other receivables B REMbEKERR 124,410 39,770 164,180
Contract assets BNEE 90,742 (90,742) -
Gross amounts due from customers  EMEF AN TIZFELE
for contract work - 52,454 52,454
Tax recoverable A e IE 2,230 (343) 1,887
Gross amounts due to customers  ENEFA# TIRFIAAE
for contract work - 10,858 10,858
Current income tax liabilities HAEMERARE 3,588 (729) 2,859
Retained eamings REEF 93,892 (8,990) 84,902

R R M B IR A R

NEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

2 FEEIHFRBE (&)

21 RBEE (F)

211 BRI REE (&)

(continued)

(@) New and amendments to HKFRSs that are (@ R FE G EBIFTET
mandatorily effective for the current year RASNEE] BB 5 2E
(continued) Al (%)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BEMBREEAE15
Customers (continued) R E &L W
Summary of effects arising from initial application BREABEMBRELE
of HKFRS 15 (continued) AISISHEENT B
Z (&)
Impact on the consolidated statement of profit or HiraBaE kAL 2ER
loss and other comprehensive income BRIV E
Amounts
without
application of
As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
WEER
BEERBRE
HERISE155:
FER RE ok 2}
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FET TET
Cost of sales HEMR (334,423) (10,226) (344,649)
Gross profit EF 30,483 (10,226) 20,557
Operating loss mEEE (21,175) (10,226) (31,401)
Loss before income tax BRETEHAIEE (28,043) (10,226) (38,269)
Income tax credit TSR 808 636 1,444
Loss for the year FNEE (27,235) (9,590) (36,825)
Total comprehensive loss for the year F A2 EEEAE (25,745) (9,590) (35,335)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE-T—hF=A=+—BIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FTEGFHBREE (/&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE (&)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211 B HEREHREE (&)

(continued)

@@  New and amendments to HKFRSs that are @)  RREE G EAETFTET
mandatorily effective for the current year RASNEE] BB 5 E
(continueq) Al (#&)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BBUBHREERE1E
Customers (continued) KK EEFE K2 Wan
(&)
Summary of effects arising from initial application BIRERE B RE R
of HKFRS 15 (continued) B 1558 EE w2 24
Z (%)
Impact on the basic and diluted loss per share HEREAREEEHEZ
E
Amounts
without

application of
As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15

tEER
ERRBERS
B %155
Fr2® RE Ze8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FiEx FiET
Basic and diuted loss per share BREXREEER
(HK cent) () (0.52) (0.18) (0.70)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

@  New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(continueq)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application

of HKFRS 15 (continued)

2 FEEIHFRBE (&)

21 RBEE (F)

211 B HREBHREE (&)

@)

VAT Y GOk T
RIS BB A
A (&

B BREERF15
KA EFE# . Waw

(&)

BREREEVHHREE
AIB1RELM R ER
2 (&)

HERNE AT EASE

The explanations of the above changes affected
in the current year by the application of HKFRS
15 as compared to HKAS 11, HKAS 18 and
the related interpretations are similar to the
explanations set out in notes () to (i) above
for describing the adjustments made to the
consolidated statement of financial position at 1
April 2018 upon adoption of HKFRS 15.

1155 HEE
whkEBERE AEAS
&R s

RAEE

BBl N g S
()2 (i) FHEMEL HE
R R BB s

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied
HKFRS 9 and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS
9 introduces new requirements for 1) the
classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities, 2) expected credit
losses (“ECL”) for financial assets and other
items (for example, contract assets) and 3)

general hedge accounting.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZ - %

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

@

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance
with the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9,
i.e. applied the classification and measurement
requirements (including impairment under ECL
model) retrospectively to instruments that have
not been derecognised as at 1 April 2018 (date
of initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already
been derecognised as at 1 April 2018. The
difference between the carrying amounts as at
31 March 2018 and the carrying amounts as
at 1 April 2018 are recognised in the opening
retained earnings, without restating comparative
information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information
was prepared under HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 9 are disclosed in Note 2.11.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31

March 2019 BE-T—NF=A=1+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONT
2.1 Bas

2141

INUED)
is of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(@) New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(continueq)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application

of HKFRS 9

Classification of financial assets and financial
liabilities

HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three
principal classification categories: measured
at amortised cost, at fair value through other
comprehensive income and at fair value through
profit or loss. These supersede HKAS 39's
categories of held-to-maturity investments,
loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss. The classification
of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is based on
the business model under which the financial
asset is managed and its contractual cash flow

characteristics.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

@

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Classification of financial assets and financial
liabilities (continued)

A life insurance policy of approximately
HK$2,603,000 previously classified as loans and
receivables was reclassified to financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss upon the
application of HKFRS 9 because its cash flows
do not represent solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Other than the life insurance policy, under
HKFRS 9, the classification for all of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilites measured
at amortised cost remain the same. The carrying
amounts for all financial assets and financial
liabilities at 1 April 2018 have not been impacted
by the initial application of HKFRS 9.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31

March 2019 BE-T—NF=A=1+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2141

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(@) New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(continueq)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application

of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Impairment under ECL Model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure ECL which uses a lifetime
ECL for all contract assets and trade receivables.
Except for those which had been determined as
credit impaired under HKAS 39, contract assets
and trade receivables have been assessed
individually with significant balances and the
remaining balances are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics. The contract
assets relate to unbilled work in progress and
have substantially the same risk characteristics
as the trade receivables for the same types of
contracts. The Group has therefore estimated
the expected loss rates for the trade receivables

and the contract assets on the same basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 & ZE — %

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

@

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Impairment under ECL Model (continued)

Except for those which had been determined as
credit impaired under HKAS 39, ECL for other
financial assets at amortised cost, including
other receivables, loan receivables, pledged
bank deposit and cash and cash equivalents are
assessed on 12-month ECL basis as there had
been no significant increase in credit risk since

initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

2 FEEIHFRBE (&)

21 RBEE (F)

211 B HREBHREE (&)

@@  New and amendments to HKFRSs that are (@ R FE G EBIFTET
mandatorily effective for the current year RASNEE] BB 5 2E
(continued) A (#)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued) BB HRE R FI%
=T A ()
Summary of effects arising from initial application BRFERERMBRELE
of HKFRS 9 (continued) RSO FTEE & 2 s 8
it (#8)
Impairment under ECL. Model (continued) TEEMEEEEER T 2/
B (%)
As at 1 April 2018, additional credit loss RZZE—-N\FHA—1"
allowance of approximately HK$2,839,000 has RREBEFERBEIMEE
been recognised against retained earnings. The &5 18 7 5 #92,839,000/%8
additional loss allowance is charged against the 7o AR E E IR RE S
respective asset. EIE R -
All loss allowances as at 31 March 2018 RZE-NF=ZR=*+—
reconciled to the opening loss allowances as at Bz AR EREER
1 April 2018 are as follows: T—)\FWHA/—AH ¥
EEEE 2 HRET
Trade and
Contract other
assets receivables
BES5K
EHNEE  HMEWER
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FHT
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F=A=+—H
- HKAS 39 — BB G5 A RIE395 - -
Amount remeasurement through BB EBVRB B FIEH T =
opening retained earnings = 1,877 962
At 1 April 2018 RZE-N\FHA—HR
- HKFRS 9 — BRI B RS LR R 1,877 962
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 & ZE — %

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

@

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Impairment under ECL Model (continued)

The following table summarises the impact of
transition to HKFRS 9 on retained earnings at 1
April 2018.

RO WIS IR EE
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A (%)

BB 53R E ERIFER
2HTA (&)

BREREEVMHHREE
AIFBSRIEE 2 FER
at (%)

BEHREEEEENT 2
B (&)

TRBMN T —NFH
A—HBEEEBNBER
SRERNFSRFHRER
Mzzg:

HK$'000
FHET

Retained earnings REBF
Recognition of impairment loss ~ F&s2 R (B 518 (2,839)
Tax effects Mg e 438
Impact at 1 April 2018 RZE—N\FEHA-—BHTE (2,401)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

2 FEEIHFRBE (&)

21 wRBEEZE (4F)

211 S BERSBRKE (B)

(a)  New and amendments to HKFRSs that are @@  RAKFE S ENBIFTET
mandatorily effective for the current year RACIEG] EB &
(continued) A (%)

Summary of effects arising from initial application BRFERERMIERELE
of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 AN R B BMIFHE
HERIFISFMELE T &
L8
As a result of the changes in the Group’s ALt A SRR
accounting policies above, the table below BE) TERBMNEIRE
ilustrates the overall application on HKFRS 9 RAEH(ZE-/\FHA
and HKFRS 15 at the date of initial application, 1 —R)2EEABEVS
April 2018. Line items that were not affected by WEER BN LA B
the changes have not been included. TS RIS 165% - B3
REEIZEEHTE R
E
At At
31 March 1 April
2018 HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 2018
RIE-NF FEUERS BBUERE R-Z-N\%
ZRAZ+H  ERE5R R %95 mA—-A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHEx THT FiEx
(Restated)
€=27))
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E IR 169,187 (27,863) (3,565) 137,759
Contract assets AKEE - 60,954 (1,877) 59,077
Gross amounts due from EREFPAENIREIES
customers for contract work # 35,922 (35,922) - -
Financial assets at fair value BRATEFABRZER
through profit or loss BE 1,194 - 2,603 3,797
Tax recoverable EEAEE = 179 75 - 254
Gross amounts due to ENEPANTIEFUAR
customers for contract work # 1,981 (1,981) - -
Current income tax liabilities HEMEHEARE 11,632 (175) - 11,357
Deferred tax liabilities ERTIEEE 3,550 - (438) 3,112
Retained earnings REAF 124,128 (600) (2,401) 121,127
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RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

@

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 (continued)

Note: For the purposes of reporting cash flows from
operating activities under indirect method for the
year ended 31 March 2019, movements in working
capital have been computed based on opening
consolidated statement of financial position as at 1

April 2018 as disclosed above.

The adoption of these standards has no impact
on the net cash flow from operating, investing
and financing activities on the consolidated
statement of cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE-T—hF=A=+—BIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESBOREE ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 mBEEE(F)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211 B BREHREE (H)

(continued)

(b)  New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but b)
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective:

E A AE 5 R 2 #ET
AT B A

A

ANELE IR AT EA TS
ERMIE AR ERZ HET

SELCH Ee b
CIE

Effective for the
annual periods
beginning on or after
RUTBEBR 2 &ER
ZEEHBEN

HKFRS 16 Leases
BB HREERE165 HE
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
BB REEREIT RipaH
HK(FRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
B (ARUBEREIREES) MEHEEZ T EEY
— B3R
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
BEUMBREENESR (BIIX) EBNTR
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

ERMBREERENE (BFA) EEARKENRAENRET
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
HKAS 28 its Associate or Joint Venture
ERUBREEUZI0RLES REERHEBEQARIAEL X ANEELNEIRA
SETERIE285 (BRTAK)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material
HKAS 8
ARSHENZIRREELH EXNEE
ERIEBY (BETA)

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
BEGHRNE1% (BFTAR)  FHEIEE SRR

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
BB QRS (BFI4A) REERAREECENRAER

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

BAMBREER (BITX) “E-REECRLFREMFENE

Note: Effective for business combinations and asset
acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on
or after the beginning of the first annual period

beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE-T—hF=A=+—BIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

®)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model
for the identification of lease arrangements and
accounting treatments for both lessors and
lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17
Leases and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service
contracts on the basis of whether an identified
asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions
of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised
for all leases by lessees, except for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

©®)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured
at cost and subsequently measured at cost
(subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability
is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications,
amongst others. For the classification of cash
flows, the Group currently presents operating
lease payments as operating cash flows. Upon
application of the HKFRS 16, lease payments
in relation to lease liability will be allocated into
a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already
recognised an asset and a related finance
lease liability for the finance lease arrangement
where the Group is a lessee. The application
of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes
in classification of these assets depending on
whether the Group presents right-of-use assets
separately or within the same line item at which
the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

®)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Other than certain requirements which are also
applicable to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to
require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required
by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
approximately HK$19,241,000 as disclosed in
Note 31. A preliminary assessment indicates that
these arrangements will meet the definition of a
lease. Upon the application of HKFRS 16, the
Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-
term leases.

2 FEEHRFREBE (])

21 REBEE (F)

211 B HEREHREE (&)

EREHE R LR Z FTET
R 5] BB F A E
A (%)

HEMBHREENE16
RHE (B)

BTETREERNEAE
ABREIN - BRI TER
FHERE16R AR E
BAGREREITHRA
HEAZ G ER W
BREHBEABEED R
REETEHERMAEME -

\

AN - BB TSRS AR
F16HERBZHE -

RZB-NF=A=1—
B A&E@E%ESBTH
WM cERERED
19,241,000/8 7T (40 ff 5
1T ER) - Mt &
TRERRTEHEER
EE -RERABEIHR
EAERIE165RE - AEE
HERERAEEERE S
FTEZSHENRES
& BRIFEFEEREAEL
e

AR EEER AR
TE-NEFEFER

131



132

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

©®)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The application of new requirements may result
in changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above. The Group
intends to elect the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease applying HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the Group
will not reassess whether the contracts are, or
contain a lease which already existed prior to
the date of initial application. Furthermore, the
Group intends to elect the modified retrospective
approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as
lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect
of initial application to opening retained earnings
without restating comparative information.

The directors of the Company anticipates that
the application of other new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in
the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZ - %

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)

over which the Group has control. The Group controls

an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights

to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity

and has the ability to affect those returns through its

power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated

from the date on which control is transferred to the

Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that

control ceases.

@

Business combinations

The Group uses the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
|dentifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent

costs are expensed as incurred.

liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amount of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

@

®)

Business combinations (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the profit or loss.

Inter-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Transaction with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. For purchase of non-
controlling interests, the difference between
any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net assets
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESBREE (#)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued) 22 HWEAT (&)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued) 221 #RE (®)

(b)  Transaction with non-controlling interests
(continueq)

When the Group ceases to have control or
significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate,

b) HEIFERERAZTE
(%)

EAKETBHEAEGIE
X TBREEAFER
ERNEM REEDERN
AEEAYE MEEE
DEESREESEARS

BENR AEQREY

joint venture or financial asset. In addition, HBEEMNVIRREE- I
any amounts previously recognised in other SN BEEZ EBESE AT HA
comprehensive income in respect of that entity ZHERWARERHEAE

are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in

BT UAR - B AEE
EERHERREELR
B bR ERERANE

other comprehensive income are reclassified to fth 2 E A AR & RE
profit or loss account. EoEEERRER

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable

222 BYMKHE

1A BT B X B A 4R B AR AN R
BAR - REABRKEEES

costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are AR AR BB R R R4S
accounted for by the Company on the basis of AAEER B WA B K B
dividend received and receivable. TE5I) B o

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries =)

is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwiill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31

March 2019 HEZE=-T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent

with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating

decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who

is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments, has been identified

as the steering committee that makes strategic decisions.

24

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK$, which is the Company’s functional and the
Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZ - %

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Foreign currency translation
(continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

0] assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at the
closing rate at the end of that reporting period;

(ii) income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other financial instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is sold or any borrowings forming
part of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss,
as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE-T—hF=A=+—BIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land classified as finance lease and all other
property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of any component accounted for as a separate assets is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest becomes
available for its intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land
classified as finance lease and depreciation on other assets
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives or
lease term, where applicable, as follows:
— Land and buildings Over shorter of remaining
lease term or 50 years

— Leasehold improvements Over relevant lease term

— Furniture, fixtures and 20%
office equipment

— Machinery and equipment  20%

— Motor vehicles 20%

— Vessel 20%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment
(continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group.
It also includes properties that are being constructed or
developed for future use as investment properties. Land
held under operating leases are accounted for as investment
properties when the rest of the definition of an investment
property is met. In such cases, the operating leases
concerned are accounted for as if they were finance leases.
Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing
costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are
carried at fair value, representing open market value
determined at each reporting date by external valuers. Fair
value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If the information is not available, the group
uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices
on less active markets or discounted cash flow projections.
Changes in fair values are recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as part of a valuation gain or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.7

2.8

Intangible assets

Separately acquired intangible assets are shown at historical
cost. Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Intangible
assets have a finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate the cost of intangible
assets over their estimated useful lives.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Leases

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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29 HE

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessors are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessors) are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised
at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value
of the leased property, plant and equipment and the present
value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in other short-term and other
long-term payables. The interest element of the finance cost
is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.10 Construction contracts

Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract will be
profitable, contract revenue is recognised over the period
of the contract by reference to the stage of completion.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of
the reporting period. When it is probable that total contract
costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised only to
the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be
recoverable.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments
are included in contract revenue to the extent that may have
been agreed with the customer and are capable of being
reliably measured.

The Group uses the “percentage-of-completion method” to
determine the appropriate amount of revenue to recognise
in a given period. The stage of completion is measured by
reference to work performed to date as a percentage of total
contract value.

On the consolidated statement of financial position, the
Group reports the net contract position for each contract as
either an asset or a liability. A contract represents an asset
where costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised
losses) exceed progress billings; a contract represents a
liability where the opposite is the case.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE-T—hF=A=+—BIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHBKEE (E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets 211 ERMEE

Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income (“OCI”) or
through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of
the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018
(continued)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss (‘FVPL”), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL

are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are

solely payment of principal and interest.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHBKEE (E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets (continued) 211 EWMEE (&)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018 BE-Z-N\FHA—BRERAZEF
(continued) BUR (8)

Measurement (continued) itE (&)

Debt instruments BEBTA

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on BB LA BEFEARATEERE
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and BEECEBEAREECRERE
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three REC-AEBRBEERITAESBER=
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its Bt

debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection o HEKA:MARKBENRE
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows REMBEZEAEZRERE
represent solely payments of principal and interest EARINASEFE AIZE
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from BERBHEKEATE - ZE®
these financial assets is included in finance income BMEENTEWAKAERF
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or RGN < 42 IETER
loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly EXzFREREBEREER
in profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses) B i AR - N B AN U A K
together with foreign exchange gains and losses. BIENE MW (EE) 3
Impairment losses are presented as separate line item TeRBEEERNEBERAZY
in the statement of profit or loss. BIEIAE e

R AR AR
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018
(continued)

Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where
the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When
the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/
(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in other gains/(losses) and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A
gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within other gains/(losses) in the period
in which it arises.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE-T—hF=A=+—BIFE

2 FEEHRFREBE (])

211 ERMEE (&)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018
(continued)

Measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at
fair value. Where the Group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in
OCl, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognised in other gains/(losses) in the statement of profit
or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as at fair value
through profit or loss and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets if expected to be
settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as

non-current.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. They are included in current assets, except
for the amounts that are settled or expected to be settled
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
These are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans
and receivables comprise “trade and other receivables”,
“pledged bank deposit” and “cash and cash equivalents” in

the consolidated statement of financial position.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018
(continued)

Recognition and measurerment

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” category
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income within “Revenue” in the
period in which they arise. Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as part of revenue when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018
(continued)

Impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event
(or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

LEAP Holdings Group Limited
2019 Annual Report

2 FEEIHFRBE (&)

211 ERMEE (&)

BEE-ZE—-N\E=ZA=+—HLER
ZEEIE (#)

B 18

AEBERBEREMRILELTEE
FEA-RLREEN —HEREE
ERE - B8 EBE RN R
REERBELE TS REYURE
MEF (TBEREMN])  MERHEF
EREMEZECREEXZATR
BEMMBAAKRREREENTER
BESMTI ST IR A S M E E X
HERmEECHEMELRERBE-

BERENEERIERRBEBASL—
HESALEKEEAM KRN 1
REBIMAINFEHAE HBA
BEFR A ESETTEMM B IR A
RABRBEER At RRADR
EHBAAFENRELD BB
B RRSAR B AR ) B 55

RERREEFIEERIN S BER
BORBEERAEERENEER
BERMEFBEMETARRSRE
(TEERRELENAREEEE) D
REMENEZEAE - EEREER
THIR - MERSRAEIRDER -



2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)
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Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018
(continued)

Impairment (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such
as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal
of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
services performed and loans granted to customers in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade and
other receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts (if
any).
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

2.15 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or
in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.17 Borrowing costs
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217 EEK A

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of each reporting period in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluate positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to
the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

2 FEEIHFRBE (&)

(continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences, arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, the deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred taxation liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

2.19 Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the end of each
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.19 Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution plan
and pays contributions to a privately administered
pension insurance plan on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably
committed to a termination when the entity has a
detailed formal plan to terminate the employment of
current employees without possibility of withdrawal.
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to
accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of each reporting period are
discounted to present value.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered
by employees and a reliable estimate of such obligation
can be made.

2 FEEHRFREBE (])
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

BRIRER

& B 2 — TR E R ORGET
& W ARFINE - SRS B
T RATLAEERNRKE R
@t 8l S K- AR B E
IR Vg — S NREE
HREZ R R S EBET
X -FANHREAR SRR
SRR FOR D BB S HER
REE-

BREERAE A

HRENNMEEELTERKA
R A SR B AR FER R el fE B 3%
X B AR AR Bt S5 4% R B
St AEEREERERSE
—IRFAmEA AR BIR LR
PR R B ML E R A] s
AECGHES - R BB AR R - R
HE X DAE B B BB A B
T BERAEAN DIREERER
BHNEBEABHE-EZR
EHIAREBE12 @A T BT
MENE R RIE -

TEALRT &I

AEBEREEBRHRBME L
RBEEEREEE EANIERE
B TR SEst (b At By pLIE AT
RABERHAZ-

AR EEER AR
TE-NEFEFER

155



156

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amounts have been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may

be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligations. The increase in the provision due to passage of

time is recognised as interest expense.

2.21 Contingent liabilities and contingent

assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resource will be required or the amount of

obligation cannot be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE-T—hF=A=+—BIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2 FEEHRFREBE (])

2.21 Contingent liabilities and contingent 221 AAREBBRAAEE (&)

assets (continued)

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow
is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.

2.22 Revenue recognition

Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or
as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when“control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE-T—hF=A=+—BIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.22 Revenue recognition (continued)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018
(continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE-T—hF=A=+—BIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHBKEE (E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.22 Revenue recognition (continued) 222 WatER (&)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018
(continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a contract
are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satistaction of a performance obligation

QOutput method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance
in transferring control of goods or services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.22 Revenue recognition (continued)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018
(continued)

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group
estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be
entitled using either (a) the expected value method or (b)
the most likely amount, depending on which method better
predicts the amount of consideration to which the Group will
be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included
in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly
probable that such an inclusion will not result in a significant
revenue reversal in the future when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating its
assessment of whether an estimate of variable consideration
is constrained) to represent faithfully the circumstances
present at the end of the reporting period and the changes in
circumstances during the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.22 Revenue recognition (continued)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018
(continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract

The Group incurs costs to fulfil a contract in its construction
contracts. The Group first assesses whether these costs
qualify for recognition as an asset in terms of other relevant
standards, failing which it recognises an asset for these costs
only if they meet all of the following criteria:

° the costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the Group can specifically
identify;

° the costs generate or enhance resources of the Group
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future; and

° the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to profit
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which
the assets relate. The asset is subject to impairment review.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31

March 2019 BE-T—NF=A=1+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.22 Revenue recognition (continued)

Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration

received or receivables for the sale of services in the ordinary

course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown after

eliminating sales within the Group.

@)

Foundation works and ancillary services income
Revenue from construction contracts is recognised
based on the stage of completion of the contracts as
detailed in note 2.10 above.

Construction wastes handling services income
Revenue from provision of construction wastes
handling services are recognised on completion of the
related services rendered to the customer.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Rental income
Rental income from lease of property and machinery

is recognised based on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2 FEEHRFREBE (])

2.23 Government grants

2.23 BUF B

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and released to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements and the Company’s financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are declared by the directors
in case of interim dividends or approved by the Company’s
shareholders in case of final dividends.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE-T—hF=A=+—BIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.25 Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”") (2018: from financial
assets at FVPL). Dividends are recognised as revenue in profit
or loss when the right to receive payment is established.

2.26 Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in
the net gain/(loss) on change in fair value of these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost (2018:
loans and receivables) calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as part of other
income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
except for financial assets that subsequently become credit-
impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESBREE (#)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.27 Related Parties 221 BER
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ERAATETIER THE REARE
BRAE
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that @ ZABRZBATREHALTR
person’s family and that person: BEEHB mZzaAL:
()  has control or joint control of the Group: () HAREEHEEITIENE
()42 il 2

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or iy HAEEHEBEATE

753k

(i) is a member of the key management personnel (i) AAREEIAEHRGAT
of the Group or of a parent of the Group. MNEEEEENE -

or B4
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following (o) fWEMNTEGER  AIEZ
conditions applies: HR—EE:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the () ZEBRASHEAR—%
same group; Bk 8 AT

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy —ERAS—EEMNHE
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow NAElHKEERE (K5 —
subsidiary of the other entity); EENSQF B AA

AR IANCIDE

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (i) ZEERAEEHAR-—
same third party; FE-IMEEDE:

(v)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy —ERA—F-MEEBED
the other entity is an associate of the third entity; aEhE ME—E8R

ZE-—HEBOEZA
=]

(V)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for v  EEBAANEHIEASE
the benefit of employees of either the Group or EEFENERNESN
an entity related to the Group; M AR B BE B 18 R A AT

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE-T—hF=A=+—BIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHBKREE ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.27 Related Parties (continued) 227 BBEH (&)
() the party is an entity where any of the following (o) AR ARG ER - Al EZ
conditions applies: (continued) FR—EE: (&)
(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a Vi) ZEREX@ FT#EAIA
person identified in (); 12 X LR A
(vil a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (Vi)  (@OFTERBIMALHZE
influence over the entity or is a member of key SITHREATEN A
management personnel of the entity (or of a ZEE (AZEBHNEA
parent of the entity); and EMFEERAE R
(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it (vii) EEESKHFTESE TR
is a part, provides key management personnel W% NaElAAEE S A S
services to the Group or to the parent of the NAEHFETEA
Group. 8 HW% °
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MEREEE
3.1 Financial risk factors 3.1 MKEREE
The Group’s activities exposed it to a variety of financial risks: REEMNEKERZEMERR T
market risk (foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), HBRERK (SMNERREFIERR) (5 %
credit risk and liquidity risk. Rk RREE SRR -
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses AEEMEERRERFIZENS
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to BRI 5 A B R BN R AN S B B
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial BRBOEEDNZE -
performance.
Market risk 35 B B
() Foreign exchange risk ) SMNERSE
The Group operates in Hong Kong and the PRC and REBTERBERFEHZE
is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising mainly from & P R SME BB 3 B 2R
transactions in RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises from BARBER G HNERKIKE
future commercial transactions, recognised assets and REIARREERS BHERE
liabilities and net investments in operations in the PRC. EREBENREEREFE
The appreciation or devaluation of the RMB against the AREH BT BEXEE  TF
HK$ may also have an impact on the operating results AR ERNEBNCEER-

of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Market risk (continued)

()

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

In addition, the Group’s foreign exchange position is
monitored on an ongoing basis in order to minimise
the impact from the fluctuation of foreign currency
rate. The Group currently does not maintain a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, management
monitors the foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Interest rate risk

Other than bank balances with variable interest rate,
the Group has no other significant interest-bearing
assets with variable interest rate. Management does
not anticipate significant impact to interest-bearing
assets resulted from the changes in interest rates,
because the interest rates of bank balances are not
expected to change significantly.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings.
Borrowings obtained with variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk which is partially
offset by cash deposited at variable rates. The Group
has not hedged its cash flow interest rate risks.

As at 31 March 2019, if the interest rate on all
variable-rate borrowings had been 100 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s loss after income tax for the year would
have been increased/decreased by approximately
HK$1,000 (2018: the Group’s profit after income tax
for the year would have been decreased/increased by
approximately HK$37,000), mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expense on borrowings with floating
interest rates.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises mainly from trade and other receivables,
contract assets, pledged bank deposit and cash and cash
equivalents. The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at the reporting dates in relation to each class
of recognised financial assets and contract assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In respect of cash at banks, the credit risk is considered to
be low as the counterparties are reputable banks. Therefore,
expected credit loss rate of cash at banks are assessed to be
close to zero and no provision was made.

In respect of trade and other receivables and contract
assets, individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers and counterparties. These evaluations focus on
the counterparty’s financial position, past history of making
payments and take into account information specific to
the counterparty as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the counterparty operates. Monitoring
procedures have been implemented to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade and other receivable and contract assets balance at the
end of each reporting period to ensure adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

As at 31 March 2019, there were three (2018: four)
customers which individually contributed over 10% of the
Group’s trade receivables, loan receivables and contract
assets (2018: trade and other receivables). The aggregate
amounts of trade receivables, loan receivables and contract
assets (2018: trade and other receivables) from these
customers amounted to 45% (2018: 48%) of the Group’s
total trade receivables, loan receivables and contract assets
(2018: trade and other receivables) as at 31 March 2019.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE-T—hF=A=+—BIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework comprises
the following categories:

3 MEERBEEE (&)

MEERER (&)
EHEAR (H)

\@%:

Basis for

Category Description recognising ECL
5l it BRAERHEEFRCER
Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have any past-due amounts 12-month ECL
Rk RSEFANENRRE W REMBHR PREAEHEESE
Doubtful There has been a significant increase in credit r|sk since initial recognition Lifetime
ECL-not credit-impaired

2= BENSERREERBERRE LT rHRYEERE
—REENE

In default There is evidence indicating the asset is credit impaired Lifetime
ECL-credit impaired

EH BEBETEECEERNE THRAEERE
~BEERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and Amount is written off

the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery

fin 54 FRERTEEARAREVRARASEYEEE REM AL

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade
receivables and contract assets. To measure the ECL,
trade receivables and contract assets have been assessed
individually with significant balances and the remaining
balances are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics. The contract assets relate to unbilled work in
progress and have substantially the same risk characteristics
as the trade receivables for the same types of contracts. The
Group has therefore estimated the expected loss rates for the
trade receivables and the contract assets on the same basis.

The Group has performed historical analysis and identified
the key economic variables impacting credit risk and ECL. It
considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-
looking information. The Group also makes periodic
assessments on the recoverability of the receivables based
on the background and reputation of the customers,
historical settlement records and past experience.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group assessed the loss allowance for loan receivables
on 12-month ECL basis.

The loss allowance for trade receivables, contract assets and

MERREE ()

31 H¥ERBEE (&)
EEER ()

AEEZ12(AATRREREREREN
HERE R Z B R

BHRWEN A HEERERER

loan receivables were determined as follows. ZMEREETR T
Weighted
average
expected Gross
credit carrying Expected Net carrying
loss rate amount credit loss amount
mHEFH
BHEE
EBEX BREEE BHEEER REEE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TR TR
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-hE=A=+-H
Trade receivables B RHMEKERR
Provision on individual basis REREERE 3.21% 62,590 (2,009) 60,581
Contract assets EHNEE
Provision on individual basis REREERE 2.18% 92,760 (2,018) 90,742
Loan receivables EKER
Provision on individual basis RIEREE B 3.42% 34,466 (1,179) 33,287
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE-T—hF=A=+—BIFE

3 MEERBEEE (&)

BE R EE (&)

FERR (&)

The closing loss allowances for trade receivables, contract
assets and loan receivables as at 31 March 2019 reconcile to
the opening loss allowances as follows:

R-ZE-NF=A=t—H B5EK
WHER - BB EREWEFRHHIR
R E R B BRGNS RN

T
Trade Contract Loan
receivables assets receivables
B 2 EBURN ENEE ERER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET FET
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-NE=A=+-H
- calculated under HKAS 39 -BEEBEHERFERHE - - -
Amounts restated through BRRNRBRTES
opening retained earnings MR 961 1,877 1
Opening loss allowance as at - \FMA—HH
1 April 2018 HOEERE
- caloulated under HKFRS 9 - REEE ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ‘@%ﬁ C 961 1,877 1
Increase in loss allowance FARERER
recognised in profit or loss EEBEEM /?%E
during the year, net 1,048 141 1,178
At 31 March 2019 —NE=ZA=+—H 2,009 2,018 1,179

Trade and other receivables and contract assets are written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery
include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group.

Impairment losses on trade receivables, contract assets and
loan receivables are presented as net impairment losses
within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the same line item.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

At 31 March 2019, the Group assessed the 12-month ECL of
the other receivables and considered that the ECL allowance

for these receivables is immaterial.

Previous accounting policy for impairment of trade
receivables

In the prior year, the impairment of trade receivables was
assessed based on the incurred loss model. Individual
receivables which were known to be uncollectible were
written off by reducing the carrying amount directly. The other
receivables were assessed collectively to determine whether
there was objective evidence that an impairment had been
incurred but not yet been identified. For these receivables the

3 MEERBEEE (&)

3.1

MERERREE (&)
EEER ()

RZE—NF=ZA=+—8 £%£E
A E A E W RIE 212 ATERE E
BIETRAZSEN B EHREE
B R ERT H -

B S EWAR R B.2 555 & 51 BOR

RLEFE E5RERIFORETRE
EEAFEBRIMG - 2 MEERE
HO 1 5l FE M R TR R B R BR T 2 5
T OAMSE o B At FE U TR TR T DA SR RS RY
B NEEEREREERRARE
B3 A M 1 R BEE o Bh % S IR MR
& - AR EBERNE R ERE
RER MR A T EMPBR A&

estimated impairment losses were recognised in a separate
provision for impairment. The Group considered that there
was evidence of impairment if any of the following indicators

BB AT ERER R

were present:

o significant financial difficulties of the debtor

° probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or

financial reorganisation, and

. default or late payments.

Receivables for which an impairment provision was
recognised were written off against the provision when there

was no expectation of recovering additional cash.
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RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MERBEE(#)
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 B¥EKREZE (&)
Liquidity risk REBESRR
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and REBMBE AT AR RFEH
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with debt HRBESE R REEBRZINE
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves RoWHRAEE AR AN SR
of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from BUAREIRTT R E b & RUMIEEE T
banks and other financial institutions to meet their liquidity BREEES  UENERH MRS
requirements in the short and long term. Management RBESEFR-EEEMRE ARA
believes there is no significant liquidity risk as the Group has SHEEARNECREREREEE
sufficient committed facilities to fund their operations. WEENRBE SRR -
The following table details the remaining contractual TRIFMASEENESRBERS RS
maturities at the end of each reporting period of the BIRE A N RT ARG R - THIRaT 40
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on contractual KRR RE (BIEFERFTONE
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments K (BEARZE)SMEHRHRNENEF
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on RAEMFEI L) RAEB AL
rates current rates at the end of each reporting period) and M&xFERBE:

the earliest date the Group may be required to pay:

On demand Between Between
or within one and two and
one year two years five years Total
REX —F (23
H—FR EmE ZnE w@st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TER TER TER
At 31 March 2019 R-ZE-hE=A=+—-H
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMER 92,772 - - 92,772
Amount due to a R —ERHBARRE
former subsidiary 10,641 - - 10,641
Loan from a related party —REBHER 148,500 - - 148,500
Finance lease liabilities mEMEaE 165 81 80 326
Borrowings (excluding EBE(ToEREEERE)
finance lease liabilties) 25 - - 25
252,103 81 80 252,264

R AR AR
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

3.2

MERREE ()

Financial risk factors (continued) 31 B¥EKREZE (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRR (&)
On demand Between Between
or within one and two and
one year two years five years Total
REX —F Gk
F—FR EWE ZRF s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT FRT THL
At 31 March 2018 RZZ-N\F=ZA=+—H
Trade and other payables B R EMENRR 43,880 - - 43,880
Loan from a related party —ZBEHER 141,750 - - 141,750
Finance lease liabiltties BEHEERE 4,581 193 - 4,774
Borrowings (excluding BE(TeEREREAR)
finance lease liabilities) 325 - - 325
190,536 193 - 190,729
Capital management 3.2 EXEHE

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, to
support the Group’s stability and growth; to earn a margin
commensurate with the level of business and market risks
in the Group’s operations and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, obtain new
borrowings or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as the total interest-bearing liabilities
as at each year end divided by the total equity as at each
year end.
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RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE-T—hF=A=+—BIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3 MEERBEEE (&)

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Capital management (continued) 32 EXEE (&)
The gearing ratios of the Group are as follows: AEENEERELERNT
2019 2018
—s-h& T N&
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FETT
Total borrowings BEs 143,770 141,699
Total equity B 341,682 370,428
Gearing ratio BEBGELE 42% 38%
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AR {EME

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments
carried at fair value as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 by level
of the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a
fair value hierarchy as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

TRIEFTE QAT EZAERITAT A&
ABEBEHNER SR _E—NFR

—\FE=ZA=+—RAXEEEZRQ
FEMNENSRT R - BHEHARE
ERFEZEHAPEAEOT =A%
[

o  HRBEREBEREETSN
HECRERE) (F-M) -

s BE-SHMEENMEN
BEXRENERE (WER)K
B (BMERITAEY) FTEREK
AR (F=R) -

s  UWIHKEABERAMHHE
EEMEEXBENEAE
(TR ARE) (F=
) e
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

3 MEERBEEE (&)

3.3 REEMEF (&)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-] =R F=H st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER TER
As at 31 March 2019 RZE-AE=ZA=t—-H
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value through & A FEx ABEH
profit or loss SREE
- Life insurance policy - ASRE - - 2,630 2,630
- Wealth management products ~-BHER - 4,723 - 4,723
~ Unlisted warrant —J ETRIRER - - 1,691 1,691
- 4,723 4,321 9,044
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
R F-4 E=/ @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TAT FET THT
As at 31 March 2018 RZZE-NEZA=+—H
Assets EE
Financial assets at fair value through & A FE: ABZH)
profit or loss SREE
Held-for-trading investments: BIEEEMRE:
- Listed equity securities - FIRAES 1,194 - - 1,194

The fair value of the life insurance policy is determined based
on the cash value of the life insurance policy which is not an
observable input. Management estimates the fair value based
on the latest information of the life insurance policy provided
by insurance company.

The fair value of the wealth management products are
determined based on the quoted prices from the relevant
banks.

The fair value of the unlisted warrant is determined based
on the Black-Scholes model. The significant unobservable
inputs mainly include risk free rate of 2.21% (reference to US
Treasury curve) and expected volatility of 38.53% (reference
to comparable listed companies). The fair value increases
with the increase in the risk free rate or expected volatility.
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RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MERBEE(#)
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 XFEMLE (&)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets RERMEEEzemI A ATE
is based on quoted market prices at the end of reporting THERBE AR 2 TS RERTE o W
period. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are ZWENRSHAEARNER G K&
readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, R 4 TTEEE  RERGHE
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, B MZEWERMERNEH
and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring BATFRAEITZMIBER S %
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted AR BER AEERBECeREE
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is FIfERzmHHREARITEAEG Z
the current bid price. These instruments are included in level ETEFAZ—R-FFAE—HRNT
1. Instruments included in level 1 comprise primarily equity BEXZREREEREMIZ MO
investments listed in Hong Kong Stock market classified as RSB FORAEIRE -

trading securities.

The following table presents the changes in level 3 items for TRIEEFRNEZREE 2 &)
the year:
2019 2018
—E-h#F NS
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Opening balance FHEH - -
Reclassification on adoption of RN B BV BmE LN ESRRET
HKFRS 9 2,603 -
Purchases during the year FANEE 1,845 -
Net fair value change FATEE (127) -
Closing balance FARER 4,321 -
There were no transfers between levels during the year. RER WESH 2 BERER
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying RRAREBRBRIGRE W BMR N R E
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded SHOREERATECEREERS
at amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial MEEsRmMEREQAFERS-

position approximate their fair value.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated
financial statements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets

Until 31 March 2018, management determines the provision
for impairment of trade and other receivables. This estimate
is based on the credit history of its customers and the current
market condition. Management reassesses the provision at
the end of each financial period.

Significant judgement is exercised on the assessment of the
collectability of receivables from each customer. In making
the judgement, management considers a wide range of
factors such as results of follow-up procedures, customer
payment trends including subsequent payments and
customers’ financial positions. If the financial conditions of
the customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowances may be required.

Since 1 April 2018, the loss allowances for financial assets
and contract asset are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period.
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RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE-T—hF=A=+—BIFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4 HEX&&H &tk FIEr
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED) (#])

(b) Progress towards completion of b) BEIRERBEDL

construction works

The Group recognises its contract over time by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation of the end of the reporting period, measured based
on the surveys of work performed to date of the individual
contract of construction works relative to total contract
value. Because of the nature of the activity undertaken
in construction contracts, the date at which the contract
activity is entered into and the date when the activity is
completed usually fall into different accounting period.
The Group reviews and revises the estimates of contract
revenue, contract costs and variation orders prepared for
each construction contract as the contract progresses.
Management regularly reviews the progress of the contracts
and the corresponding costs of the contract revenue.

The Group reviews and revises the estimates of contract
revenue, contract costs, variation orders and contract claims
prepared for each construction contract as the contract
progresses. Budgeted construction costs are prepared by
the management on the basis of quotations from time to
time provided by the major contractors, suppliers or vendors
involved and the experience of the management. In order
to keep the budget accurate and up-to-date, management
conducts periodic reviews of the budgets of contracts by
comparing the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts
incurred. Such significant estimate may have impact on the
profit recognised in each period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, GAINS
AND LOSSES AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION

Revenue and other income, gains and losses recognised during the

5 I
]

=
-]

2B E#

CHAUWA - RS

F R R E MUY - Yas K 5 1B R A

year are as follows: N
2019 2018
—E-h#EF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Foundation works and ancillary services — #thE T2 & it &R 254,837 150,004
Construction wastes handling services REREYRIE RS 104,590 99,637
Revenue from contracts with REEFEHANBA
customers 359,427 249,641
Rental income from lease of machinery HE#EEENHES KA 3,408 2,443
Interest income from money lending WEEBEEFERA
business 2,257 5,195
Fair value change on investments in BHEREQNFEE
securities
— Realised change —-BERE (137) 43,639
— Unrealised change —REIREF (49) (2,492)
Dividend income from investments in BHRERBWA
securities - 199
Total revenue WS4 EE 364,906 298,625
Other income, gains and losses HA - B REER
Rental income from lease of HEREYMEEENHES WA
investment properties - 306
Interest income F B U A 1,853 86
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEME WEMEHEZ
plant and equipment Uezs, (E548) 179 (577)
Government grants (Note) BT BY (B 7F) = 71
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 34) &N B AR Z Wz (A1iF534) 2 1,056
Net loss on change in fair value of financial X AF(EFFABHZ S REE
assets at fair value through profit or loss A (B & &) 518 % 58 (56) -
Services income BRI WA 1,415 -
Others HAh 618 1,798
4,011 2,740

Note: There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these grants.
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RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, GAINS
AND LOSSES AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

5 Urg HMIA 2R ES

HRSEHBEH ()

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts PIREFEHN NS
with customers
2019
o
HK$’000
THET
Type of services R R
Foundation works and ancillary services — #hE T 12 & it &R 254,837
Construction wastes handling services FREAREY R IE RIS 104,590
359,427
Timing of revenue recognition U 3 7 3R B
QOver time et Rkl 359,427
Performance obligations for contracts with EBEFEANEITER

customers

The Group provides foundation works and ancillary services and
construction wastes handling services to customers. Such services
are recognised as performance obligations satisfied over time as
the Group creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the asset is created or enhanced or the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group as
the Group performs, respectively. Revenue for these works is
therefore recognised over time. The Group measures progress
using an output method. Specifically, progress is based on surveys
of the relevant services completed by the Group to the end of the
current reporting period with reference to certificates issued by
customers or payment applications confirmed by internal surveyor.
The directors of the Company consider that this method faithfully
depicts the Group’s performance towards complete satisfaction of
these performance obligations in these contracts under HKFRS 15.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, GAINS 5 llgﬁ ~Hthlk A 4 2R E
AND LOSSES AND SEGMENT BESEBEHE (1)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Transaction price allocated to the PTHMEEFEHNZHRTEANER
remaining performance obligations from N ZE
contracts with customers
The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance R-ZZE—NF=ZA=+—HoEZ%#TE
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March 2019 HEENRZHE (REKSE D ERK) KT8
and the expected timing of recognising revenue are as follows: HRE R S A
Foundation
works and
ancillary
services
WEITRR
BEER
HK$'000
FHT
Within one year —FN 292,365
More than one year Bl —FETEBmRE
but not more than two years 230,492
522,857

In addition, construction wastes handling services contracts are not
included in the above analysis as the possible transaction prices
and the ultimate consideration for these contracts will depend on
the occurrence or non-occurrence of future customer usage. In
light of these basis of preparation, the above does not reflect the
expectation of the Group’s performance. The analysis is solely for
compliance with HKFRS 15 disclosure requirement in respect of
transaction price allocated the remaining performance obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, GAINS
AND LOSSES AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment information

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the directors, the chief operating decision-
maker, that are used to make strategic decisions. The directors
consider the business from a product/service perspective. Principal
activities of the segments are as follows:

(@ Foundation works and ancillary services: Provision of
site formation works, excavation and lateral support,
piling construction, pile caps or footing construction and
reinforced concrete structure works and ancillary services
mainly included hoarding and demolition works and lease of
machinery;

(b)  Construction wastes handling services: Provision of
management and operation of public fill reception facilities,
including public fill banks and temporary construction waste
sorting facilities, for construction and demolition materials;

(c)  Money lending business; and
(d)  Investments in securities.

Segment revenue is measured in a manner consistent with
that in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The directors assess the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of segment results. Unallocated income,
unallocated corporate expenses, finance costs, income tax
expense and other major items that are isolated and non-recurring
in nature are not included in segment results.

Segment assets mainly consist of current assets and non-current
assets as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial
position except unallocated cash and cash equivalents and other
unallocated assets.

Segment liabilities mainly consist of current liabilities and non-
current liabilities as disclosed in the consolidated statement of
financial position except current income tax liabilities, deferred tax
liabilities, amount due to a former subsidiary, loan from a related
party, borrowings and other unallocated liabilities.

5
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, GAINS 5 M
AND LOSSES AND SEGMENT |
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

= Hr A
&

Segment information (continued) PHER (&)
Foundation  Construction
works and wastes Money
ancillary handling lending  Investments
services services business  in securities Total
WEIER B
BRERE BUNEERE HEER BHERE @it
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT THT TET TET
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE-_E-AF=A=1-H
LFE
Revenue Wik
External revenue LSes 258,245 104,590 2,257 (186) 364,906
Segment results D EE 26,802 2,394 1,481 (194) 30,483
Unallocated income E T ON 4,011
Unallocated corporate expenses bl N E (53,302)
Impairment losses on financial assets SREERANBEZREER
and contract assets (2,367)
Finance costs BEMAR (6,868)
Loss before income tax BRETIS R A E R (28,043)
Income tax credit FrigfEe 808
Loss for the year FAFE (27,235)
Included in segment results are: AN HEEMNER
Depreciation nE 10,985 1,079 - - 12,064
At 31 March 2019 R-B-nF=A=t-H
Segment assets DHEE 187,173 31,846 182,107 - 401,126
Unallocated assets AOREE 193,532
Total assets LEBE 594,658
Additions to non-current asset: FRBEERE:
Segment assets NHEE 2,675 - - - 2,675
Unallocated assets AOEEE 10,816
13,491
Segment liabilities DEBE 54,322 18,456 - - 72,778
Unallocated liabilties RHEEE 19,994
Amount due to a former subsidiary e — R B A RIFRE 10,641
Loan from a related party —ZBEREN 143,438
Borrowings BE 332
Current income tax liabilties HEmEHERE 3,588
Deferred tax liabilities BEREEE 2,205
Total liabilities Ltk 252,976
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, GAINS 5 lgga HMlgA 4 2REB
=
AND LOSSES AND SEGMENT BERSEBEHE (8)
Segment information (continued) PEHER (&)
Foundation ~ Construction
works and wastes Money
ancillary handling lending Investments
services services business in securities Total
HWETER BREED
RERS RIER WEEH BHERE @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TET FTET FTET
Year ended 31 March 2018 BE-Z-N\E=A=+-H
LEE
Revenue W&
External revenue SN 152,447 99,637 5,195 41,346 298,625
Segment results DEELE 20,073 4,240 5,128 41,241 70,682
Unallocated income KOBYA 2,740
Unallocated corporate expenses RABRART (38,758)
Finance costs BAKA (2,917)
Profit before income tax B BT 5 5% A 7B 31,747
Income tax expense Giterlibs (6,379)
Profit for the year FREAF 25,368
Included in segment results are: FADHEESER
Depreciation wE 12,773 1,996 - - 14,769
At 31 March 2018 R-B-N\§=ZA=+-H
Segment assets DEEE 152,169 36,011 121,792 2,327 312,299
Unallocated assets ROBEE 260,771
Total assets BEBE 573,070
Additions to non-current asset: REFTHEE:
Segment assets PHEE 710 - - - 710
Unallocated assets APREE 3,088
4,698
Segment liabiliies AHEE 25,019 10,479 - - 35,498
Unallocated liabilities xoEEE 10,363
Loan from a related party —2BEFER 136,688
Borrowings EE 5,011
Current income tax liabilities HEMEHERE 11,632
Deferred tax liabilities EIEHEEE 3,550
Total liabilities BEEE 202,642
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, GAINS
AND LOSSES AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment information (continued)

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues and
results are attributed to the segments based on the location of the
customers, and assets are attributed to the segments based on the
location of the assets. The Group’s major operations and markets
are located in Hong Kong, no geographical segment information is
provided.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group are as follows:

i
]

% CHAA B RS

BEF (#])

-y

DEER (F)

B A R AR 5 R - 53 2B S
MR TRE S LT - T B
A BERIR I A B AL B A
EBHHRTBELAES GRS
REUEE D BEK -

FBREEFEFNESR

A 2 i 7 SR B M A B B 1 0% ) B P
T

2019 2018

—E-h#EF = N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Customer A2 EPA N/A 738 A3 68,766

Customer B’ BEB 76,382 73,099
Customer C? HPC? 69,458 N/A i 8
Customer D2 BFD? 41,084 N/A 73 2
Customer E2 EFPE 53,663 N/A 35 A2

Customer F2 BEP N/A 38 A3 45,670

! Revenue from construction wastes handling services.
2 Revenue from foundation works and ancillary services.
° The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total

revenue of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

FINANCE COSTS 6 MEKRE
2019 2018
—ZE-NF —ZET-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FET
Interest on finance leases RMEHERE 109 276

Interest on bank overdrafts, RITBEL RITEER

bank borrowings and other borrowing HiEER B 9 953
Interest on loan from a related party —RBEFERF L 6,750 1,688
6,868 2,917

_(II__A?(SS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME 7 B&FrSMAT (&518) FiE

2019 2018
—E-h#F —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

(Loss)/profit before income tax has been  BRFTERAT (E518) /FIBE K

arrived at after charging (crediting): (BT A)AT&IE:
Auditors’ remuneration = A B & 1,150 950
Staff costs including directors’ BIA BIEESHS

emoluments (Note 8) (H1:28) 57,633 54,197
Depreciation (Note 14) WweE (Kat14) 13,721 15,936
Operating lease rental on premises MEZKEHERS 9,568 1,919
Direct operating expenses arising from HRESWMAZIREMEREE Y

investment properties that generate BEEEETH

rental income - 28
Written off of trade receivable Z Z) FE U BR 51 8 982 -
Exchange loss/(gain), net N E1E, (M=) 58 916 (18)

AEEREERRAT 187
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES,
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS

mAAY BREEE

0

8 &
]

2019 2018

—E-hE —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

THT FHET

Salaries and allowances e MoREh 55,658 52,315
Retirement scheme contributions RRET &R

— defined contribution plan — E R TS 1,975 1,882

57,633 54,197

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme in Hong
Kong which complies with the requirements under the Mandatory
Provident Fund (“MPF”) Schemes Ordinance. All assets under the
scheme are held separately from the Group under independently
administered funds. Contributions to the MPF scheme follow the
MPF Schemes Ordinance.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC
are required to participate in a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the PRC government. The Group is required
to contribute a certain percentage of basic payroll costs to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to
make the required contributions under the scheme.

LEAP Holdings Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

9 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS

9 EFERIRER

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s (@) ESRFETBRAEMS

emoluments

The remuneration of each director and the chief executive for
the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 is set out below:

REERTIZTRABRHBE_Z
—NER-ZT-N\F=A=+—HIE

FEAMESEHIWT
Employer’s
Salaries, contribution
allowances toa
and benefits  Discretionary retirement
Fee in kind bonuses scheme Total
Be RE RIKEHE
e RENEH MERA FESE @t
Year ended BE-Z-NF HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
31 March 2019 ZA=t-BLEE TET FET TR FET TERT
Non-executive directors kHTES
Mr. Xu Mingxing (M. Xu") HRAREE ([TR%EAE])
(Note () (Hizt(n) - = = = =
Mr. Pu Xiaojiang (“Mr. Pu") BRIEE (DREAED
(Note () (Hiztn) - - - - -
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Ren Yunan (“Mr. Ren’) FRBEE ([FEAED
(Chief executive officer) (Note (f)) (1TBER) (i) 437 1,866 - 26 2,329
Mr. Cheng Yuk (“Mr. Cheng’) Hrasxs ([BRE])
(Notes (i) and (i) (Hizti R i) 120 - - 6 126
Mr. Luo Ting (*Mr. Luo”) BERAE([BEE]
(Note (iv)) (Hiz0y) 585 188 - 27 800
Mr. Zhu Junkan (M. Zhu") REREE ([REE])
(Note (iv)) (Hizay) 585 - - 11 596
Mr. Ip Ying Chau (“Mr. Ip”) EEMNEA ([E5£])
(Note (1) (Hiz)) 10 150 - 2 162
Independent non-executive BIUHTES
directors
Mr. Jiang Guoliang (‘M. Jiang") BEREE ([Bx4))
(Note (Vi) (Htatii) 140 - - - 140
Mr. Lee Man Chiu (‘M. Lee’) EXREE ([FHE])
(Note (Vi) (Bt i) 180 - - - 180
Mr. Chan Chun Yiu Thomas RRRLE
(M. Thomas Chan’) (FRAREE])
(Notes (i) and (vii) (B i) R A 2 vip) 10 - - - 10
Mr. Chan King Chung BREA L AE
(‘Mr. Chan K.C.") (IFRE R EAE])
(Notes (ij) and (i) (Hrm&ai) 190 - - - 190
Mr. Li Zhouxin (“Mr. LT") ZREAMEAE ([2RE])
(Note (i) (Htatai)) 190 - - - 190
2,447 2,204 - 72 4,723
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

9 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

9 EFEFIRER (])

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s (@) EERFETHAEME
emoluments (continued) (#8)
Employer's
Salaries, contribution
allowances toa
and benefits Discretionary retirement
Fee in kind bonuses scheme Total
o2 BRI
e REMET [i=piaa EEHT @5t
Year ended Hz-Z2-\& HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
31 March 2018 ZA=T-RLFE THET TATL TR THBT THBT
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Cheng (Notes (i) and (i) 5 (HTE0)R i) 45 - - 2 47
Mr. Luo (Note (iv)) BIEE (Withy) - - - - -
Mr. Zhu (Note (iv)) REE (W) - - - - -
Mr. Ip (Note (i) BR5E (i) 47 2,565 80 18 2,710
Mr. Chan Wing Chung (‘Mr. Chan”)  BRak B4 (TRR%E4])
(Note (ix)) (Hiitix)) - 735 - 11 746
Ms. Tung Ah Pui Athena (‘Ms. Tung) ZEoEx+ ([Ex1])
(Note (i)) (Hiitix) - 638 - 11 649
Mr. Chan Chiang Kan REEHEE
(Mr. Chan CK.") ([FREZEE])
(Note (ix)) (Hiitix) - 563 - 11 574
Mr. Mui Wai Sum (‘M. Mui’) EeEREE ([BxE])
(Note (i) (Hiitix) 225 - - - 225
Mr. Yip To Chun (“Mr. Yip”) REnrt ([EE5%4])
(Notes (i) and (x) (BRI ) 259 - - - 259
Independent non-executive BUKBTES
directors
Mr. Lee (Note (Vi) R (Watwi)) - - - - -
Mr. Thomas Chan BRABLE
(Notes (i) and (vii)) (a2 i R 32 (i) ) 45 - - - 45
Mr. Chan K.C. R EAE
(Notes (i) and (i) (Hizt R i) 45 - - - 45
Mr. Li (Note (ii)) FRE (H ) 45 - - - 45
Mr. Cheung Kwok Yan, Wilfred REC KA
(M. Cheung’) (MR%ED
(Note (ix)) (Hiiti) 80 - - - 80
Mr. Feng Zhidong (“Mr. Feng’) BEREE ([HEE])
(Note (ix)) (Hiitiy) 80 - - - 80
Professor Ho Ho Ming AZEHE ([AHE])
(“Professor Ho") (Note (ix)) (Hizty) 80 - - - 80
951 4,501 80 53 5,585

During the year ended 31 March 2019, no emoluments were
paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office (2018: Nil). Neither the chief executive nor any of the
directors has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments

during the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

LEAP Holdings Group Limited
2019 Annual Report

HE-_Z-AFE=A=+—HBI=E
& AN TR E E T (A B
T EAMAZE B 3R 0 R &
ReFERAERBE (ZT—N\F:
#) - HE_T-—NF=ZFA=+—H
IFFE BEXTZETHABREENK
ERREMEZERDTABNE (ZF
— )\ 4E]) o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

9 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (continued)

Notes:

(i)

)

(vi)

(vii

(vii)

(ix)

Mr. Ren was appointed as an executive director, the chairman
of the Board of Directors and the chief executive officer of the

Company on 9 July 2018.

Mr. Cheng and Mr. Chan K.C. were resigned as an executive
director and an independent non-executive director of the

Company on 16 May 2019 respectively.

On 16 November 2017, Mr. Cheng was appointed as an executive
director of the Company and Mr. Thomas Chan, Mr. Chan K.C. and
Mr. Li were appointed as independent non-executive directors of

the Company.

Mr. Luo and Mr. Zhu were appointed as executive directors of the

Company on 10 April 2018.

Mr. Ip was resigned as an executive director, chairman of the Board
of Directors and chief executive officer of the Company on 30 April
2018.

Mr. Xu and Mr. Pu were appointed as non-executive directors of

the Company on 11 April 2019.

Mr. Jiang was appointed as an independent non-executive director

of the Company on 1 September 2018.

On 30 April 2018, Mr. Lee was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company and Mr. Thomas Chan
was resigned as an independent non-executive director of the

Company.

On 16 November 2017, Mr. Chan, Ms. Tung, Mr. Chan C.K,,
Mr. Mui and Mr. Yip were resigned as executive directors of the
Company and Mr. Cheung, Mr. Feng and Professor Ho were

resigned as independent non-executive directors of the Company.

Mr. Yip was appointed as an executive director of the Company on
12 July 2017.

9 EFEFRER (])

(a) EERFETHRAEME

(#&)
Htat -

[0} FEER_T—N\FELANBEEZFE
RAATIRITES EFSETHERT
BREBH -

(i) BEERRBELEDNR=ZZ—H
FRATANBBARARNITESER
BUFNITES

(i) RZZB—tF+—A+RE WL
BEERRDNANTERRRAR S
£ RBBEERFRMREEREZE
BARBVBIUIFNTESR-

(iv) BRERKREAR-_Z—N\EMA+
BEZTAARARITESE-

v  EEER-E-N\FOA=T+HEE
ARTPITEE EEGERRITH
HBE -

V) BEERBEER-_ZT-NFOA
T-REZERARRRIFNITES -

Vi) BEERZZ—)\FNLA—BEZF
BARNRBYLIFRITES -

Wiy RZZT—NFMNA=+H FTEL4E
ZEARARRBILIERTES KR
BREERTARBBIENITE
$o

) R=T—LFt—AtARE RELE-
Bt REHELE BEEREEE
EEBEARRRITEERREE
R R B EBHERNRRIBILIEH
TE=E-

(x) HEBRLER T —+tFtA+=H
EEZTAARARMITES-

AT E B AR A A
—E-hEER

191



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

9 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 9 EFERMEER (&)

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(b) Five highest paid individuals b) TEERSHFMAL
BHE_Z2—hF=ZA=+—BHLF
E - igm&edATEE % (=ZE
—NF:—R)EEER—R(ZZE—N
FZR)AEE BRERETES
B HiEEN EX - BB TEA
(ZZE—N\F :mEZ) AL 25 (E
PR (ZE—N\F:=£)

The five highest paid individuals during the year ended 31
March 2019 include one (2018: one) director and one (2018:
three) former director whose emoluments, while he was
incumbent as director, are disclosed above. The emoluments
in respect of the remaining four (2018: four) individuals, which
includes the emoluments of the foregoing one (2018: three)
former director after he resigned from his directorship are as

follows: HMEERERTEERKEBZEHH)
UNNE

2019 2018

—E—-h#E —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Salaries and allowances & BoRRL 4,926 2,061

Discretionary bonuses EETE4L 608 418

Retirement scheme contributions RRET &R 71 38

5,605 2,517

MBI Fo@PriREE 2 Dt —#
(ZZ—N\F: =ZR)MEZZHHN
FIATEE :

The emoluments including the foregoing one (2018: three)
former director as disclosed in Note 9(a) fell within the
following bands:

Number of individuals

A

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F

Emolument bands (in HK$) FHEE (Bx)
Nil — HK$1,000,000 Z 1,000,000/ T - 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7C 1,500,000/ 7T 3 2
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £2,000,0007% 7T 1 -
4 4

LEAP Holdings Group Limited
2019 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE-T—hF=A=+—BIFE

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(b) Five highest paid individuals
(continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, no emoluments were
paid by the Group to the above highest paid individuals as
(i) an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or (i) as
compensation for loss of office as a director or management
of any members of the Group (2018: Nil).

9 EFEFRER (])

(b) TEEEHFMAL (&)

ﬁ#

E-NF=ZA=T—HILF
- KEITEHEWLAJ: SEBAL
SN2 ERONMAREBERIMAR
SERM R (NWERAEBEMK
BR TE@%%&EEJ‘ ) B B 8 (B

(ZE—NF: &) -

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 10 FRif8R (ER) B
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAT

Hong Kong profits tax: EREFER

— Current income tax —BNERFTIS B 850 8,664
— Over-provision in prior years —BEFEBBEEME (88) (13)
Deferred income tax (Note 26) RIEFTISH (H73t26) (1,570) (2,272)
Income tax (credit)/expense Fris®i (%) Fx (808) 6,379

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in or
derived from Hong Kong for the year.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for the year.

RER AEBCHRBBELRIREER
Bl AT ER TS MR TR £16.6% (ZF— N\
F:16.5%)FHREBMEHEE -

RIBHPEARKMBEEEMEIOE (B
FREBUE]D) REEMRBTORERMA F
A o B R B RO K 4525% e

\Jiﬁhﬂﬁ’ilﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ
—NEFHR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

10 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

(CONTINUED)

The taxation on the Group’s (loss)/profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong

10 FiRM () FAX
()

AEBERRPTISHATEER, 5 F A B IR e
FREERSB R PTEERIEW DR H

profits tax rate as follows: EoP=-C0 NS
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Loss)/profit before income tax BETSRLAT (B18),/FE (28,043) 31,747
Calculated at a tax rate of 16.5% BT E16.5%:T & (4,627) 5,238
Income not subject to tax BARTBEUA (304) @217)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 4~ 7] F1F4 % 2,518 481
Tax losses not recognised KIERR AR B 3,464 1,652
Utilisation of tax losses previously not AR R ERIIAR B
recognised (1,701) (635)
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBREEE (88) (13)
Tax concession BBER (45) (120)
Others H (25) (7)
Income tax (credit)/expense FTE® (%) HX (808) 6,379
11 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 B (KIR) BF)
2019 2018
—E-h#F ZZE-N\F
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of KAEHEA AEN (EBB) /&8
the Company (HK$’000) (F#&T) (27,235) 25,368
Weighted average number of ordinary RATEERER (F8) Bz
shares for the purpose of calculating T mAR NAE 8 (THR)
basic (loss)/earnings per share (in
thousand) 5,262,000 5,262,000
Basic (loss)/earnings per share (HK cent)  &RXEAR (E#E) &H (&) (0.52) 0.48

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of
calculating basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 March
2018 has been adjusted for the share subdivision on 24 April 2017
as if they have taken place since the beginning of the year.

LEAP Holdings Group Limited

2019 Annual Report

ARETEEEZE=_T—\F=A=+—81
FEBRERRBFNEBRMNETHED
MR _T—+EWA U B NG IFA
AR BUOEAFVREEE-



11 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

12

(CONTINUED)

The diluted (loss)/earnings per share is equal to the basic (loss)/
earnings per share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary share
in issue during the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2019:

Place of
incorporation and

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& O\
*o

B ER SRR Bl 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

A (BE) /BF-

12 BB A F]

i
AR E

Particulars of
issued share

11 Bk (5548) 87
(%)

HRBE_T-NAFER-_FT-N\F=A
=t BLFEYEESRTEABRELE
B s (B1R) BN ENERE

—NF=ZA=+—HZZENER

Percentage of

Name kind of legal entity Principal activities and place of operation capital interest held
AR 3 4 B
AREB REERBRES TEXRREERY BRITRAFHE FEEHEADL
Progressive Foundation Company ~ Hong Kong, limited liability  Provision of foundation engineering works and project management ~ Ordinary share 100%
Limited company business in Hong Kong HK$100 (indirect)
REMEBRAR EE BRRA REBREGETIZRE EER 100%
BEBLER 10087 (F)
Bright Access (HK) Limited Hong Kong, limited liability  Provision of foundation business in Hong Kong Ordinary share 100%
company HK$100 (indlirect)
BE (FB)BRRA EE BRAR RERRMEER EER 100%
10078 7T (F%)
Chung Shun Construction Limited  Hong Kong, limited liability  Provision of construction works, which included Ordinary share 100%
company foundation works and ancillary services, and heavy HK$100 (indirect)
duty machines business in Hong Kong
BEREARAF BE BRLA REBRERETR SENEIRREERBAR ERR 100%
BRABBRER 1007 (%)
Win Target Engineering Limited Hong Kong, limited liability  Provision of foundation engineering works business Ordinary share 100%
company in Hong Kong HK$10,000 (indirect)
BEIRERAR EE BRAA REBREDETIZER EBR 100%
10,0007 (F)
Hong Kong Tamron Group Company Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Money lending services business Ordinary share 99%
Limited company HK$136,000,000 (direct),
1% (indirect)
ERBEEEERAF EE ARAR MERS ERR 99%
136,00000057T  (E#)
1% (%)
Leap Global Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited liability  Investment holding Ordinary share 100%
(Formally known as company HK$100 (direct)
Peak International
Corporation Limited)
AERRREBRLA EE ARAR RERR BER 100%
(FIERECEERAT) 100/ 7T ()

R R M B IR A R

—E-hEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z =%

—hE=A=

tT—RIEFE

12 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 2 8

13

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2019: i

(continued)

Place of
incorporation and

—F-
CIEZE SN

247 (#8)

(&)

Particulars of
issued share

NEF=ZA=+—RZzEF2WER

Percentage of

Name kind of legal entity Principal activities and place of operation capital interest held
17 B 3L 3t B
kL REERRER TEXBREELH BRITRAFE FsEREDL
Leap Development Enterprise LimitedHong Kong, limited liability  Investments in securities Ordinary share 100%
(Formally known as Peak Holding ~ company HK$100 (direct)
Group Limited)
AMERROCEERAA B BERRA EHRE LiEk 100%
(RiEmEEEERAF) 1007 7T (E#%)
RINTTFHE—# People’s Republic of China Technology services HK$50,000,000 100%
BHEBEBRAR (PRC"), limited liability (has been paid up) ~ (indiirect)
company
HEARLME iR 50,000,0007% 7T 100%
(TEl]) - HRAF (B&R) (%)
FTHE-#H(8MEE l:) PRC, limited Technology services RMB10,000,000 100%
BRERBRA liability company (not yet paid up) (indlrect)
HE AR AR AK10,000,0007c  100%
(HAREMN) (%)
IET# SRR PRC, limited Technology services RMB10,000,000 100%
BRAF liability company (RMB5,000,000 (indirect)
has been paid up)
hEBRAF Bl R AR#10,000,0007C  100%
(AR#5,0000007 (F#)
BRI
T RFHE-HAEBRRE PRC, limited Technology services RMB10,000,000 100%
BRAF liability company (has been paid up)  (indirect)
HEBRAAE B TRRRS AK10,000,0007c  100%
(B&R) (%)
DIVIDENDS 13 K2
No interim dividend was declared for the year ended 31 March HE-ZT-NF=ZA=+—HLFE £A2Q
2019 (2018: Nil). AT ES KT HRE (ZE—\F &) -

No final dividend was proposed by the Board for the year ended 31

March 2019 (2018: Nil).
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& O\
*o

B ER SRR Bl 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

14 X -BERRH

Furniture,
Machinery fixtures
Land and and Leasehold  and office Motor
buildings  equipment improvements equipment vehicles Vessel Total
HENE B EKBER
THREF BERZE £ BAERE AE e st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR TR T TR TiEx T
Cost D%
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+FRA—H 16,371 93,828 7 1,969 22,197 - 135,742
Additions NE - 310 1,999 216 2,173 - 4,698
Disposal of assets through disposal & B H &M B A
of subsidiaries (Note 34) HEEE (Hi134) (16,371) - (998) - (457) - (17,826)
Disposals HE - (12,004) - - (1,623) - (13,627)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F
—A=t—H B 82,134 1,778 2,185 22,890 - 108,987
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE
At 1 April 2017 RZE—tFNA—H 11 54,089 631 1,438 16,755 - 73,024
Charge for the year (Note 7) FRZL (Hi27) 136 12,212 718 221 2,649 - 15,936
Disposal of assets through disposal & B &M B A A
of subsidiaries (Note 34) HEEE (Mit34) (247) - (125) - (366) - (738)
Disposals HE - (6,983) - - (1,272) - (8,255)
At 31 March 2018 R-ZE-N\F
ZA=1+—H - 59,318 1,224 1,659 17,766 - 79,967
Net book value HREFE
At 31 March 2018 AZZ-)\F
ZA=+—-8 - 22,816 554 526 5,124 - 29,020
Cost A
At 1 April 2018 RZZ—-/\FWA—A - 82,134 1,778 2,185 22,890 - 108,987
Additions AE - 2,111 7,464 1,115 1,082 1,719 13,491
Disposals & - (4,563) - - (1,958) - (6,521)
At 31 March 2019 RZT-NEF
=A=1+-8 - 79,682 9,242 3,300 22,014 1,719 115,957
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE
At 1 April 2018 RZZE—-\EMA—A - 59,318 1,224 1,659 17,766 - 79,967
Charge for the year (Note 7) ERNZME (H57) - 10,217 1,143 285 1,847 229 13,721
Disposals HE - (4,199) - - (1,565) - (5,764)
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-h&
=A=1+-8H - 65,336 2,367 1,944 18,048 229 87,924
Net book value REFE
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE
=A=1+-H - 14,346 6,875 1,356 3,966 1,490 28,033
RIEZEREEEGR AR

NEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 & ZE — %

—hF=ZA=+—HILEE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The net book value of machinery and equipment and motor
vehicles of the Group include an amount of approximately
HK$589,000 (2018: HK$7,633,000) and approximately
HK$362,000 (2017: HK$2,388,000), respectively, in respect of
assets held under finance leases.

Depreciation expense of approximately HK$12,064,000 (2018:

HK$14,769,000) had been included in cost of sales.

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14 MR -BERXME (&)

ANEEHEE KRB R TE R FEEIER
BrRIEHEREMNEED BI41589,000/ T
(== — \#: 7,633,000/ 7T ) I 49362,000
BT (ZZF—+4:2,388,000/87L) °

WrERZ#12,064,0008 7T (—F— )\ F:
14,769,000/ 7T ) B st ASHE A A o

15 BEME

2019 2018
—ZE-NF —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At fair value BERAFEFE

At 1 April HmA—H - 21,300

Disposal of assets through disposal BREEWNBRARHELE
of subsidiaries (Note 34) (H12#34) - (21,300)
At 31 March W=A=+—H - -

16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16 | EE

2019 2018
—ZE-NF —N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 April and 31 March REA—BR=A=+—H 430 430

The intangible asset represents direct costs incurred for the
acquisition of a money lenders licence with indefinite useful life and

is stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

17

The money lenders licence is considered by the directors of the
Company as having indefinite useful lives because it is expected
that the money lenders licence can be renewed continuously at
minimal cost and it will contribute net cash inflows for the Group
in the foreseeable future. The money lenders licence will not be
amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite. Instead it
will be tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an
indication that it may be impaired.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY

16 | HE (&)

ARRBEFRBME AR EER A A
FH > EFRHRE AR R AT A SRR AT ER
BHYRABRRBRAARENFRESR
AEHER-ERERFHEERERZ
Bl D& REAERETHE - A QA
BE-REBEARPRKRBAEFLERE
B S B AR TRE T RERIR

17 &M T A%

2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FET
Financial assets ERMEE
Loans and receivables Bk WA - 505,032
Financial assets at amortised cost BRESER AT ESRMERE 457,459 -
Financial assets at fair value through BATEFABRNESRMEE
profit or loss 9,044 1,194
Total et 466,503 506,226
Financial liabilities cEAE
Amortised cost TR SHR R ETHE 247,183 185,579

AR EEER AR
TE-NEFEFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 B 5 R HMEURRR

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Trade receivables HHEMEBER 62,590 51,622

Less: Provision for impairment losses B EBEEE (2,009) -

60,581 51,622

Loan receivables JENE R 34,466 80,000

Less: Provision for impairment losses BB EBERE (1,179) -

33,287 80,000

Retention receivables* JEUURE & - 27,863
Other receivables, deposits and H b EWGRIE - B KB FIE

prepayments 30,542 9,702

124,410 169,187

* Upon application of HKFRS 15, the retention receivables were reclassified - REREAYMEHREERNE1551E  BUUR

to contract assets. BeEMOoBEEENEE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z =%

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@)

Trade receivables are past due when a counterparty has failed to make a
payment when contractually due. The credit period granted to customers
is 7 to 75 days generally. Trade receivables are denominated in HKS.

Bist

RO WIS IR EE
—hFE=ZA=1+—HILEE

18 ¥ 5 & H it FE U A 3%
(#&)

BEHF I TRERANIPRNFKE BS
YRR RaR - ETEPNEES—
MBRTETSH - B 5 RUER R AE TETHE

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on payment certificate (o) BNFURETENE SRR AR DT
is as follows: R
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FERT
0-30 days 0%30H 49,201 40,754
31-60 days 31E60H 4,483 3,421
61-90 days 61£90H 287 4,249
Over 90 days B3E0H 8,619 3,198
62,590 51,622
Trade receivables of approximately HK$38,287,000 as at 31 March 2018 RZE—-N\F=ZA=+—H BSREKEX
were not yet past due and approximately HK$13,335,000 as at 31 March #938,287,000/8 LM A - RIA =T — N\F
2018 were past due but not impaired. These relate to trade receivables = A=+—H" 413,335,000/ L 2 # #{B &
from a number of independent customers of whom there is no recent B o bt % FRIH B % 7 0 AT HRHE R AR R
history of default and no provision has therefore been made. BURPHNE S RWERRE R H kI EE
R o
As at 31 March 2019, trade receivables of approximately HK$12,080,000 —hWEZA=Z+—R - B5EKER
were past due. Based on past experience and forward-looking estimates, #912,080,000/8 T B i1 # o B A5 Al
the amounts are considered as recoverable. M E  ZeEER AR I -
Retention receivables of approximately HK$27,863,000 as at 31 March RZZE—NFE=ZA=+—H BRERBEH
2018 were not yet past due and will be settled in accordance with the 27,863,000/ T M AR HR - KA IRIE RS Q1%
terms of respective contract. NEEE -
The Group’s loan receivables, which arise from the money lending (© AEEZERER (REREER) LAAETET
business, are denominated in HK$. The loan receivables are mainly E-EUEREFEZRFEAERERER =
secured by personal guarantee and are not pass due based on contractual —NWF=ZR=+—BREANIBHAEL
maturity date as at 31 March 2019. The loan receivables are neither KBH-R=ZF—-NEFE=ZA=1+—H0 RES
impaired nor overdue based on contractual maturity date as at 31 March #IEARR A HA - R E KB ARRE TR R A o BT
2018. All the loan receivables are entered with contractual maturity within 1 ERBEFIZANBERAE—EMFNIL
to 2 years. Loan receivables are interest-bearing at a rate range from 12% FEWE RFEFEN F12%E20% (=T — )\
to0 20% per annum (2018: 12% per annum). FEEFIE12%) 5T B e
The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain (d) B REMEKEZRANEMBERITTEE

impaired assets. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

HEEE AEEILESATFERRER
R

AEREREBER AR
ZE-NAEFER
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e M IR sE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

19 CONTRACT ASSETS

19 SHEE

31 March 2019 1 April 2018*
—E-h#F = N\F
=A=+—H MA—B*
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
(Restated)
(&E75))
Contract assets AHEE 92,760 60,954
Less: Provision for impairment losses RO BB EEE (2,018) (1,877)
90,742 59,077

* The amounts in this column are after the adjustments from the application
of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the rights
are conditioned on factors other than passage of time. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional.

Included in contract assets comprises retention receivables
of approximately HK$40,701,000 as at 31 March 2019, after
recognition of impairment loss of approximately HK$931,000,
the carrying amount of retention receivables was approximately
HK$39,770,000.

Retention receivables represented the monies withheld by
customers of contract works fully recoverable within 1 to 2
years from the date of completion of construction contracts, in
accordance with the terms specified in the relevant contracts.
Generally, upon satisfactory completion of contract work as set out
in the contract, partial of the retention money of such contract work
will be released to the Group, while the remaining will be released to
the Group upon the expiration of the defects liability period.

LEAP Holdings Group Limited
2019 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

19 CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED) 19 EHEE (§])

The retention receivables, before recognition of impairment loss, FEWIRE S NIBEEBERRA  HRkE
would be settled, based on the expiry of the defect liability period, R E NG E A HERER ST

at the end of the reporting period as follow:

2019
—E-hEF
HK$’000
FHET
Within one year —FN 23,768
After one year —F 1% 16,933
40,701
20 GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM/ 20 Bl BEFSHIRE
TO CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT A8
WORK
2018
—E—-N\F
HK$'000
FET
Gross amounts due from customers EREFEHNIRRELLE
for contract work
Contract costs incurred plus recognised BEEEE KR N FE R F)
profits less recognised losses W F A TSR S 1R 517,576
Less: Progress billings received and R B R U TR 2 5RIE
receivable (481,654)
35,922

AR EMARAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE-T—hF=A=+—BIFE

20 GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM/ 20 Bl BfIEFAVIE
TO CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT R (#]|)
WORK (CONTINUED)
2018
—ZT-N\F
HK$’000
FHET
Gross amounts due to customers ENEFEHNIRIELE
for contract work
Progress billings received and receivable B R FE U T AR 3 [ 508 30,020
Less: Contract costs incurred plus W B EAES QAN NN TR T
recognised profits less recognised IR A FE R 1B
losses (28,039)
1,981
All gross amounts due from/to customers for contract work are FTEREYEREFPEHTRIAEER
expected to be recovered/settled within one year. MR — F Ukl B o

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 21 B2 FEABEZER
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =&

2019 2018
—E-NF —ET-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Listed securities held for trading: BEHEN LEMES:

— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, — BB LTRAES  EHRE

at quoted price - 1,194
Life insurance policy (Note a) ANSBRE (Hita) 2,630 -
Wealth management products (Note b) B Em (Mitb) 4,723 -
Unlisted warrant (Note ¢) REMRRIER (Kiztc) 1,691 -
9,044 1,194
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z =%

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

Under the life insurance policy (the “Policy”), the beneficiary and
policy holder is the Group and the total insured sum is US$750,000
(approximately HK$5,887,000). The Group paid an upfront premium for
the Policy of approximately US$326,000 (approximately HK$2,556,000)
and may surrender any time and receive cash based on the cash value of
the Policy at the date of withdrawal, which is calculated by the insurer. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the cash value of the Policy
provided by the insurance company is the best approximation of its fair
value, which is categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Upon
the adoption of HKFRS 9, the Policy was reclassified from loans and
receivables at 1 April 2018.

The Policy was pledged to secure the bank borrowings of the Group is
summarised in Note 25.

Wealth management products represent investments in short-term
financial products issued by banks in the PRC. The wealth management
products at 31 March 2019 were redeemed by May 2019. The change in
fair value up to the date of redemption was not significant.

On 24 January 2019, the Group and an unrelated entity (the “Borrower”)
entered into agreements whereby: i) the Group would extend to the
Borrower a loan with a principal amount of HK$23,500,000; and ii) for
a consideration of HK$1, the Borrower would grant to the Group a right
to subscribe for certain convertible preferred shares of the Borrower (the
“Warrant”).

The loan bears interest at 12% per annum and interest is payable monthly.
The loan may be redeemed by the Group at any time three months after
the date of the loan agreement or, if not early-redeemed, repayable by the
Borrower on 25 January 2020.

The Warrant entitles the Group to subscribe for certain convertible
preferred shares of the Borrower at a price of US$3.952 per share. The
total subscription for the convertible preferred shares is not to exceed
one-third of the loan plus any accrued but unpaid interest. The Warrant
will expire on the earlier of: i) the date of the closing of the first firm
commitment, underwritten public offering to the general public of the
ordinary shares of the Borrower where the valuation of the Borrower is no
less than a certain value; or ii) 23 January 2022.

The loan had a fair value of approximately HK$21,655,000 and the stand-
alone Warrant had a fair value of approximately HK$1,845,000 at the date

of initial recognition.
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22 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT/CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had a pledged bank deposit of
approximately HK$6,611,000 (2018: HK$6,500,000) which carry
interest rate at 1.9% (2018: 1.3%) per annum. The bank deposit
was pledged to secure the banking facilities granted to the Group
and denominated in HK$.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in the following currencies:

22 BERER
&®

a\

THER ReRk

\ x|

R

RZZ—NEZA=+—H0 FEEBRAR
FRE19% (ZT—\F:1.3% )T BEZE
#3048 1713 720 406,611,000/8 7T (=& — N\
4 : 6,500,000/ 70 ) © $RITIF R EALAE
RAEEERRITEEW LB E

&

RERREEBY REBENTIEE
H:

2019 2018

—E-hE —ZE—)\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FET

HK$ BT 319,353 330,638
RMB AR 13,027 -
Us$ ES 115 -
332,495 330,638

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for the other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE-T—hF=A=+—BIFE

23 SHARE CAPITAL 23 K&
Number of Share
shares capital
BAEE [
HK$'000
FET
Authorised: JETE
At 1 April 2017, ordinary shares of RZZT—+FMNA—H"
HK$0.01each BFREE0.01B T 10,000,000,000 100,000
Effect of share subdivision to ZRMOITATESR
HK$0.005 each (Note) B E0.005% T (#7at) 10,000,000,000 -
At 31 March 2018, 1 April 2018 and RZE—N\F=A=+—H"
31 March 2019, ordinary shares of —E-NFMA-B R
HK$0.005 each —E-NF=ZA=+— EI
FREEE0.005/8 T2 & i 20,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEIT MR
At 1 April 2017 R-_Z—+FmMA—H 2,631,000,000 26,310
Effect of share subdivision (Note) DT E (K :F) 2,631,000,000 -
At 31 March 2018, 1 April 2018 and RZZE-NF=ZA=+—0H"
31 March 2019 —E-NEFEMNA-BH R
—E-hF=ZA=+—H 5,262,000,000 26,310
Note: Kzt -
An ordinary resolution for the share subdivision was passed at the extraordinary ARNBERZZT—EFWOA -+ —BRITHORER
general meeting of the Company held on 21 April 2017. The subdivision of each RlRKE LBmIRM T2 L BRERR - AR FRA
of the existing issued and unissued share of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of FEREADEITRAREIT MEROETHRD
the Company into two shares of HK$0.005 each has been effective from 24 April DI A IR & AR T (E 50.00578 7T K A% 15 2 AR5 FF 48
2017. BERZZT—tFMA-+HARBER

\Jiﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁiﬁ[ﬁ’ A

A
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24 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 12 August 2015 as to attract
and retain the best available personnel and to provide additional
incentive to the eligible participants under the Scheme.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company may at their
absolute discretion and subject to the terms of the Scheme,
grant options to any employees (full-time or part-time), directors,
substantial shareholders, consultants or advisors, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business partners or
service providers of the Group, to subscribe for shares of the
Company. The eligibility of any participants to the grant of any
options shall be determined by the directors from time to time on
the basis of the directors’ opinion as to their contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.

The aggregate number of the Company’s shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share options
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the Company’s
shares in issue from time to time. No options may be granted under
the Scheme or any other share options schemes of the Company
if this will result in the limit being exceeded. The maximum number
of shares issuable upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
as from the adoption date must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of all the shares in issue upon the date on which the shares are
listed and permitted to be dealt in the Stock Exchange. The 10%
limit may be refreshed at any time by obtaining approval of the
Company’s shareholders in general meeting provided that the total
number of Company’s shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share options schemes of the Company must not exceed 10% of
the Company’s shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
refreshed limit.
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24 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(CONTINUED)

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) under the Scheme or any other share
option schemes of the Company in any 12-month period up to date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue.
Where any further grant of options to a participant would result in
the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted to such participant (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in the 12-month period up
to and including the date of such further grant representing in
aggregate over 1% of the shares in issue, such further grant
must be separately approved by shareholders of the Company in
general meeting with such participant and his/her close associates
abstaining from voting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective associates
must be approval by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company (excluding any independent non-executive director who
is the grantee). Where any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or any of their respective close associates would result in
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) under the Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company to such person in
any 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue and having an aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million
must be approved by the Company’s shareholders at the general
meeting of the Company, with voting to be taken by way of poll.

24 MERRHERT R (48)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

24 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(CONTINUED)

The offer of a grant of share options might be accepted in writing
within 7 days from the date of the offer. An option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during
a period as the directors may determine which shall not exceed
ten years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early
termination thereof. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable
on acceptance of the grant of an option with a remittance in favour
of the Company within such time as may be specified in the offer
(which shall not be later than 7 days from the date of the offer).

The subscription price shall be a price solely determined by the
board of directors of the Company and notified to a participant
and shall be at least the highest of: () the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the offer date, which must be a business day;
(i) the average closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date; and (i) the nominal value of
the Company’s share on the offer date.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years
commencing on 12 August 2015, subject to early termination
provisions contained in the Scheme.

No share options were granted since the adoption of the Scheme
and there were no share option outstanding as at 31 March 2019
and 2018.

LEAP Holdings Group Limited
2019 Annual Report

24 MERRHERT R (#8)

BhBRECENERBEDRREFTE
BAAEEER ARXATTREEAREEE
Z B BERARIEZ AT 8 Z HRTTEB R
R ENSEBBm R L A BE10F XX
BRRAARILIRPTRR - RAER 2B
PR AR - AR ANZRR B A AT AR Z B A
(PMEERHZHRBEEH)AARAF
BT HRERE

REBEARAFESFEEETIAMNS M
H BELATIESEP Z&RE : ()BT
FrEBRERABARRKRODREL A H
(AREXEB) ZWHE: ()X EERE
FATHRA A B IRD AR B 240 A B AT L&
EERZFHWTHE: RHEBOBBH AR
AR EE -

ZAEm—E-RFN\AT BB TF
MR MBI WS %At 8 Fr# 2 32 AT
AR PTARIR »

B PR AN % AT B DA SR S IR AT (AT BB AR
MR —E-NFR-ZB-NF=ZA=+—
I BE A e AR AT {0 R AR R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO WIS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

25 BORROWINGS

25 f &

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Non-current ERE
Finance lease liabilities (Note ¢) BEMERRE (Mitc) 153 192
Current E
Bank borrowings (Notes a and b) RITBE (Witakb) 25 319
Finance lease liabilities (Note c) RMEMEARE (Witc) 154 4,500
179 4,819
Total borrowings EEHAE 332 5,011
Notes: Hiat -
(@) Bank borrowings (@) RITIEE

The bank borrowings are classified as current liabilities according to the
HK Interpretation 5, Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause issued by the HKICPA. According to the repayment schedule, the

bank borrowings are repayable as follows:

REFESTTMAGRM 2 BEREESRY
BRI ZH-EEANH S REKEER
HZEHEHZAE BRITEEDBRBR
BaE - REBEFERK  RITEEEFRD
-

2019 2018

—E-hE —2-NE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FRERT THET

Within 1 year —ER 25 294
Between 1 and 2 years —EWE _ o5
25 319

AT E B AR A A
g —NEER
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

25 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continueq)

(b) The carrying amount of the bank borrowings is denominated in USS$.

() Finance lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are secured as the rights to the leased assets revert to the

lessors in the event of default.

At the end of lease term of certain finance leases the Group has the option

to purchase the leased asset at a price deemed to be a bargain purchase

option.

Certain machinery and equipment was under finance leases in the form

of sale and leaseback arrangements. There was no disposal gain or loss

recognised for the transactions as the fair value was not significantly

25 58 (%)

Bat: (&)

RITIEERNREEAETHE

MEHEAE

HERBERARR EENBERTHEHEEE

BN IERHAEA -

RETRAEENHES R AEEEE
S AaEREEERENERBEREE

Eo

ETHEARBERERHENHEREDELR
BEETT - AR M 2 R A AP EER
EEYEEADH AHERAR SR E

different to the carrying value of the relevant machinery and equipment. Wk sk B8 o
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET

Gross finance lease liabilities — minimum REHEAEAE —SEREMNTE
lease payments

Within 1 year —FR 165 4,581
Between 1 and 2 years —EMF 81 193
Between 2 and 5 years MERF 80 -
326 4,774
Future finance charges on finance leases BEHER KRR E A (19) 82
Present value of finance lease liabilities MEHEEERE 307 4,692
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z =%

25 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(©

RO WIS IR EE
—hFE=ZA=1+—HILEE

25 68 ()

Miat: (&)
Finance lease liabilities (continued) (© MEMEAE (B)

The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows: MEHEAERMENT
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FiET
Within 1 year —FR 154 4,500
Between 1 and 2 years —EMF 75 192
Between 2 and 5 years MERF 78 -
307 4,692
The finance leases are secured by the Group’s machinery and equipment MEMERR-_T-—NF=ZA=+—HB4A%
with an aggregate net book value of approximately HK$589,000 (2018: M B3 K 5% S BR T VF E A £ 49589,0007%8
HK$7,633,000) and motor vehicles with an aggregate net book value of 7T (ZZF— )\ : 7,633,000/ 7T ) bA 2 /TEBH)

approximately HK$362,000 (2018: HK$2,388,000) as at 31 March 2019.
Finance leases with carrying amounts of approximately HK$2,228,000

as at 31 March 2018 are guaranteed by personal guarantees given by a

BREFEA £ 43862,0008 T (=T — )\ F:
2,388,000 L) IEEH -R T —NF=A
=+ — HERMA{EL2,228,0008 TN BMEHE

director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

AR EE TH

BRARZEEEHNEAR

The carrying amounts of all finance lease liabilities are denominated in
HKS.

The interest rates per annum of borrowings are as follows:

RYER

FrEREM

fEEMERNENT

ERaENEREEBAETIHE

2019 2018

—Z-hEF —T-N\F

Bank overdrafts RITBEX 3.38% 5%
Bank borrowings RITIEE 4.75% 3%
Finance lease liabilities MEREEE 4.38% to £5.35%  2.87% to £4.83%

AEEREEARAR
e

AT
hEER

213



214

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IR sE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

25 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(e) Banking facilities (including a performance bond of approximately
HK$13,000,000) are secured/guaranteed by:

U

(i)

(i)

)

)

Pledge of life insurance of approximately HK$2,630,000 (2018:
HK$2,603,000) as at 31 March 2019;

Personal guarantee given by a director of a subsidiary as at 31
March 2019 and 2018;

Pledged bank deposit of approximately HK$6,611,000 (2018:
HK$6,500,000) as at 31 March 2019;

A property held by a company controlled by a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 March 2019 and 2018; and

Corporate guarantee given by the Group as at 31 March 2019 and
2018.

26 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES)

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements
during the year are as follows:

25 58 (%)

Bat: (&)

© RITEE (BHERELR X%713,000,000 7T)
A5 S TR R

)

v)

R-TB-AFE=A=1+—H E\|A
FR K #2,630,0008 7T (ZFT— )\
£ 12,603,000 7T) ;

RZF-NAER-Z-NE=A
St—B alEREEERGE
APER

RZZE—AF=ZA=1+—8 BEEKF
RITIF 496,611,000 7T (—ZF— N\
£ 6,500,000 7T ) ;

NRZEBE-ARZE—-N\EE=A
=+—B BHARRETHEARE
ERFNARMBIENYE: &

R-ZZE—-NEFER=-ZT—-N\F=A
=t+—H FNEBREHOLEER-

26 BEEMASZE (AR)

BUMBAARRERRELERIRE

E/(BE)OEKID REEEIT

Depreciation ECL
allowances provision Total

BHEE
nERE FERE @it
Deferred tax assets/liabilities HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEHEEEAf FAL TEL AL
At 1 April 2017 RZT—+FMNA—H (5,848) - (5,848)
Credited to profit or loss (Note 10) STABE (M0 2,272 - 2,272
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 34) HEMBAR (H754) 26 - 26

At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 RZE-N\E=ZA=+—-HK

“E-N\FEA-H (3,550) - (3,550)
Adjustment (Note 2.1) RBE(HH21) - 438 438
At 1 April 2018 RZE—-\EMA—AH (3,550) 438 (3,112
Credited to profit or loss (Note 10) FTABE (Hfat10) 1,163 407 1,570
At 31 March 2019 R-ZE-hE=A=+-H (2,387) 845 (1,542)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

26 EIERIBEE (AR)
(LIABILITIES) (CONTINUED) (#8)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for R ENEL ZIBERIBA R DT
financial reporting purpose: e
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Deferred tax assets BERETIEEE 663 -
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBEEE (2,205) (3,550)
(1,542) (3,550)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax PR AR - AN S (8] 1] K88 R 2R s I 2
losses of approximately HK$23 million (2018: HK$13 million) RENFA T IEE B4 /228,000,000 7T (==
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset — J\4F :13,000,000/% 7T ) © FA 72 7K A% 78 A
has been recognised in respect of the unused tax losses due to RAH R 27 R - i I g ok &) B B IE B
the unpredictability of future profit streams. All losses are carried BRI IEEE - TSR ER RS
forward indefinitely. o
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27 B 5 B K fthFE iR
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Trade payables B S EARR 63,134 31,240
Accruals and other payables JEF R H At R ER 3R 29,638 12,640
92,772 43,880

AIEEREERERAR
TE-NEFEFER
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

27

28

29

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@) Payment terms granted by suppliers are generally 15 to 80 days from the

invoice date of the relevant purchases.

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date is as

27

8 7 B B i B2 £ iR 3%
(&)

Wit

@ HERE FHOARGER—R T EEREESN
HEAHBEI15E80A A

RIFEFEBHNE S ENERFERER DT

follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT—)\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FExT
0 - 30 days 0£30H 42,565 15,010
31 - 60 days 31Z260H 6,749 9,973
61 — 90 days 61290H 4,020 163
Over 90 days BiEo0H 9,800 6,094
63,134 31,240

(b) All trade and other payables are denominated in HKS$. (o) B E 5 REMENRERE B TTHE

AMOUNT DUE TO A FORMER
SUBSIDIARY

The amount due was non-trade in nature, unsecured, non-interest
bearing and had no fixed terms of repayments.

LOAN FROM A RELATED PARTY

Included in loan from a related party is a principal portion of
approximately HK$135,000,000 which was unsecured, interest
bearing at 5% per annum and payable within one year and
an interest portion of approximately HK$8,438,000 (2018:
HK$1,688,000). The loan has been extended for one year during
the year ended 31 March 2019. The loan is subject to review at
any time and to the lender’s overriding right of withdrawal and
immediate repayment on demand. The related party is a company
controlled by the directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: controlled by a director
of the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company).
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—BREFER

—RBESTERREEER  EFFE5%
SAEEARN—FRNERBZACEIHL
135,000,000/ 7t & F1.2. 5B 5 478,438,000
JL(=ZF — )\ 11,688,000/ L) - Z BN
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

30 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 30 FEHERERME
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before (@) BREFEHAT (F518) FEE
income tax to net cash generated from REEE2HSTFEZYE
operations
2019 2018
—E-NF —E—)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
(Loss)/profit before income tax BrRAETSH AT (F518) FE (28,043) 31,747
Adjustments for: BTYSIERE:
Depreciation e 13,721 15,936
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE  HE MREZ
plant and equipment (W) B8 (179) 577
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR 2 W= 2 (1,056)
Impairment losses on financial assets € B & E M &N EE 2 RAEAFE
and contract assets 2,367 -
Net loss on change in fair value of  ZAFEFABZZ EBEE
financial assets at fair value through A F{E & &) 518 /558
profit or loss 56 -
Written off of trade receivables Z ) 1 Ig R T 8 982 -
Dividend income BB A = (199)
Interest income B WA (1,853) (86)
Interest expenses FEFX 6,868 2,917

Operating (loss)/profit before working %84 £ & 8h a1 % (E18) /H)E

capital changes (6,083) 49,836
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B REMEWRTURD ()

other receivables 10,325 (17,919)
Increase in contract assets BHEEEM (31,806) -
Decrease in gross amounts due JEWE P & #) T2 508 42 58 R

from customers for contract work - 7,969
Decrease in financial assets at far ~ ZAFEFABZZ SBHEERD

value through profit or loss 1,194 81,377
Increase in trade and other payables & 5 N E b & 1 BR 301 o0 46,323 17,892
Increase in gross amounts due to B R FE A %) T2 IEEZEIE N

customers for contract work - 1,550
Net cash generated from operations #X & 4 2 IR & 558 19,953 140,705

AEEREEARR LT 217
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

] =1 z
30 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 30 i \*ﬁ'ﬁﬁ;ﬂsimi
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (#8)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) BMETBELEZABZIHE
financing activities
As at As at
1 April Non-cash 31 March
2018 Cash flows changes 2019
R=ZB-NF R=ZZ-hF
mA—H ReRE *¥He®H =A=t-8
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER TER
Loan from a related party (Note g) ~ —&@EFEX (Hita) 136,688 - 6,750 143,438
Bank borrowings FITEE 319 (294) - 25
Finance lease liabilities (Note b) MEMEEE (i) 4,692 (4,609) 224 307
Total liabilties from financing activities B4 & EEIE £ 2 BEHTE 141,699 (4,903) 6,974 143,770
As at As at
1 April Non-cash 31 March
2017 Cash flows changes 2018
RZZE—tF RZE-NF
mA—A Beng *heE®H =A=1t—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TAT AT TR
Loan from a related party (Note g) ~ —&@EHEX (Hita) - 135,000 1,688 136,688
Bank and other borrowings BOREMEE 20,598 (20,279) - 319
Finance lease liabilities (Note b) MEHEEEE (Hitb) 13,165 (8.979) 500 4,692
Total liabilties from financing activities FiE & EIE £ 2 & EAE 33,763 105,748 2,188 141,699
Notes: Hez -
(@ Non-cash changes represent accrued interests on the outstanding (@) FRCEBIEERERSRENEFE -
principal balance.
(b) Non-cash changes represent purchases of property, plant and (b) FRCEHEREREHELHBEEYE-

equipment under finance lease arrangement.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

COMMITMENTS

Operating lease commitments -
Group as lessee

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases were payable as follows:

31 &i

REHERE-AREEREME
A

R ATHEEEHERKEN N SEE
BRI T

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-)N\EF

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FHT FHET

Within one year —FR 12,854 1,863
In the second to fifth years inclusive WMERF (BIEEEMT) 6,387 1,001
19,241 2,864

The Group is the lessee in respect of office premises and
equipment under operating leases. The leases typically run for an
initial period of 1 to 3 years, with an option to renew the leases
when all terms are renegotiated.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control,
jointly control or exert significant influence over the other party
in making financial or operational decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common control or
joint control. Related parties may be individuals or other entities.

(@ In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group entered into the following
transaction with its related party in the ordinary course of
business during the year:

REBRKERE T IR PT KR A
BA-ZEHEBRNLSEARS—E=F"
EREZNAY EREENEEME K

o
A ©

REH %R

BE )T Rx SRR ES B A EHI AR
HU B ERRE A EM T ITERERX
FENOHAL - MR EN K RES A 1E
B AR R EEE T - BES AT R EARE

B RS-

(@ BEAMBRREMUMSAREZE
B RER AEEEEREETR
—REBBREPETATRS:

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Rental expenses charged by —ZBARNRETHEBARESES 2
a company controlled by UNCIE = b
a director of certain subsidiaries

of the Company 559 -

AR EEER AR
TE-NEFEFER
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32

33

34

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b)  The emoluments of the directors and senior executives
(representing the key management personnel) during the year
are disclosed in Note 9.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group, in the ordinary course of its business, is involved
in various claims, suits, investigations, and legal proceedings
that arise from time to time. Although the Group does not
expect that the outcome in any of these legal proceedings,
individually or collectively, will have a material adverse effect on
its financial position or results of operations, litigation is inherently
unpredictable. Therefore, the Group could incur judgements or
enter into settlements of claims that could adversely affect its
operating results or cash flows in a particular period.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group disposed the
entire equity interests of Simple Rise Inc. (“Simple Rise”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Sunny Harvest Limited
(“Sunny Harvest”) for cash considerations of approximately
HK$17,000,000 to an independent third party. At the time of
disposal, the major assets of Simple Rise and Sunny Harvest were
properties.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group disposed the
entire equity interests of Luck Win Group Inc. (“Luck Win”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, for cash considerations of
approximately HK$10,500,000 to an independent third party. At the
time of disposal, the major asset of Luck Win was a property.

LEAP Holdings Group Limited
2019 Annual Report

32

33

34

HEHXH (1)

b)) EERSRITHRAS (MEEEEA
B ) TR F B0 3 BN P RO B BE

BRRAR

AEEERARRGRET T REE
BR - BENEREF -BEAEE
W AR EMZFEREFNER (A5
HER) BHEMBRRARBLEREEKE
AROHTE  HERIZFAERHATAR -
b REE A RS EHRBEIR A ERE TS
22 PN R 1% = T 7T B 3 7 5% [ e 45 E 8
RNEEXESRNEREEXN TN E -

tH S B 27

HEZZ-N\F=ZA=1+—HLFE &
& B LAIR € (B 4917,000,0007% 7T A — %
W28 = 7 HE > Simple Rise Inc. ([ Simple
Rise | ' AR T2 EWB AT RIBEERA
Al ([RE]) 22 EAHE - 7 H &K - Simple
Risek BEMNEEZEERME-

BT \EZA=+—HLFE K&
B AR & B 4710,500,00078 T lA — 2 I8 L
F=ZFHEARTEEME R FLuck Win
Group Inc. ([Luck Win | ) 2 ZBASHE - R &
B Luck Wint = BEE A —BWE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZ T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

34 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group disposed the
entire equity interests of Century Wind Limited (“Century Wind”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and Elements Assets
for cash considerations of approximately HK$12,000,000 to an
independent third party. At the time of disposal, the major asset of
Century Wind and Elements Assets was a property.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company disposed
the entire equity interests of Gold Toys Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company for cash considerations of approximately
HK$400,000 to an independent third party.

The aggregated net assets of the subsidiaries as at the date of

disposal are set out as follows:

34 HEREBE AT (#8)

HE_Z— ) \FZAZ+—HLEFE &
% B D2 3 & X (B 912,000,000/ 7T M) —
H 3B 5 = 75 H & Century Wind Limited
([Century Wind | RAE 2 &M BRG]
I Elements Assets,Z % #8 AR HE o 74 & Iy -
Century Wind X Elements Assetsfy = Z& &
R—IEWME-

HE_Z-NAF-A=+—HILtFE £&AQ
RIA—ZBUE=ZFTHERARGZE2EW
J& A FGold Toys Limitedz 2 SFR%# - 3 &
R AE 4 5400,000%5 7T

REEBE HEBAREEFEALEHIIW
T

2019 2018
—E-NEF —ET—)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAET

Net assets disposal of: A EEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment Y R B B - 17,088
Investment properties LAY - 21,300
Trade and other receivables g 5 K H At FE YRR TR - 15
Amount due from the Group i &N e TR ] 10,641 -
Tax recoverable AT Bl 1A - 19
Cash and bank balance e RIRITHE - 334
Trade and other payables 5 REAMERERR (4,281) (259)
Amount due to the Group JERT A& B FIR - (22,347)
Current income tax liabilities BVERF S B (& (5,962) ©27)
Deferred tax payable FET R FEFR 18 - (26)
Net assets BEFE 398 16,097

AR EEER AR
TE-NEFEFER
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

34 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 34 HEMEBLAT (18)
(CONTINUED)
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: M B A A
Cash consideration received BUR e RE 400 39,500
Net assets disposal of FrEEEEFE (398) (16,097)
Assignment of amounts due to the Group 3% JiE - AR 5= (B 30 18 - (22,347)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB QAR 2 1,056
Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the HEEWNBARIEAZE S RBEEEFEY
disposal of subsidiaries: BRAZDHT:
2019 2018
—E-hF AN
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Total cash consideration @RS R(E 400 39,500
Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiaries FrHEMB AR S RIRESEED
disposed of - (334)
Net inflow of cash and ReRESEEYER
cash equivalents 400 39,166
35 EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING 35 REMEER
PERIOD
On 31 May 2019, the Group and Prime Trust, LLC have RZE—NLFRA=Z+—H AEHHE
entered into a technology service agreement and an application Prime Trust, LLCE &1 32 £ 17 AR 7 173 % S AP
programming interface funding platform technology agreement for B O A Bl A 2 R IZ L USDKAR TS &Y
the development of the platform for providing USDK services. Fieo
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36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(@) Statement of financial position

36 ELFIMBRARR W
g8

(a) BF#&ARIR 3%

2019 2018
—®-RE T\
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IERE EE
Interests in subsidiaries AN EPNEI:E oL E 151,842 107,701

Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables %” SRE ﬁﬂ JFE AR X 546

RS

Amounts due from subsidiaries & Uz Bf B A T FKIA 100,578 159,656
Cash and bank balances Be MIBITHES 101,850 248,057
202,974 407,713
Total assets EE#E 354,816 515,414
EQUITY i
Capital and reserves EZF Rf#E
Share capital % 7 26,310 26,310
Reserves Hi # 36(b) 315,133 322,073
Total equity R 341,443 348,383
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B S MEMEMRR 1,952 476
Amount due to a former B — AT B A R E
subsidiary 10,641 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries  JET KB A B FUIE 780 166,555
13,373 167,031
Total equity and liabilites X R EEHAE 354,816 515,414
Net current assets BREBEE 189,601 240,682
Total assets less current EEHAERABER
liabilities 341,443 348,383

KRB ZHBRARER —F—NFNA
“tNREEZSIERRENE AT
FALTHERZEE

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2019 and
are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Luo Ting Mr. Zhu Junkan
BRELE KEMEE
Director Director
BF £

\Jiﬁhﬁﬁ’ilﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE T —hF=A=+—HBIEFE

36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

36 FLFIMBIRARR G

0
28 (1))

(b) Reserve movement (b) FEEEE
Share Capital Special Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
R4EE EXGE KRR REEF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FRT TET TET TET
Balance at 1 April 2017 RZE—tFNA—HH#ER 212,067 7,922 94,795 (22,212) 292,572
Profit and total comprehensive FRAFRZARFBE
income for the year - - - 29,501 29,501
Balance at 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F
ZR=+—-BR#EH 212,067 7,922 94,795 7,289 322,073
Balance at 1 April 2018 RZE—-\FEA—BRLEH 212,067 7,922 94,795 7,289 322,073
Loss and total comprehensive FANBERZEEELSE
loss for the year - - - (6,940) (6,940)
Balance at 31 March 2019 RZE-NF
ZRA=+—-BREH 212,067 7,922 94,795 349 315,133
Special reserve Y RIfR1E

Special reserve represents the difference between the fair

value of the shares of a subsidiary of the Company acquired

pursuant to the reorganisation in prior years over the nominal

value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefore.
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Five Years Financial Summary

hF RISt 2

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—-HLEFE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZE-AE ZE-)\F ZE—tF ZT-RF —ZT—h#F
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FERT FET FET FET FHET
Revenue Wz 364,906 298,625 353,038 399,277 305,313
Cost of sales 3HE AR (334,423)  (227,943)  (312,746)  (328,830) (242,982
Gross profit EF 30,483 70,682 40,292 70,447 62,331
Other income, gains and losses ~ E MU A - Yzt K & 18 4,011 2,740 5,155 892 6,245
Fair value change on BREMELATES
investment properties - - (834) - -
Administrative and other THREMEERSE
operating expenses (53,302) (38,758) (29,543) (32,562) (17,722)
Impairment losses on financial CREERANEE
assets and contract assets REEE (2,367) - - - -
Operating (loss)/profit e (B8),/FE (21,175) 34,664 15,070 38,777 50,854
Finance costs BEMRE (6,868) (2,917) (1,037) (1,079) (1,361)
(Loss)/profit before income tax FRATEHLAI (E5E) /FE (28,043) 31,747 14,033 37,698 49,493
Income tax credit/(expense) FrismEe, /(M%) 808 (6,379) (5,674) (8,473) (7,872)
(Loss)/profit for the year ER (FHE) AE (27,235) 25,368 8,359 29,225 41,621

AT E B AR A A
—E-hEER
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hEFilE

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—-HLEFE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZE-hE ZE-)\F ZE—LF ZT-RF —ZT—h#F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT FHET FHTT FHET
Other comprehensive income  HM2 MUK A
ltem that may be reclassified =8 I oy ESY =
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIHEA -
Exchange differences arising on 2 EEIEBKEL
translation of foreign operations (e ] 1,490 - - - -
Total comprehensive FR2E (BB,
(loss)/income for the year BRAE (25,745) 25,368 8,359 29,225 41,621
(Loss)/profit and total [k (BR) /B REA
comprehensive (loss)/income (B518) /BFEaE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company V/NEGIE 2PN (25,745) 25,368 8,359 29,225 38,499
Non-controlling interests RS - - - - 3,122
(Loss)/profit and total FR(FE) BAKZE
comprehensive (loss)/ (BR) BRAE
income for the year (25,745) 25,368 8,359 29,225 41,621
(Restated)  (Restated)
(g&:5))  (KF))
Basic and diluted (loss)/ EREAREE (HE)
earnings per share (HK cent) BR GEW) (0.52) 0.48 0.17 0.67 0.96

RBEFE 2 SRBFLEHFTELES]
LGB ERZE—+tFMNAZ+HE R
MIFHAz L BUZESFERLRFER
TR AR B A o

The comparative earnings per share in prior years are restated to take
into account of the effect of the share subdivision on 24 April 2017
retrospectively as if they have taken place since the beginning of the
comparative year.
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Five Years Financial Summary

hFUKIHE
As at 31 March
R=BA=+—-H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-RE ZZ-)\F ZE—+F ZT—RF ZIT—A8F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FEx FET FET FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment IENET L 28,033 29,020 62,718 62,261 49,982
Investment properties KEWE - - 21,300 - -
Intangible assets B EE 430 430 430 - -
Deferred tax assets ERERIBEE 663 - - - -
29,126 29,450 84,448 62,261 49,982
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 K& E A0 WER R 124,410 169,187 152,829 119,105 86,990
Contract assets AHEE 90,742 - - - -
Gross amounts due from BhREFAHNTRE
customers for contract work HAIEBEE - 35,922 43,891 26,363 6,431
Amounts due from directors W E £ FIE - - - - 9,988
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEFABREZ
through profit or loss TREE 9,044 1,194 82,571 - -
Tax recoverable AJ Uy [el B 78 2,230 179 14 - -
Pledged bank deposit EHEIFRITER 6,611 6,500 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 332,495 330,638 52,061 50,251 22,543
565,532 543,620 331,366 195,719 125,952
Total assets EEHAE 594,658 573,070 415,814 257,980 175,934
EQUITY i
Capital and reserves EEXRHE
Share capital &N 26,310 26,310 26,310 22,880 1
Reserves e 315,372 344,118 318,750 143,581 86,176
Total equity ERAE 341,682 370,428 345,060 166,461 86,177

A RREEARAR
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DEFEFIGE
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-RE ZZ-)N\F ZE—+F ZT—RF ZIT—A8fF
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$’000
TR FAT FHAT THT FAT
LIABILITIES 8f&
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings BE 153 192 4,333 14,046 8,235
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRTEEE 2,205 3,550 5,848 5,787 5,263
2,358 3,742 10,181 19,833 13,498
Current liabilities nREBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMBAER 92,772 43,880 29,287 36,405 36,655
Gross amounts due to customers  ERNEF A T2
for contract work FIEkEE - 1,981 431 16,544 10,371
Amount due to a former subsidiary & — s Al B8 A B 308 10,641 - - - -
Loan from a related party —RBEFTER 143,438 136,688 - - -
Borrowings BE 179 4,819 29,888 15,823 17,455
Current income tax liabilities BEFEHaE 3,588 11,532 967 2,914 11,778
250,618 198,900 60,573 71,686 76,259
Total liabilities BEHE 252,976 202,642 70,754 91,519 89,757
Total equity and liabilities ERkEEAE 594,658 573,070 415,814 257,980 175,934
Net current assets FRBEE 314,914 344,720 270,793 124,033 49,693
Total assets less BEEHBERABERE
current liabilities 344,040 374,170 355,241 186,294 99,675
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